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Dear stockholders, 

We are most appreciative ofour CFBank customers for their loyalty and support during the capital raise successfuUy j 
completed in late August, 2012. We are also extremely appreciative ofour standby, institutional and individual •.: 
investors, whose collective support resulted in our raising $22.5 million (the maximum limit of our capital raise). 

In the few shott months since the capital raise, our neW Management team has made progress in classified loans, \ 
credit quality and back office operations. We have made changes to our product offerings and added experienced 
banking talent. All these changes are designed to make our customers' banking relationships, more productive both 
for their businesses and CFBank. These changes are a must as we transition into a commercial banking model 
serving closely held businesses and their owners. This change in marketing strategy has resulted in our building a 
solid pipeline of loan and other banking business opportunities. 

The marketplace reception for the new repositioned CFBank and our expanded product offerings and unique [ 
delivery has been particularly gratifying. We have gained business traction in both NE Ohio as well as in Central 
Ohio and also Columbiana County (Utica and Marcellas Oil Shale Corridor) where we operate two banking offices. 
Our niche business model is based upon executing as a fiill service business bank, providing customized client 
solutions, being highly responsive to our clients, investing in understanding their business, and delivering all of this 
to our clients thru veteran relationship managers along with providing access for our customers to key decision 
makers. CFBank is striving to deliver a unique and value added banking experience to our customers. 

The successfiil recapitalization of CFBank and Central Federal Corporation restores financial strength and stability 
plus sets the stage for growth and expansion. We believe by expanding our products and services, as with the recent 
introduction of CFBank Merchant Services, and diversifying our asset mix by shifting to a Commercial banking 
model, not only reduces the enterprise risk but at the same time adds new revenue streams. 

In addition, we are focused heavily on growing our volumes ofloans and building a residential mortgage lending 
division. Our experience reinforces what an important role the residential loan business can have in building long 
standing customer relationships that are important to building a quality banking franchise. 

Much work and challenges remain. However, I can assure you our CFBank team is working diligently to seize upon 
this opportunity which you, our stockholders have provided to us. I beheve 2013 will be a truly transformational 
year for CFBank. 

Onward and upward!! 

Timothy T. O'Dell 

Chief Executive Officer 



Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 

SELECTED FINANCIAL AND OTHER DATA 
The information in the following tables should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements, the related 
notes and Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations contained in this report. 

Selected Financial Condition Data; 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Total assets 

Cash and cash equivalents • . 

Securities available for sale 

Loans held for sale 

Loans, net<" 

Allowance for loan losses (ALLL) 

Nonperforming assets 

Foreclosed assets ' , , 

Other intangible assets 

Deposits 

FHLB advances 

Subordinated debentures 

Total stockholders' equity 

2012 

$ 215,035' 

• '-25,152 •• 

17,639 

623 

153,043 

5,237 ; 

.. 7,«8i: 

••- 1,525; 

49 

,173,508 . 

IQfiQO 

. ~ ;-::-.'5;i55 ' 

23,643 

2011 

$ 250,920 , 

61,436 

18,516 

1,210 

151,160 

•• • 6,110 • 

. , ,.10,671 , 

2,370 

89 

217,049 

15,742 

5,155 

9,944 

At December 31, 

2010 

$ : 275,232 

• „ 4-34,275 

28,798 

. 1'953 . 

190,767 

" 9,758 ' 

14,566 

, '.4,509 ' 

129 

227,381 

23,942 

^5,155 ' 

15,989-

2009 

$ 273,742 

• 2,973 

21,241 

, ,1,775 

232,003 

7,090 

13,234 

• • ' ' • . • • • - • : 

.:•' 169 

211,088, 

32,007 

• ' • 5,155 

23,227' ' 

2008 

$ 277,781 

. ! •-. • '.•:4,177 

23,550 

284 

234,924 

•'• ;̂;-- ' 3,119 

/ , • 2,412 

,:.,, , . . 

-
207,647 

29,050 

. 5,155 

33,075 

Summary of Operations: 
(Dollars in Thousands) ' 

Total interest income 

Total interest expense 

Net interest incoine 

Provision for loan losses 
Net interest income (loss) after provision for loan 

losses 

Noninterest income: 

Net gain on sale of securities 

Other 

Total noninterest income 

Noninterest expense 

Income (loss) before income taxes 

Income tax expense (benefit) 

Net income (loss) 
Net income (loss) available to common 

stockholders 

• 2012 

$ 7,268 

2.633 

4,635 

1,129 

3,506 

143 

862 

1,005 

8,277 

(3i766) 

, . • .,,-,. .'_ 

$ (3,766) 

866 

For the Year ended December 31 

2011 

$ 9,656 

3,478 

6,178 

3,375 

2,803 

353 

770 

1,123 

9,351 

(5,425) 

_ 

$ (5,425) 

$ (5,850) 

2010 

$ 12,617 . 

4,183-

8,434 

8,468 

(34) 

468 

1,326 

1,794 

. 8,432 

(6,672) 

• 198 

$ (6,870) 

$ (7,280) 

2009 

s, • 

$.. 

$ 

14,446 .; 

5,947 

8,499 

9,928 

(1,429) 

• -

1,377 ":: 

• -1,377 

8,262 

(8,314) 

1,577 

(9,891) 

(10,298) 

2008 

$ 16,637 

'•• - • '-7,935 

8,702 

. ., 917 . 

7 ,785 , . 

' 54 • 

894 

: . : ; ' • 948 

- : - 7,749 

,' 984 

261 

$ - • • ; • • 7 2 3 

$ •, 694 

(See footnotes on next page) 
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Selected Financial Ratios and Other Data: 

JPerformance Ratios:'^' 

Retum on average assets 

Return on average equity 

Average yield on interest-eaming assets'^' 

Average rate paid on interest-bearing liabilities 

Average interest rate spread*"*' 

Net interest margin, fully taxable equivalent''* 

Average Interest-eaming assets to interest-bearing liabilities 

Efficiency ratio'*' 

Noninterest expense to average assets 

Common stock dividend payout ratio 

Capital Ratios:'^' 

Equity to total assets at end of period 

Average equity to average assets ' ' 

Tangible capital ratio'' ' 

Core capital ratio'' ' , ' . 

Total risk-based capital ratio *'' 

Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio '" 

Asset Quality Ratios:'^' 

Nonperforming loans to total loans '*' 

Nonperforming assets to total assets''* 

Allowance for loan losses to total loans 

Allowance for loan losses to nonperforming loans '** 

Net charge-offs (recoveries) to average loans 

Per Share Data: 

Basic eamings (loss) per common share 

Diluted eamings (loss) per common share 

Dividends declared per common share 

Tangible book value per common share at end of period 

2012 

(1.65%) 

(24.29%) 

3.48% 

1.37% 

2.11% 

7 72% 

108.41% 

137.98% 

3.62% 

n/m 

10.99% 

6.78% 

10.97% 

10.97% 

15.53% 

14.26% 

4.02% 

3.66% 

3.31% 

82.39% 

1.43% 

$ 0.14 

0.14 

-
1.48 

At or for the Year ended December 31^ 

2011 

(1.99%) 

(42.69%) 

3.82% 

1,47% 

2,35% 

2,44% 

106.73% 

117,62% 

3,43% 

n/m 

3,96% 

4,66%-

5,39%^ 

5.39% 

10,30% 

, 9,02% 

5,28% 

4,25% 

3.89% . 

73,61% 

3,97% 

$ (7.09) 

(7,09) 

-
3.30 

2010 

(2,41%) 

• : ' (35,52%) 

4.76% 

. 1,73% 

3,03% 

3,18% 

109,74% 

85,98% 

2.96% 

n/m 

5,81% 

6,79% 

6.59% 

6,59% 

10.68% 

- 9,41%, 

5,02% 

5,29% 

4,87% 

" 97,03% 

2,63% 

$ , (8,85). 

, (8.85), 

-
10.65 

2009 

(3,45%) 

(32,95%) 

5,32% 

2,50% 

2,82% 

3,13% 

114.5,9% 

83,60% 

2:88% 

n/m 

8.48% 

10,47% 

8.87% 

8,87% 

11,72%, 

10,46% 

5.54% 

4.83% 

2.97% 

53.57% 

• 2.47%-

.% (12,56) 

(12.56), , 

-
19.55 ' 

2008 

: -26% ' 

2.68%., 

6,38% . 

.3,38% , 

- ,3,00% 

3,34% 

.111,33% 

80.75% 

2.79% 

125,0% 

11,91% 

; 9,72% 

' 9.16% 

9.16% 

11.58% 

10,51% 

1,01% 

0.87% 

1,31% 

129,31% 

. 0,20% 

$ 0.80 

0.80 

1.00 

31,80' 

''* Loans, net represents the recorded investment in loans net of the ALLL, 

'̂ ' Asset quality ratios and capital ratios are end-of-period ratios. All other ratios are based on average monthly balances during 

the indicated periods, 

*'* Calculations of yield are presented on a taxable equivalent basis using the federal income tax rate of 34%i, 

*"* The average interest fate spread represents the difference between the weighted average yield on average interest-eaming assets and 

the weighted average cost of average interest-bearing liabilities. . - ,, , 

''* The net interest margin represents net interest income as a percent of average interest-eaming assets. 

*''*. The efficiency ratio equals noninterest expense (excluding amortization of intangibles and foreclosed assets expense) divided by 

net interest income plus noninterest income (excluding gains or losses onsecurities transactions), 

''* Regulatory capital ratios of CFBank. -:, 

'** Nonperforming loans consist of nonaccmal loans and other loans 90 days or more past due, 

''* Nonperforming assets consist of nonperforming loans and foreclosed assets. 

n/m - not meaningful 
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 
Statements in this annual,report and in other communications by the Company that are not statements of historical fact are: 
forward-looking staternents which are made in good faith by us. Forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to: 
(1) projectionS;Of revenues, income or loss, eamings or loss percominon share, capital structure and other financial items; 
(2) plans and objectives ofthe management or Boards ofDirectors of Central Federal Corporation (the Holding Company) or 
CFBank; (3) statements regarding future events, actions or economic performance; and (4) statements of assumptions 
underlying such statements. Words such as "estimate," "strategy," "may," "believe," "anticipate," "expect," "predict," "will," 
"intend," "plan," "targeted," and the negative of these terms, or.similar expressions, are intended to identify forward-looking 
statements, but are not the exclusive means of identifying such statements. Various risks and uncertainties may cause actiial 
results to differ materially from those indicated by our forward-looking statements. The following factors could cause such 
differences: 

a continuation of current high unemployment rates and difficult economic conditions or adverse changes in general 
economic conditions and economic conditions in the markets we serve, any ofwhich may affect, among other 
things, our level of nonperforming assets, charge-offs, and provision for loan loss expense; 

changes.in interest rates that may reduce net interest niargin and impact funding sources; . :':: 

our ability to maintain sufficient liqiiidity to continue to fimd our operations; 

our ability to reduce our high level of nonperforming assets and operating expenses; 

changes in market rates and prices, including real estate values, which may adversely impact the value of financial 
products including.securities, loans and deposits; 

the possibility of other-than-temporary impairment of securities held in our securities portfolio;, 

results of examinations ofthe Holding Company and CFBank by the regulators, including the possibility that the 
regulators may, among other things, require CFBank to increase its allowance for loan losses or write-down assets; 

our ability to meet the requirements ofthe Orders, as defined below, under the section captioned "Cease and Desist 
Orders"; ; 

uncertainty related to the counterparty to call our interest-rate swaps; 

uncertainty related to our ability to continue to receive limited waivers from the FDIC allowing us to roll over or 
renew reciprocal CDARS deposits; 

our ability to generate profits in the future; ' . 

changes in tax laws, rules and regulations; 

various monetary and fiscal policies and regulations, including those determined by the Board of Govemors ofthe 
Federal Reserve System (FED), the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) and the Office ofthe 
Comptroller of the Currency (OCC); 

competition with other local and regional commercial banks, savings banks, credit unions and other non-bank 
financial institutions; 

our ability to grow our core businesses; 

technological factors which may affect our operations, pricing, products and services; : , 

unanticipated litigation, claims or assessments; and 

management's ability to manage these and other risks. • 

Forward-looking statements are not guarantees of performance or results. A forward-looking statement may include a 
statement ofthe assumptions or bases underlying the forwardrlooking statement. The Holding Company, including its 
subsidiaries, together referred to as "the Company," believes it has chosen these assumptions or bases in good faith and-that 
they are reasonable. We caution you, however, that assumptions or bases almost always vary fromactual results; and the 
differences between assumptions or bases and actual results can be material. The forward-looking statements included in this 
report speak only as ofthe date of the report. We undertake no obligation to publicly release revisionsto any forward-
looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date of such statements, except to the extent required by law. 
Our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), detail other risks, all ofwhich are difficult to predict and 
many of which are beyond our control. 
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GENERAL 
The Holding Company is a savings and loan holding company incorporated in Delaware in 1998: Substantially all of our 
business is conducted through our principal subsidiary, CFBank, a federally chartered savings association formed in Ohio in 
1892. • : • •- •̂::'. 

CFBank is a community-oriented fmancial institution offering a variety of financial services to meet the needs of the 
communities we serve. Our business model emphasizes personalized service, clients' access to decision makers, solution-
driven lending and quick execution, efficient use of technology and the convenience of onlineintemet banking, mobile 
banking, remote deposit, corporate cash management and telephone banking. We attract deposits from the general public and 
use the deposits, together with borrowings and other funds, primarily to originate commercial and commercial real estate i 
loans, single-family and multi-family residential mortgage loans and home equity lines of credit. The majority of our 
customers are small businesses, small business owners and consumers. 

Our principal market area for loans and deposits includes the following Ohio counties: Summit County through our office in 
Fairlawn, Ohio; Franklin County through our office in Worthington, Ohio; and Columbiana County through our offices ih 
Calcutta and Wellsville, Ohio. We originate commercial and residential real estate loans and business loans primarily 
throughout Ohio. Lending activities are conducted through our offices. In 2003, we began originating commercial, 
commercial real, estate and multifamily residential mortgage loans and expanded into business financial services in the i 
Fairlawn and Columbus, Ohio markets. Most ofour deposits and loans come from our market area. Because of CFBank's 
concentration ofbusiness activities in Ohio, the Company's financial condition and results of operations depend upon , 
economic conditions in Ohio. Adverse economic conditions in Ohio have adversely affected and continue to adversely affect 
the ability of our customers to repay their loans as well as our financial condition and results of operations. Conditions such 
as inflation, recession, unemployment, high interest rates, short money supply, intemational disorders, terrorism and other 
factors beyond our control may adversely affect our profitability. We are less able than a larger institution to spread the risks 
of unfavorable local economic conditions across a large number of diversified economies. Moreover, we cannot give any 
assurance we will benefit from any market growth or favorable economic conditions in our primary market areas if they do 
occur.- - - • • . . - : • , • . - • : . • 

Our net income is dependent primarily on net interest income, which is the difference between the interest income eamed on 
loans and securities and our cost of funds, consisting ofinterest paid on deposits and borrowed fiinds. Net interest income is 
affected by regulatory, economic and competitive factors that influence interest rates, loan demand, the level of v . 
nonperforming assets and deposit flows. 

Net income is also affected by, among other things, provisions for loan losses, loan fee income, service charges, gains on 
loan sales, operating expenses, and franchise and income taxes. Operating expenses principally consist of employee 
compensation and benefits, occupancy, FDIC insurance premiums and other general and administrative expenses. In general, 
results of operations are significantly affected by general economic and competitive conditions, changes in market interest 
rates and real estate values, govemment poUcies and actions of regulatory authorities. Regulators have extensive discretion 
in their supervisory and enforcement activities, including the imposition of restrictions on our operations, the classification of 
our assets and determination ofthe level ofour allowance for loan losses. Any change-in such regulation and oversight, 
whether in the form of regulatory policy, regulations, legislation or supervisory action, may have a material impact on our 
business, financial condition, results of operations andcash flows. ' 

On July 21, 2010, President Obama signed into law the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act 
(Dodd-Frank Act). The Dodd-Frank Act included numerous provisions designed to strengthen the financial industry, 
enhance consumer protection, expand disclosures and provide for transparency. Some of these provisions included changes 
to FDIC insurance coverage, which included a permanent increase in the coverage to $250,000 per depositor. Additional 
provisions created a Bureau of Consumer Financial Protection, which is authorized to write rales on all consumer financial 
products. Still other provisions created a Financial Stability Oversight Council, which is not only empowered to determine 
the entities that are systemically significant and therefore require more stringent regulations, but which is also charged with 
reviewing, and, when appropriate, submitting comments to the SEC and Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB), with 
respect to existing or proposed accounting principles, standards or procedures. The aforementioned are only; a few ofthe 
numerous provisions included in the Dodd-Frank Act. The overall impact ofthe entire Dodd-Frank Act will not be known 
until fiill implementation is completed, but the possibility of significant additional comphance costs exists, andrthe Dodd^ 
Frank Act consequently may have a material adverse impact on our operations. 
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GENERAL (Continued) 
The disraption in capital, credit and financial markets which began in 2008 continued to have a detrimental effect on our 
national and local economies in 2012. These effects have included lower real estate values; tightened availability of credit; : 
increased loan delinquencies, foreclosures, personal and business bankraptcies and unemployment rates; decreased consumer 
confidence and spending; significant loan charge-offs and write-downs of asset values by financial institutions and 
govemment-sponsored agencies; and a reduction of manufacturing and service business activity and intemational trade. We 
do not expect these difficult market conditions to tumaround in the short term, and a continuation of these conditions could 
increase their adverse effects. Adverse effects of these conditions: could include increases in loan delinquencies and charge­
offs; increases in our loan loss reserves based on general economic factors; increases to our specific loan loss reserves due to 
the impact of these conditions on; specific borrowers or the collateral for their loans; increases in the number of foreclosed 
assets; declines in the value ofour foreclosed assets due to the impact of these conditions on property values; increases, in our 
cost of funds due to increased competition and aggressive deposit pricing by local and national competitors with liquidity 
needs; attrition ofour core deposits due to this aggressive deposit pricing and/or consumer concems about the safety of their 
deposits; increases in regulatory andcompliance costs; and declines in the,trading price ofour common stock . s ; 

CEASE AND DESIST ORDERS 
On May 25, 2011, the Holding Company and CFBank each consented to the, issuance of an Order to Cease and Desist (the ; 
Holding Company Order and the CFBank Order, respectively, and collectively, the Orders) by the OTS, the primary 
regulator ofthe Holding Company and CFBank at the time the .Orders were issued. In July 2011, in accordance with the 
Dodd - Frank Act, the FED replace the OTS as the primary, regulator ofthe Holding Company and the OCC replace the OTS 
as a primary- regulator of CFBank. The requirements ofthe Orders will remain in effect until terminated, modified or 
suspended by regulators. See Note 2 to our consolidated financial statements included in this annual report for additional 
information regarding the Orders. 

The significant directives continuing in the Orders, including requirements to reducethe levelof our classified and-criticized 
assets, growth'and operating metrics in line with an approved Business Plan, restrictions on brokered deposits, restrictions on 
certain types of lending and restrictions on dividend payments may impede our ability to operate our business efficiently and 
to effectively compete in the markets we serve. In addition, the regulators must approve any deviation from our business 
plan, which could limit our ability to make market responsive changes to.our business quickly. Certain provisions of the 
Orders that could have a negative impact on the financial conditiomand operating results of CFBank and the Holding 
Company are as follows: • ' 

1. The CFBank Order requires CFBank to have 8% core capital and 12% total risk-based capital, and CFBank will not 
be considered well-capitalized under the prompt corrective actionregulations so long as the CFBank Order remains 
in place, even if it meets or exceeds these capital levels. At December 31, 2012, CFBank had 10.97% core capital, 
14.26%) tier 1 risk-based capital and 15.53%) total risk-based capital. - • . 

2. Banking regulations limit the amount of dividends that may be paid without prior approval of regulatory agencies. 
Pursuant to the CFBank Order, CFBank may not declare or pay dividends or make any other capital distributions 
without receiving prior written regulatory approval. Future dividend payments by CFBank to the Holding Company 
would be based on future eamings and regulatory approval. The payment of dividends from CFBank to the Holding 
Company is not likely to be approved by regulators while CFBank is suffering losses. As a result of the current 
level of problem assets and the continuing slow economy it is unlikely CFBank will be able to pay dividends to the 
Holding Company until such issues are resolved. The Holding Company, after the Capitalization and paying off the 
TARP obligation with-$3 Million, has nearly four years of operating capital; The regulators have fiirther required ; 
the Holding Company to develop a business plan, separate from the Bank, that enables it to significantly reduce its 
dependence on the Bank for dividends through altemative funding mechanisms 

3. Because CFBank is not considered well-capitalized as a result ofthe CFBank Order, it is prohibited from accepting 
or renewing brokered deposits without FDIC approval and is subject to market rate limitations published by the 
FDIC when offering deposits to the general public. See the section titled "Financial Condition - Deposits'" and the 
section titled "Liquidity and Capital Resources" for additional information regarding these regulatory restrictions. 

On August'20,2012, the Company announced the successfiil completion of its restractured registered common stock 
offering. The Company sold 15.0 million shares of its common stock at $1.50 per share, resulting in gross proceeds of $22.5 
million before expenses. With the proceeds from the stock offering, the Company contributed $13.5 million to CFBank to 
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CEASE AND DESIST ORDERS (Continued) 
improve its capital ratios and support future growth and expansion, bringing CFBank into compliance with the capital ratios 
required by the CFBank Order. In addition, the Company used proceeds from the stock offering to redeem its TARP 
obligations on September 26, 2012. The remaining proceeds from the restractured registered common stock offering have 
been retained by the Holding Company for general corporate purposes and are estimated to be sufficient to support the 
Holding Company's cash requirements for the foreseeable future based on our current business plan. See Note 2 to our 
consolidated financial statements included in this annual report for additional information regarding the stock offering. 

We have taken such actions as we believe are necessary to comply with all requirements of the Orders which are currently 
effective, and we are continuing to work toward compUance with the provisions ofthe Orders having fiiture compliance 
dates. Although we did not comply with the higher capital ratio requirements by September 30, 2011, the capital raise was 
completed on August 20, 2012, raising the maximum $22.5 million.. 

The Holding Company and CFBank have incurred, and expect to continue to incur, some additional regulatory. compUance 
expense in connection with the Orders. It is possible that regulatory compliance expenses related to the Orders could have a 
material adverse impact on us in the future. 

Management's discussion and analysis represents a review of our consolidated financial condition and results of operations 
for the periods presented. This review should be read in conjunction with our consoUdated financial statements and related 
notes. - • ' ' • 

FINANCIAL CONDITION 
General Assets totaled $215.0 million at December 31, 2012, and decreased $35.9 million, or 14.3%, from $250.9 million at 
December 31,2011. The decrease was due to a $36.3 million decrease in cash, a $877,000 decrease in securities available 
for sale, and a $845,000 decrease in foreclosed assets. 

Cash andcash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents totaled $25.2 million at December 31, 2012, and decreased $36.3 
milUon, or 59.1%, from $61.4 million at December 31, 2011. The decrease in cash and cash equivalents was a resuh of the 
investment of excess liquidity in securities and a mortgage purchase program. As a result ofthe losses in 2009,2010 and the 
first quarter of 2011, management was concemed that CFBank would be restricted from accepting or renewing brokered 
deposits, in addition to other regulatory restrictions, and moved aggressively, prior to receipt of the CFBank Order in May 
2011, to build hquidity to deal with potential retail deposit outflows and potential decreased borrowing capacity from the" 
FHLB and the Federal Reserve Bank (FRB). Since the capital raise has been completed the Bank is eliminating such high-
cost brokered deposits as they mature. Further, as a result ofthe capital raise, CFBank hasreduced its dependency on selling 
loans and securities, as was done to improve liquidity in 2011. The increase in hquidity had a negative impact on net interest J 
margin through September 2012 because the yield on cash and cash equivalents was significantly less than the yield on ' 
securities and loans. 

Interest-bearing deposits in other financial institutions. Interest-bearing deposits in other financial institutions totaled $2.7 
million at December 31, 2012. These deposits represent investments in certificates of deposit held at other financial 
institutions that are fiilly insured by the FDIC. The investments have a weighted average yield of 1.10%) and were made to 
enhance the yield on eaming assets compared to investing these fiinds in short-term federal funds sold eaming 0.25%). There 
were $2.0 million in interest-bearing deposits in other financial institutions at December 31, 2011. 

Securities. Securities available for sale totaled $17.6 million at December 31, 2012, and decreased $877,000, or 4.74%, 
compared to $18.5 milUon at December 31, 2011. The decrease was due to sales and scheduled maturities and repayments in 
excess of purchases during the current year as management acted to increase liquidity, as discussed previously. See the 
section titled "Comparison ofthe Results of Operations for 2012 and 201 i - Noninterest Income" for additional information 
on any security sales. = 

Loans. Net loans totaled $153 milUon at December 31, 2012, increased nearly $2 milUon, or 1.3%), from $151.2 milUon at 
December 31, 2011. The increase was primarily due to lower commercial real estate, multi-family residential, consumer- and 
commercial loan balances and, to a lesser extent, lower single family residential loan balances, offset by a $25.4 miUion of 
loan participations in the Mortgage Purchase Program associated with Northpointe Bank. Beginning in June 2010 and 
continuing in 2011, management slowed new lending to increase our capital ratios and, after receipt of the CFBank Order, to 

CENTRAL FEDERAL CORPORATION 2012 ANNUAL REPORT | page 9. 



FINANCIAL CONDITION (Continued) 
comply with lending restrictions. Commercial, commercial real estate'and rnulti-family residential loans,,including related 
constraction loans, decreased $21.6 million, or 17.6%o, and totaled $101.3,million at December 31, 2012. The decrease was 
primarily in commercial real estate loan balances, including related constraction loans, which decreased $15.5 million, or 
22.2%, due to principal repayments and payoffs in excess of current year originations and $1.5 milUon in charge-offs related 
to nine borrowers: Constraction loans on commercial real estate properties totaled $14,000 at December 31, 2012. There . 
were no constraction loans at December 31, 2011. Commercial loans decreased by $586,000; or 2.3%),'due to principal 
repayments and payoffs in excess of current year originations. Multi-family residential loans decreased by $5.6 million, or 
20.6%), primarily related to principal repayments and payoffs in excess of current year originations and $796,000 in charge­
offs related to one borrower. Single-family residential mortgage loaris totaled $43 million at December 31, 2012 and 
increased $24.8 million, or 136.4%, from $18.2 million at December 31, 2011. The increase in single-family residential 
mortgage loans was primarily due to the Mortgage Purchase Program associated with Northpointe Bank.: There were no 
single family constraction loans at December 31, 2012 or December 31,2011. Consumer loans totaled $13.9 million at 
December 31, 20l2 and decreased $2.2 million, or 13.7%, dueprimarily to repayments of home equity lines of credit. See 
Note 4 - Loans for additional information on loans and the Northpointe Mortgage Purchase Program. 

Allowance for loan losses (ALLL). The ALLL totaled $5.2 million at December 31, 2012, and decreased $873,000, or 
14.3%, from $6.1 million at December 31, 2011. The decrease in the ALLL was due to the charge-off of certain 
nonperforming loans, a23.4%) decrease in nonperforming loans, a42.7%) decrease in past due loans and a 31.2%) decreasein 
criticized and classified loans during the year ended December 31, 2012. The ratio ofthe ALLL to total loans was 3.31%) at 
December 31, 2012, compared to 3.89%) at December 31, 2011. The decrease in the ratio of nonperforming loans to total 
loans was due to a decrease in nonperforming loans 

The ALLL for the commercial real estate loan segment ofthe loanportfolio totaled $1.95 million at December 31,2012 and 
increased $83,000, or 4.5%), from $1.86 miUion at December 31, 2011. The increase in the ALLL for this segment ofthe 
portfolio was due to a 22.2%) decrease in overall commercial real estate loan balances offset by the 45.9%) increase in non-
performing commercial real estate loans, and a 22.0%) increase in past due commercial real estate loans during the year ended 
December 31,2012. 

The ALLL is a valuation allowance for probable incurred credit losses. The ALLL methodology is designed as part of a 
thorough process that incorporates management's,current judgments about the credit quality of the loan portfolio into a 
determination of the ALLL in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and supervisory guidance. 
Management analyzes the adequacy ofthe ALLL quarterly through reviews ofthe loan portfolio, including the nature and 
volume ofthe loan portfolio and segments ofthe portfolio; industry and loan concentrations; historical loss experience; 
delinquency statistics and the level of nonperforming loans; specific problem loans; the ability of borrowers to meet loan 
terms; an evaluation of collateral securing loans and the market for various types of collateral; various collection sfrategies; . 
current economic conditions, trends and outlook; and other factors that warrant recognition in providing for an adequate 
ALLL. Based on the variables involved and the significant judgments management must make about outcomes that are 
uncertain, the determination ofthe ALLL is considered to be a critical accounting policy. See the section titled "Critical 
Accounting PoUcies" for additional discussion. 

The ALLL consists of specific, and general components. The specific component relates to loans that are individually 
classified as impaired. A loan is impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that CFBank will be 
unable to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms ofthe loan agreement. Loans of all classes within the 
commercial, commercial real estate and multi-family residential loan segments, regardless of size, and loans of all other 
classes over $500,000 are individually evaluated for impairment when they are 90 days past due, or earlier than 90 days past : 
due if information regarding the payment capacity of the borrower indicates.that payment in full according to the loan terms 
is doubtfiil. If a loan is impaired, a portion of the allowance is allocated so that the loan is reported, net, at the present value 
of estimated fiiture cash flows using the loan's existing rate, or at the fair value of collateral, less costs to sell, if repayment is. 
expected solely from the collateral. Large groups of smaller balance loans, such as consumer and single-family residential 
real estate loans, are collectively evaluated for impairment, and accordingly, they are not separately identified for impairment 
disclosures. Loans within any class for which the terms have been modified resulting in a concession, and for which the 
borrower is experiencing financial difficulties, are considered troubled debt restracturings (TDRs) and are classified as 
impaired. See Notes 1 and 4 to our consolidated financial statements included in this annual report for additional inforrnation 
regarding the ALLL. . ., 
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FINANCIAL CONDITION (Continued). 
Individually impaired loans totaled $9.9 million af December 31,2012, and decreased $2.3 milUon, or 18.8%), from $12.li 
million at December 31, 2011. The decrease was primarily due to charge-offs of $2.6 million, transfer to REO of $1.7 I 
million, and impaired loan pay-offs of $1.7 million off-set by $3.4 million in loans that became impaired during the year. 
The amount of the ALLL specifically allocated to individually impaired loans totaled $830,000 at December 31, 2012, and 

$897,000 at December 31,2011. Impaired collateral dependent loans were written down to the fair value of coUateral in 
2012 and there were no specific valuation allowances on these loans at December 31, 2012. 
The specific reserve on impaired loans is based on management's estimate ofthe present value of estimated future cash flows 
using the loan's existing rate or the fair value of collateral, if repayment is expected solely from the collateral. On at least a 
quarterly basis, management reviews each impaired loan to determine whether it should have a specific reserve or partial 
charge-off. Management relies on appraisals. Brokers Price Opinions (BPO) or intemal evaluations to help make this 
determination. Determination of whether to use an updated appraisal, BPO or intemal evaluation is based on factors 
including, but not limited to, the age of the loan and the most recent appraisal, condition of the property and whether we 
expect the collateral to go through the foreclosure or liquidation process. Management considers the need for a downward 
adjustment to the valuation based on current market conditions and on management's analysis, judgment and experience. 
The amount ultimately charged-off for these loans may be different from the specific reserve, as the ultimate liquidation of 
the coUateral and/or projected cash flows may be different from management's estimates. -

Nonperforming loans, which aire nonaccraal loans and loans at least 90 days past due but still accraing interest, decreased; 
$1.9 million, or 23.4%, and totaled $6.4 million at December 31, 2012, compared to $8.3 million at December 31,2011. The 
decrease in nonperforming loans was primarily due to $2.6 million in loan charge-offs, transfer to REO of $1.7 million and, 
to a lesser extent, loan payments and proceeds from the sale ofthe underlying collateral of various loans, partially offset by 
$3.5 million in additional loans that became nonperforming during 2012. The $3.5 million in loans that became 
nonperforming during 2012 were related to six commercial real estate loans which totaled $2.5 million, one multi-family 
residential real estate loan which totaled $200,000, three commercial loans which totaled $714,000 and two single-family! 
loans which totaled $78,000 at December 31, 2012. The ratio of nonperforming loans to total loans totaled 4.02%) at 
December 31, 2012, compared to 5.28%) at December 31, 2011. The following table presents information regarding the 
number and balance of nonperforming loans at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011. 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Commercial 

Single-family residential real estate 

Multi-family residential real estate 

Commercial real estate 

Home equity lines of credit 

Total 

At December 31, 

2012 
Number 
ofloans 

3 

5 

2 

9 

1 

20 

Balance 

$ 714 

113 

2,082 

3,438 

9 

$ 6,356 

2011 
Number 
ofloans 

1 ; ,•; 

11 

3 : 

6 

• - 3 

'24 •' 

Balance ' \.' 

$ V 47 . 

736 

4,9% 

2,356 

166 

$ 8,3bI:, 

Nonaccraal loans include some loans that were modified and identified as TDRs and the loans are not performing. TDRs 
included in nonaccraal loans totaled $3.3 million at December 31; 2012, and $3.0 miUion at December 31,2011. The 
increase in TDR loans included in nonaccraal loans was primarily due to new TDR loans partially offset by write-offs and 
repayments with proceeds from sales of collateral underlying the existing TDR loans. 

Nonaccraal loans at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 donot include $3.7 million and $4.6 million, respectively, 
of TDRs where customers have established a sustained period of repayment performance, generally six months, the loans are 
current according to their modified terms and repayment of the remaining contractual payments is expected. These loans are 
included in total impaired loans. 

See Notes 1 and 4 to our consolidated financial statements included in this annual report for additional information regarding 
impaired loans and nonperforming loans. 
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FINANCIAL CONDITION (Continued) 
The general component ofthe ALLL covers loans not classified as impaireid and is based on historical loss experience, 
adjusted for current factors. Current factors considered include, but are not limited to: management's oversight ofthe 
portfolio, including lending policies and procedures; nature, level and frend of the portfolio, including past due and 
nonperforming loans, loan concentrations, loan terms and other characteristics; current economic conditions and outlook; 

collateral values; and other items. The general ALLL is calculated based on CFBank's loan balances and actual historical 
payment default rates for individual loans with payment defauUs. For loans with no actual payment default history, industry 

estimates of payment defauh rates are applied, based on the applicable property types in the state where the collateral is 
located. Results are then scaled based on CFBank's intemal loan risk ratings,, increasing the probability of default on loans 
with higher risk ratings, and industry loss rates are applied based on loan type. Industry estimates of payment default rates 
and industry loss rates are based on information compiled by the FDIC. ; . • : 

Industry information is adjusted based on management's judgment regarding items specific to CFBank and the current factors 
discussed previously. The adjustment process is dynamic, as current experience adds to the historical ihforrnation, and 
economic conditions and outlook migrate over time. Specifically, industry information is adjusted by comparing the 
historical payment default rates (CFBank historical defauh rates and industry estimates of payment defeult rates) against the 
current rate of payment defauh to determine if the current level is high or low compared to historical rates, or rising or falling 
in light of the curtent economic outlook. Industry information is adjusted by comparison ito.CFBank's historical loss rates, 
inchiding its ohe year loss rate, as well as the trend in,those loss rates, past due, nonaccraal, criticized and classified loans. 
This adjustment process is performed for each segment ofthe portfolio. The following portfolio segments have been; 
identified: commercial loans;, single-family residential real estate loans; multifamily residential real estate loans; commercial 
real estate loans; constraction loans; home equity lines of credit; and other consumer loans, these individual segments are . 
then further segregated by classes and intemal loan risk ratings. See Note 4-to our consolidated financial statements included 
in this annual report.for addifional information. , 

Management's loan review process is an integral part of identifying problem loans and determining the ALLL. We maintain 
an intemal credit rating systein and loan review procedures specifically developed as the primary credit quality indicator to 
monitor credit risk for commercial, commercial real estate and multi-family residential real estate loans. We analyze these 
loans individually and categorize loans into risk categories based on relevant infomiation about the ability of borrowers to 
service their debt, such as current financialnnformation, historical payment experience, credit documentation, pubhc 
information and current economic trends, among other factors. Credit reviews for these loan types are performed at least 
annually, and more often for,loans with higher credit risk. Loan officers maintain close contact with borrowers between 
reviews.- Adjustments to loan risk ratings are based on the reviews and at any time information is received that may affect 
risk ratings. Additionally, an independent third party review of commercial, commercial real estate and multi-family 
residential loans, which was performed annually prior to June 2010, is now performed semi-annually. Management uses the 
results of these reviews to help determine the effectiveness ofthe existing policies and procedures and to provide an 
independent assessment ofour intemal loan risk rating system. 

We have incorporated the regulatory asset classifications as a part ofour credit inonitoring and internal loan risk rating ;:, 
system. In accordance with regulations, problem loans are classified as special mention, substandard, doubtful or loss, and, 
the classifications are subject to review by the regulators. Assets designated as special mention are considered-criticized 
assets. Assets designated as substandard, doubtful or loss are considered classified assets. See Note 4 to our cohsblidated 
financial statements included in this annual report for additional information regarding descriptions ofthe regulatory asset 
classifications. 

The level of CFBank's criticized and classified assets continiies to be negatively inipacted by tlie duration and lingering 
nature ofthe curtent recessionary economic environment and its continued detrimental effects Oil our bortowers, including 
deterioration in client business performance, declines in borrowers' cash flows and lower collateral values. The levels of 
criticized and classified assets decreased in 2012.' Loans classified as special mention decreased $3.2 miUion, or 19.6%, and 
totaled $13.0 million at December 31, 2012, compared to $16.2 million at December 31', 2011. Loans classified as 
substandard decreased $9.4 miUion, or 37.5%o,' and totaled $15.7 iriillibn at December 31, 2012, compared to $25.1 million at 
December 31, 2011. No loans were classified as doubtful at December 31, 2012, doubtful loans totaled $407,060 at 
December 31, 2011. No loans were classified as loss at either date. The decrease in loans classified as special mention and 
substandard was due to principal repaynients and payoffs since Decernber 31, 2011 and, to a lesser extent, charge-offs of 
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FINANCIAL CONDITION (Continued) 
$2.6 million. See Note 4 to our consolidated financial statements included in this annual report for additional information • 
regarding risk classification of loans. > 

In addition to credit monitoring through our intemal loan risk rating system, we also monitor past due information for alfloan 
segments. Loans that are not rated under our intemal credit rating system include groups of homogenous loans, such as 
single-family residential real estate loans and consumer loans. The primary credit indicator for these groups of homogenous 
loans is past due information. '• j / i 

Total past due loans decreased $2.4 million, or 42.7%), and totaled $3.2 miUion at December 31, 2012, compared to $5.6 -̂
million at December 31; 2011. Past due loans totaled 2.0%o! of the loan portfolio at December 31, 2012, Compared to 3.5%) at.-
December 31, 2011. The decrease was primarily due to lower delinquency rates in the multi-family-loan segment, partially 

offset by an increase in delinquency rates in the commercial, commercial real estate, single-family and consumer loan 1 
segments; See Note 4 to our consolidated financial statements for additional information regarding loan delinquencies. '>••/ 

All lending activity involves risk of loss. Certain types ofloans, such as option adjustable rate mortgage (ARM) products, 
junior lien mortgages, high loan-to-value ratio mortgages, interest only loans, subprime loans and loans with initial teaser 
rates, can have a greater risk of non-collection than other loans. CFBank has not engaged in subprime lending, used option 
ARM products or riiade loans with initial teaser rates. Information about junior Uen mortgages and high loan-to-value ratio-
mortgages is set forth below. • • 

Unsecured commercial loans may present a higher risk of non-collection than secured commercial loans. Unsecured 
commercial loans totaled $1.4 milUon, or 5.3%) of the commercial loan portfoUo, at December 31, 2012. The unsecured 
loans are primarily lines of credit to small businesses in CFBank's market area and are guaranteed by the small business 
owners. At December 31, 2012, none ofthe unsecured loans were 30 days or more delinquent. 1 

One ofthe more notable recessionary effects nationwide has been the reduction in real estate values. Real estate values in 
Ohio did not experience the dramatic increase prior to the recession that many other parts ofthe country did and, as a result, 
the declines have not been as significant, comparatively. However, real estate is the coUateral on a substantial portion ofthe 
Company's loans, and it is critical to determine the impact of any declining values in the allowance determination. For 
individual loans evaluated for impairment, current appraisals were obtained wherever practical, or other valuation methods, • 
including BPOs, were used to estimate decUnes in value for consideration in determining the allowance. Within the real 
estate loan portfolio, in the aggregate, including single-family, multifamily and commercial real estate' generally at 
origination, approximately 90% ofthe portfolio had loan-to-value ratios of 85% of less.;.'Declining collateral values and a 
continued adverse economic outlook have been considered in the ALLL at December 31, 2012; however; sustained ' 
recessionary pressure and declining real estate values in excess of management's estimates, particularly with regard to : 
commercial real estate and multi-family residential real estate, may expose the Company to additional losses. 

Loans that contain interest only payments maiy present a higher risk than those loans with an amortizing payment that 
includes periodic principal reductions. Interest only loans are primarily cominercial lines of credit secured by business assets 
and inventory, and consumer home equity lines of credit secured by the borrower's primary residence.̂  Due to the | 
.fluctuations in business assets and inventory of our commercial borrowers, CFBank has increased risk; due to'a potential! 
decline in collateral values without a corresponding decrease in the outstanding principal. Interest only commercial linesof 
credit totaled $11.8 miUion, or 46;4%) of the commercial portfolio at December 31, 2012. Given the recessionary effects of 
the economy, as previously discussed, the collateral that secures the home equity lines of credit may have experienced a 
deterioration in value since the loan was originated, increasing the risk to CFBank. Interest only home equity' lines of credit 
totaled $10.4 million, or 70.0%) of total home equity lines of credit at December 31, 2012. 

Home equity lines of credit include both purchased loans and loans we originated for our portfolio. In 2005 and 2006, we 
purchased home equity lines of credit CoUateraUzed by properties located throughoiit the United States, including geographic 
areas that have experienced significant declines in housing values, such as California, Florida and Virginia. The Outstanding 
principal balance of the purchased home equity lines of credit totaled $2.2 million at Decernber'31,2012, and $1.1 million, or 
50.7%), ofthe balance is collateralized by properties in these states. The coUateral values associated with certain loans in 
these states have declined by up to approximately 55%) since these loans-were originated in 2005and 2006 and as a result, 
some loan balances exceed coUateral values. There were fifteen loans with an aggregate principal balance outstanding of 
$1.1 million at December 31,2012, where the loan balance exceeded the collateral value, generally determined using 
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FINANCIAL CONDITION (Continued) 
automated valuation methods, by an aggregate amount of $699,000. None of these loans was greater than 90 days deUnquent 
or on nonaccraal status at December 31, 2012. In spite of a continuation ofthe depressed state ofthe housing market and 
general economy, we had no new write-offs in the purchased portfolio during 2012, compared to three write-offs totaling 
$241,000 in the purchased portfolio during 2011. We continue to monitor collateral values and borrower FICQI* scores and, 
when the individual loan situation warrants, have frozen the lines of credit. 

We believe the ALLL is adequate to absorb probable incurred credit losses in the loan portfolio as of December 31,2012; 
however, future additions to the allowance may be necessary based oh factors including, but not limited to, further 
deterioration in client business performance, continued or deepening recessionary economic conditions, ̂ declines in 
borrowers' cash flows and market conditions which result in lower real estate values. Additionally, Various regulatory 
agencies, as an integralpart of their examination process, periodically review the ALLL. Such agencies may require ; 
additional provisions for loan losses based on judgments and estimates that differ from those used by management, or on 

information available.at the time of their.review. Management continues to diligently monitor credit quality in the existing 
portfolio and analyze potential loan opportunities carefully in order to manage credit risk. An increase in the ALLL and loan 
losses could occur if economic conditions and factors which affect credit quality, real estate values and general business 
conditions worsen or do not improve. , r 

Foreclosed assets. Foreclosed assets totaled $1.5 million at December 31, 2012, and decreased $845,000j.or 35;7%), from 
$2.4 million at December 31, 2011. The decrease was due to the sale of three pieces of commercial real estate property 
partially offset by the addition of one single family and one multi-family property. 

The level of foreclosed assets may increase in the future as we continue our workout efforts related to nonperforming-and 
other loans with credit issues. 

Premises and equipment. Premises and equipment, net, totaled $5.3 million at December 31,2012, and decreased $217,000, 
or 4.0%) from $5.5 million at December 31,2011. The decrease was due to current year depreciation expense. 

Deposits. Deposits totaled $173.5 million at December 31, 2012, and decreased $43.5 million, or 20.0%, from $217.0 
million at December 31, 2011. The decrease was primarily due to a $12.8 million decrease in CDARs balances and a $2.7 
milUon decrease in money market balances, $24 million decrease in certificate of deposits, and $4.2 milUon decrease in 
interest bearing checking. ,, 

Money market account balances totaled,$33.3 million at December 31, 2012, and decreased $2.7 million, or 7.5%); from;; : , 
$36.0 million at December 31, 2011. The decrease was due to customers seeking higher yields than management was wUling 
to offer on these funds. 

Noninterest bearing checking account balances totaled $18.0 million at December 31, 2012, and decreased $400,000, or 
2.1%), from $18.4 million at December 31, 2011. The decrease was primarily related to accounts closed by commercial loan 
customers in connection with the payoff of their loans. . 

Certificate of deposit account balances totaled $98.2 million at December 31,2012, and decreased $36.8 million, or 27.3%),; ^ 
from $135.0 million at December 31,2011. The decrease was due to a $14.5 million decrease in retail deposit accounts, and' 
a $22.0 million decrease in brokered deposhs. Due to the low market interest rate environment, we were able to extend these 
maturities and reduce the weighted average cost of retail certificates of deposit from 1.6l%o at December 31,2011 to 1.51%) at 
December 31,2012. ;:i ; H ; . : , 

CFBank is a participant in the Certificate of Deposit Account Registry Service® (CDARS) program, a network of banks that 
allows us to provide our customers with FDIC insurance coverage on certificate of deposit accoimt balances up to $50> 
million. CDARS balances are considered brokered deposits by regulation: Brokered deposits, including CDARS balances, 
totaled $32.0 miUion at December 31, 2012, and decreased $22.0 miUion, or 40.8%), from $53.9 million at December 31, ,/ 
2011. The decrease in brokered deposits was based on CFBank's focus on increasing its retail deposits. We expect brokered 
deposits to continue to decrease as a result of CFBank's current focus on retail deposits. See the section titled "Liquidity and 
Capital Resources" for additional information regarding regulatory resttictions on brokered deposits.: 
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FINANCIAL CONDITION (Continued) 
Customer balances inthe CDARS program totaled $4.2 million at December 31,2012, arid decreased:$7.8 million, or 65.0%, 
from $12.0 million at December 31,2011. Since receipt ofthe CFBank Order in May'2011, we are prohibited from 
accepting or, untU recently, renewing brokered deposits, including CDARS balances. 

Interest bearing checking account balances totaled $10 million at December 31, 2012, and decreased $4.2 miUion, or 29.6%), 
from $14.2 million at December 31,2011. 

Savings account balances totaled $14.0 million at Deceriiber 31, 2012, and increased $0.6 million, or 4.5%) from $13.4 j 
million at December 31, 2011. 

Long-term FHLB advances: Long-term FHLB advances totaled $ 10.6 inUlion at December 31, 2012, and decreased $5.7 
million, or 36.5%, from $15.7 million at December 31, 2011, due to repayment of maturing advances. The advances were 
repaid with the fiinds from the increase in cash and cash equivalents and riot re-borrowed in accordance with the; Company's 
liquidity management program in order to maintain borrowing capacity with the FHLB. In May 2011, CFBank was notified 
by the FHLB that, due to regulatory considerations, CFBank was only eUgible for fiiture advances with a maximum maturity 
of one year. In April 2012, CFBank was notified by the FHLB that the maximum maturity for firture advances was fiirther 

reduced to 30 days. See the section titled "Liquidity and Capital Resources " for additional information regarding limitations 
on FHLB advances. 

Subordinated debentures. Subordinated debentures totaled $5.2 milUon at year-end 2012 and 2011. These debentures were 
issued in 2003 in exchange for the proceeds of a $5.0 million trast preferred securities offering issued by a trasf formed by 
the Company. The terms ofthe subordinated debentures allow for the Company to defer interest payments for a period not to 
exceed five years. The Company's Board of Directors elected to defer interest payrhents beginning with the quarterly interest 
payment due on December 30, 2010, in order to preserve cash at the Holding Company. Cumulative deferted interest 
payments through September 30, 2012, totaling $348,000 were paid current in December 20l2 with the approval of the FED. 
Cumulative deferred interest payments subsequent to Septeniber 30,2012, have been accraed and totaled $42^300 as of 
Deceniber 31, 2012. Gurriulative deferred interest payments were at $210,000 at December 31, 2011. Pursuant to the 
Holding Company Order, the Holding Company may not, directly or indirectly, incur, issue, renew, roUover or pay interest or 
principal on any debt (including the subordinated debentures) or commit to do so, increase any current lines of credit, or 
guarantee the debt of any entity, without prior written notice to and written non-objection from the FED. 

Stockholders' equity. Stockholders' equity totaled $23.6 miUion at December 31, 2012, and increased $13.7 million, or ; 
137.8%), from $9.9 million at December 31, 2011. The increase was primarily due to$20;3 mUlion in net proceeds from;the • 
stock offering, partially offset by $2.2 million related to redemption ofthe TARP obligations, $3.8 million net loss, $289;000" 
in preferred stock dividends related to the TARP Capital Purchase Program attributable to the period prior to redemption of 
the TARP obligation and a $279,000 decrease in unrealized gains in the securities portfolio. 

On August 20, 2012, the Company announced the successful completion of its common stock offering. The Company sold 
15.0 million shares of its common stock at $1.50 per share, resulting in gross proceeds of $ 22.5 million. See Note 2 to our 
consolidated financial statements included in this report for additional information regarding the common stock offering.: 

The Holding Company was a participant in the TARP Capital Purchase Program and issued $7.2 milUon ofthe Preferred^ ' 
Stock to the U.S. Treasury on December 5, 2008. In conjunction with the issuance of the Preferred Stock, the Holding 
Company also issued the U.S. Treasury a warrant to purchase 67,314 shares ofthe Company's common stock at an exercise 
priceOf$16;10 per share. The Company's participation in this program was retired on September 26, 2012 via a payoff' 
agreement with the Treasury Department whereby the holding Company utilized $3.0 million of the proceeds frOm its 
common stock offering to redeem the TARP obligations. SeCNotes 17 and 18 to our consolidated financialstatements 
included in this annual report for additional information regarding the status ofthe terminated TARP Preferred Stock and 
Common Stock Warrant program. 

COMPARISON OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR 2012 AND 2011 
General Net loss totaled $3.8 milUon for the year ended December 31, 2012. The discount on redemption of the TARP 
obligations increase eamings available to common stockholders by $5.0 miUion, which resulted in $.14 eamings per diluted 
common share despite the net loss for the year ended December 31, 2012. The net loss for the year ended December 31, 
2011, totaled $5.4 million or $(7.09) per diluted common share. 
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COMPARISON O F RESULTS OF OPERATIONS F O R 2012 AND 2011 (Continued) 
The $1.1 million provision for loan losses in 2012 reflected adverse economic conditions which continued to have a negative 
effect on loan perfomiance and resulted in continued high levels of nonperforming loans and loan charge-offs. • 
Nonperforming loans totaled $6.4 million,:or 4.02% of total loans at year-end 2012, compared to $8.3 million; or 5.28% of 
total loans at year-end 2011. Net loan charge-offs totaled $2.0 million, or 1.43%) of average loans for the year ended 
December 31,2012, compared to $7.0 million, or 4.14%) of average loans for the year ended December 31, 2011/. , • • -

The net loss in 2012 decreased $1.7 miUion compared to the net loss in 2011 due to a $2.2 mUlion decrease in the provision 
for loan losses and a $1.1 million decrease in noninterest expense, partially offset by a $1.5 milUon decrease in net interest 
income and a $118,000 decrease in other noninterest income. - , ' , 

The decrease in the provision for loan losses during 2012 was due to a decrease in nonperforming toans, classified and 
criticized loans, past due .loans and overall loan portfolio balances compared to 2011. The decrease in net interest income in 
2012 was due to a decrease in net interest margin,-which was negatively affected by the level of on-balance-sheet liquidity 
during the year, which was invested in low-yielding overnight investments, and a decrease in the, average balance ofloans 
outstanding as compared to 2011. The decrease in noninterest income in 2012 was primarily due to a decrease in netgains 

on sales of securities. The decrease in noninterest expense was primarily related to the reduction of professional fees, 
expenses relatedto problem assets, FDIC premiums and franchise taxes. , 

Net interest income. Net interest income is a significarit component of net income, and consists of the difference between 
interest income generated on interest-eaming assets and interest expense incurred on interest-bearing liabilities. Net interest 
income is primarily affected by the volumes,, interest rates and composition of interest-eaming assets and interest-bearing 
liabilities. The tables titled "Average Balances, Interest Rates and Yields "..and 'jRate/Volume Analysis of Net Interest 
Income ".provide important informatiori on factors impacting net interest incorne and should be read in conjunction with this 
discussion of net interest income. •, •, • ;, , 
Net interest margin, decreased to 2.22% during 2012, cornparedto 2.44% during 2011. The decrease in margin was due to a 
larger decrease in the yield on interest-eaming assets than in the cost of interest-bearing liabihties. Yield on average; interest-
eaming assets decreased 35 basis points (bp) in 2012 due to a decrease in higher-yielding loan and securities balances and an 
increase in lower-yielding other eaming asset balances, primarily short-term cash investments,that resulted from the increase 
in on-balance-sheet liquidity in 2011. Cost of average .interest-bearing liabilities decreased 10 bp primarily due to a decrease 
in deposit costs, which reflected the stistained low market interest rate environment and lower deposit pricing in 2012, and a 
decrease in the average balance of FHLB advances and other borrowings. 

Additional downward pressure on net interest margin could occur if the level of short-term cash investments remain at the 
current high level or increases, loan balances continue to decrease, nonperforming loans increase, downward repricing on 
existing interest-eaming assets and new loan production caused by sustained low market interest rates continues, or the; ; 
opportunity to decrease ftmding costs is unavailable. 

Net interest income decreased $1.5 million, or 25.0%, to $4.6 million in 2012, compared to $6.2 million in 2011. The 
decrease was due to a. 24.1% decrease in interest income, partially offset by a 24.3%) decrease in interest expense. Interest 
income decreased,due to a decrease in both the average yield and average balance of interest-eaming assets. The average 
yield on interest-eaming assets decreased to 3.48%) in 2012, from 3.82% in 2011. The decrease in average yield on interest-
eamingassets was due to a loan mix and loan repricing. Average interest-eaming assets decreased $44.6 million in 2012., 
The decrease in ayerage interest-eaming assets was due to a decrease in loan and securities balances. Interest expense 
decreased due to a decrease in both the average cost and average,balance of interest-bearing liabilities. The average cost of 
interest-bearing liabilities decreased to 1.3,7%) in 2012, from ,1.47%) in,2011. The decrease in average cost of interest-bearing 
liabilities was due to the sustainedlow market interest rates and reduced deposit pricingin the current year. Average interest-
bearing UabiUties decreased $44.8 milUon in 2012. The decrease in average interest-bearing UabiUties was primarily due to a 
decrease in deposits, and to a lesser extent, a decrease in FHLB advances and other borrowings. 

Interest income decreased $2.4 miUion, or 24.7%), to $7.3 million in 2012, compared to $9.7 million in 2011. The decrease in 
interest income was due to a decrease in income on loans and securities, partially offset by an increase in interest income on , 
other interest eaming assets. 
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COMPARISON OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR 2012 AND 2011 (Continued) 
Interest income on loans decreased $2.2 mUlion,; or 24.5%, to $6.8 million in 2012, compared to $9.0 million in 2011. The 
decrease in interest income on loans was due to both a decrease in average yield on loans and average loan balances. The 
average yield on loans decreased 24 bp to 5.06% in 2012, compared to 5.30% in 2011. The decrease in the average yield on 
loans was due to a decrease in loan balances with rates higher than current market rates due to repayments, lower market 
interest rates on new originations. 

Interest income on securities decreased $204,000, or 48.3%, to $218,000 in 2012, compared to $422,000 in2011. The 
decrease in interest income on securities was due to a decrease in both the average yield on securities and the average balance 
of securities. The average yield on securities decreased 53 bp to 1.28% in 2012, compared to 1.81% in 2011. The decrease 
in the average yield on securities was due to repayments on higher-yielding securities and securities purchases at lower 
market interest rates. The average balance of securities decreased $7.3 mUlion and totaled $16.6 million in 2012, compared 
to $23.9 milUon in 2011. The decrease in the average balance of securities was due to sales, maturities and repayments in 
excess of purchases. 

Interest income on Federalfunds sold and other eaming assets increased $17,000, or 11.2%, to $169,000 in 2012, compared 
to $152,000 in 2011. The increase in income was due to an increase iri the average balance of these other eaming assets 
associated with the increase in on-balance-sheet liquidity. The average balance of other eaming assets decreased $2.0 
miUion, or 3.5%, to $55.8 million in 2012, from $57.8 million in 2011. 

Interest expense decreased $845,000, or 24.3%, to $2.6 million in 2012, compared to $3.5 million in 2011. The decrease in 
interest expense was due to a decrease in lower deposit balances, primarily CDARS and brokered CDs and due to repayment 
of advances in 2012. 

Interest expense on deposits decreased $672,000, or 24.2%, to $2.1 million in 2012, compared to $2.8 million in 2011. The 
decrease in interest expense on deposits was due to a decrease in the average cost of deposits, and a decrease in average 
deposit balances. The average cost of deposits decreased 10 bp, to 1.20% in 2012, compared to 1.30% in 2011. The decrease 
in the average cost of deposits was due to sustained low market interest rates and reduced deposit pricing. Average deposit 
balances decreased $37.9, or 17.74%, to $175.8 million in 2012, compared to $213.8 million in 2011. The decrease in 
average deposit balances was primarily due to an decrease in certificate of deposit account balances, and, to a lesser extent, 
interest bearing checking and money market account balances. Management used certificate of deposit accounts, including 
brokered deposits, as one of CFBank's asset/liability management strategies to build on-balance-sheet liquidity and lock-in 
the cost of longer-term liabilities at low market interest rates prior to receipt of the CFBank Order in May 2011. Brokered 
deposits generally cost more than traditional deposits and can negatively impact the overall cost of deposits. The average 
cost of brokered deposits increased 9 bp to 1.84%) in 2012, from 1.75%) in 2011, and was higher than the average cost of 
deposits in both years. Average brokered deposh balances decreased $21.8 million, or 34.4%, to $41.5 million in 2012 from 
$63.2 million in 2011. The decrease in average brokered deposh balances was due to maturities after receipt ofthe CFBank 
Order that were not replaced due to the prohibition on acceptance and renewal of brokered deposits. See the section titled 
"Financial Condition - Deposits" for further information on brokered deposits, and the section titled "Liquidity and Capital 
Resources" for a discussion of regulatory resttictions on CFBank's use of brokered deposits. 

Interest expense on FHLB advances and other borrowings, including subordinated debentures, decreased $173,000, or 24.8%), 
to $525,000 in 2012, compared to $698,000 in 2011. The decrease in interest expense on FHLB advances and other 
borrowings, including subordinated debentures, was primarily due to a decrease in the average balance of these borrowings, 
and, to a lesser extent, an increase in the average cost of borrowings. The average balance of FHLB advances and other 
borrowings, including subordinated debentures, decreased $6.9 million, to $16.7 million in 2012, compared to $23.6 million 
in 2011. The decrease in average balances was due to the repayment of FHLB advances with funds from the increase in cash 
and cash equivalents. The average cost of FHLB advances and other borrowings, including subordinated debentures, 
increased 19 bp, to 3.14%) in 2012, compared to 2.95%o in 20l 1. The increase in average cost of borrowing was due to 
maturities of lower cost advances, partially offset by higher short-term interest rates that increased the cost associated with 
the subordinated debentures in 2012. 

Provision for loan losses. The provision for loan losses totaled $1.1 million in 2012, arid decreased $2.2 million, compared 
to $3.4 million in 2011. The decrease in the provision for loan losses in 2012 was due to a 23.4% decrease in nonperforming 
loans, a 31.1 % decrease in classified and criticized loans, a 42.1% decrease in past due loans and a .6%) increase in overaill 
loan portfolio balances compared to 2011. The level of the provision for loan losses during 2012 and 2011 was primarily a 
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COMPARISON OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR 2012 AND 2011 (Continued) 
result of adverse economic conditions in our market area that continue to negatively impact our borrowers, our loan ,; 
performance and our loan quality. See the section titled "Financial Condition - Allowance for loan losses" ior additional , , 
information. , • 

Net charge-offs totaled $2.0 million, or 1.49%) of average loans, in 2012, compared to $7.0 million, or 4.14%) of average 
loans, in 2011. The decrease in net charge-offs in 2012 was primarily in the multi-family residential real estate loan portfolio 
and, to a lesser extent, the commercial and commercial real estate portfolios. The following table=presents information 
regardingnetcharge-offs for 2012 and 2011. : i, , ; ' ' \ 
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(Dollars in thousands) 

Commercial 

Single-family residential real estate 

Multi-family residential real estate 

Commercial real estate 

Home equity lines of credit 

Other consumer loans 

Total 

2012 

: ' $ 

$ 

(281) 

55 

774 ; 

U 2 9 

109 

16 

2,002 

H • • 

2011 ; 

- $ 

$., 

1,082 

117 

3,158 

2,450,-

214 

5' 

7,026 

Noninterest income. Noninterest income totaled $1.0 miUion and decreased $118,000, or 10.5%), in 2012, compared to $1.1 
million in 2011. The decrease in noninterest income was primarily due to a $210,000 decrease in net gains on sales of : 
securities and a $26,000 decrease in service charges on deposit accounts partially offset by a $1 lOjOOO increase in net gains 
on sales of loans. 

Net gains on sales of securities totaled $143,000 and decreased $210,000, or 59.5%, in 2012 compared to $353,000 in 2011. 
The decrease in gains on sales of securities was primarily due to a $10.1 million decrease iri securities sold.- Securities sold 
totaled $2.1 miUion in 2012, compared to $12.2 in 2011. 

Net gains on sales ofloans totaled $404,000 and increased $110,000, or 37.4%, in 2012 compared to $294,000 in 2011. The 
increase in net gains on sales of loans in 2012 was due to improved pricing. Originations totaled $30.5 million in 2012, and 
decreased $5.6 million, or 15.5%, compared to $36.0 milUon in 2011. The decrease in originations was partially due to 
having fewer mortgage loan originators during most of 2012. The number/of originators has started to increase as a result of 
the capital raise and the resuhing plan to increase loans and mortgage production. As a result gains on sales of loans should 
increase. .,.;.;.,, 

Noninterest expense. Noninterest expense decreased $1.1 million, or 11.5%, and totaled $8-3 million in 2012, compared to 
$9.4 million in 2011. The decrease in noninterest expense was primarily due to decreases in foreclosed assets expense, FDIC 
premiums, franchise taxes, professional fees, advertising and promotion and depreciation expense. 

Foreclosed assets expense totaled $652,000 in 2012, compared to $1.2 milUon in 2011. The decrease was primarily related to 
$329,000 gain on sales of REO properties and lower write-downs!experiencedin2012. 

Occupancy and equipment expense decreased $9,000, or.3.24%, and totaled $269,000 in 2012, compared to $278,000 in 
2011. The decrease was primarily related to a decrease in common area maintenance expense. 

Director fees, decreased $62,000, or 34.3%; and totaled $119,0,00 in 2012, compared to $181,000 in 2011. The decrease was 
primarily related to the suspense ofdirector fees for the last quarter of 2012., . ' . 

FDIC premiums decreased $124,000, or 18.1%), and totaled $563,000 in 2012, compared to $687,000;in 2011. The decrease 
was primarily related to a lower assessment base. - , . 

Regulatory assessnient decreased $25,000, or 14.9%o, and totaled $143,000 in 2012, compared to $168,000 in2011. The 
lower assessment was primarily related to lower total assets in 2012. 

Other insurance increased $18,000, or 13.3%, and totaled $153,000 in 2012, compared to $135,000 in 201 l,;;The increase 
was primarily related to higher premiums resulting from CFBank's fmancial performance and regulatory issues. • 

Salaries and employee benefits decreased $137,000, or 3.4%, and-totaled $3.9 milUon in 2012, compared to $4.0 million in v 
2011. The decrease was primarily related to lower compensation costs due to lower staffing levels in the current year. 
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COMPARISON OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR 2012 AND 2011 (Continued) 
Data processing expense increased $19,000, or 3.3%, and totaled $588,000 in 2012, compared to $569,000 in 2011. The 
increase was primarily due to a one time implementation fee for a new product. ' 

Franchise taxes decreased $34,000 or 13.4%, and totaled $219,000 in 2012, compared to $253,000 in 2011. The decrease 
was due to lower equity at CFBank at December 31, 2011, which is the basis for 2012 state franchise taxes. 

Professional fees decreased $84,000, or 8.9%, and totaled $860^000 in 2012, compared to $944,000 in 2011. The decrease 
was primarily related to lower legal fees associated with regulatory issues offset by an increase in Registrar and Transfer fees 
related to the reverse stock spUt. Corporate and regulatory legal fees decreased $125,000, or 14.9%,, and totaled $42,000 in 
2012 compared to $167,000 in 2011. Management expects legal fees related to corporate and regulatory matters to continue 
at this level. 

Advertising and promotion decreased $7,000 or 18.9%,.and totaled $30,000 in 2012, compared to $37,000 in 2011. The 
decrease was due to management's decision to reduce expenditures for these items in the current year. 

Depreciation expense decreased $147,000, or 38:3%, and totaled $237,000 in 2012, compared to $384,000 in 2011.- The 
decrease was due to a number of assets being fully depreciated at December 31, 2011. 

The ratio of noninterest expense to average assets increased to 3.62%) in 2012, from 3.43%) in 2011. The efficiency ratio 
increased to 137.98% in 2012,-from 117.62% in 2011 due to a decrease in net interest income and noninterest income 
(excluding gains on sales of securities) in 2012. 

Income taxes. The Company recorded a deferred tax valuation allowance which reduced the deferred tax asset to zero 
beginning in 2009 and continuing through the year ended December 31, 2012. As such, there was no income tax benefit 
recorded for the year ended December 31, 2012. . , 

COMPARISON OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR 2011 AND 2010 
General Net loss totaled $5.4 milUon, or $7.09 per diluted common share, in 2011, compared to a net loss of $6.9 million, 
or $8.85 per diluted common share, in 2010. The net loss for 2011 was primarily due to a $3.4 miUion provision for loan 
losses and $1.2 million in foreclosed assets expense. The net loss for 2010 was primarily related to an $8.5 million provision 
forloanlosses. ' -

The $3.4 million provision for loan losses in 2011 reflected adverse economic conditioris which continued to have a negative 
effect on loan performance and resulted in continued high levels of nonperforming loans and loan charge-offs. 
Nonperforming loans totaled $8.3 million, or 5.28%) of total loans at year-end 2011, compared to $10.1 million,:Or 5.02%) of 
totalloans at year-end 2010. Net loan charge-offs totaled $7:0 milUon, or3.97%)Of average loans for the year ended 
December 31, 2011, compared to $5.8 milUon, or2.63%o of average loans for the year ended December 31, 2010. Foreclosed 
asset expense included a $1.1 million charge in 2011 related to a commercial real estate property held in foreclosed assets, as 
discussed previously. 

The net loss in 2011 decreased $1:4 inillion compared to the net loss in:20lO due to a $5.1 million decrease in the provision 
for loan losses, partially offset by a $2.2 million decrease in net interest income, a $671,000 decrease in other;noniriterest 
income and a $919,000 increase in rioninterest expense. ; 

The decrease in the provision for loan losses during 2011 was due to a decrease in nonperforming loans, classified and 
criticized loans, past due loans and overall loan portfolio balances compared to 2010. The decrease in net interest income in 
2011 was due to a decrease in net interest margin; which Was negatively affected by the level of on-balance-sheet liquidity, ;> 
which was invested in low-yielding ovemight investments, and a decrease in the average balance of loans outstandirig as 
compared to 2010. The decrease in other noninterest income in 2011 was primarily due to a decrease in net gains on sales of 
loans which resulted from lower loan production than in 2010. The increase in noninterest expense was primarily related to 
the $1.1 million Charge on foreclosed assets; 

Net interest income. Net interest income is a significant component of net income, and consists ofthe difference between 
interest income generated on interest-eaming assets and interest expense incurred on interest-bearirig liabilities. Net interest 
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COMPARISON OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR 2011 AND 2010 (Continued) 
income is primarily affected by the volumes, interest rates and composition of interest-eaming assets and interest-bearing 
UabiUties. The tables thled "Average Balances, Interest Rates and Yields " and "Rate/Volume Analysis of Net Interest 

Income " provide important information on factors impacting net interest income and should be read in conjunction with this 
discussion of net interest income. ; 

Net interest margin decreased to 2.44%) during 2011, compared to 3.18%) during 2010. The decrease in margin was due to a 
larger decrease in the yield on interest-eaming assets than in the cost of interest-bearing liabilities. Yield on average interest-
eaming assets decreased 94 basis points (bp) lri 2011 due to a decrease in higher-yielding loan and securities balances and an; 
increase in lower-yielding other eaming asset balances, primarily short-term cash investments that resulted from the increase 
in on-balance-sheet liquidity in 2011. Cost of average interest-bearing liabilities decreased 26 bp primarily due. to a decrease 
in deposh costs, which reflected the sustained low market interest rate environment and lower deposit pricing in 201-1, and a 
decrease in the average balance of FHLB advainces and other borrowings. Additional downward pressure on net interest^ 
margin could occur if the level of short-term cash investments remain at the current high level or increases, loan balances 
continue to decrease, nonperforming loans increase, downward repricing on existing interest-eaming assets and new loan-
production caused by sustained low market interest rates continues, or the opportunity to decrease funding costs is 
unavailable. ,-,:̂ ; 

Net interest income decreased $2.2 million, or 26.7%, to $6;2 milUonin 2011, compared to $8.4 million in 2010. The 
decrease was due to a 23.5%o decrease in interest income, partially offset by a 16.9%) decrease in interest expense. Interest 
income decreased due to a decrease in both the average yield and average balance of interest-eaming assets. The average 
yield on interest-eaming assets decreased to 3.82% in 2011, from 4.76% in 2010. The decrease in average yield on interest-
eaming assets was due to a decrease in average loan and securities balances and an increase in other eaming asset balances, 
primarily cash provided by the increase in on-balance-sheet liquidity, which generates lower yields than loans. Average 
interest-eaming assets decreased $12.4 million in 2011. The decrease in average interest-eaming assets was dueto a decrease 
in loan and securities balances, partially offset by an increase in other interest eaming assets, primarily cash. Interest expense 
decreased due to adecrease in both the average cost and average balance of interest-bearing liabilities. The average cost of ' 
interest-bearing UabiUties decreased to 1.47% in 2011, from 1.73% in 2010. The;decrease in average cost of interest-bearing 
liabilities was due to the sustained low market interest rates and reduced deposit pricing in the current year. Average interest-
bearing liabilities decreased $4.8 milUonin 2011. The decrease in average interest-bearing liabilities was primarily due to a 
decrease in FHLB advances and other borrowings, partially offset by an increase in deposits. ;• 
Interest income decreased $2.9 milUon, or 23.5%, to $9^7 miUion in 2011, compared to $12.6 million in 2010. The decrease 
in interest income was due to a decrease in income on loans and securities, partially offset by an increase in interest income 
on other interest eaming assets. ! 

Interest income on loans decreased $2.8 mUlion, or 23;8%, to $9.0 miUiori in 2011, compared to $11.8 milUon in 2010. The :• 
decrease in interest income ori loans was due to both a decrease in average yield ou; loans and average loan balances. The 
average yield on loans decreased 20 bp to 5.30% in 2011, compared to 5.50% in 2010. The decrease in the average yield on . 
loans was due to a decrease in loan balances with rates higher than current market rates due to repayments, lower market 
interest rates on new originations, redeployment of fiinds from loan repayments into other assets and downward repricing on 
adjustable-rate loans. Average loan balances decreased $44.9 million, or 20.9%, and totaled $169:8 million in 2011, 
compared to $214.7 niillion in 2010. The decrease in average loan balances was due to $7.5 ihilUon in loan write-offs and 
principal repayments and loan payoffs greater than new loan originations. 

Interest income on securities decreased $236,000, or.35.9%), to$422,000 in 2011, compared to $658,000 in 2010: The 
decrease in interest income on securities was due to a decrease in both the average yield on securities and the average balance 
of securities. The average yield on securities decreased 88 bp to 1.81% in 2011, cornparedto 2.69% in 2010. The decrease 
in the average yield on securities was due to repayments on higher-yielding securities and securities purchases at lower 
market interest rates. The average balance of securities decreased $1.3 million and totaled $23.9 million in 2011, compared 
to $25.2 million in 2010. The decrease in the average balance of securities was due to sales, maturities and repayments in 
excess of purchases. 

Interest income on Federal funds sold and other eaming assets increased $91,000, or 149.2%, to $152,000 in 2011, compared 
to $61,000 in 2010. The increase in income was due to an increase in the average balance of these other eaming assets 
associated with the increase in on-balance-sheet liquidity. The average balance of other eaming assets increased $33.8 
miUion, or 141.1%o, to $57.8 million in;2011, from $24.0 million in 2010. 
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Interest expense decreased $705,000, or 16.9%), to $3.5 miUion in 2011, compared to,$4.2 million in 2010. The decrease in 
interest expense was due to a decrease in the average cost of deposits and a decrease in both the average cost and average-
balance of borrowings, partially offset by an increase in average deposit balances. 

Interest expense on deposits decreased $538,000, or 16.2%), to $2.8 million in 2011, compared to $3.3 million in 2010. The 
decrease in interest expense on deposits was due to a decrease in the average cost of deposits, partiaUy offset by an increase 
in average deposh balances. Theaveragecost of deposits decreased 26 bp, to 1,30%) in 2011, compared to 1.56%) in2010: 
The decrease in the average cost of deposits was due to sustained low market interest rates and reduced deposit pricing. 
Average deposit balances increased $810,000, or .4%, to $213.8 million in 2011, compared to $213.0 milUon in 2010. The 
increase in average deposit balances was primarily due to an increase in certificate of deposit account balances, and, to a,; 
lesser extent, interest bearing checking account and savings account balances, partially offset by a decrease in money market; 
account balances. Managementusedcertificateof deposit accounts, including brokered deposits, as one of CFBank's 
asset/liability management strategies to build on-balance-sheet liquidity and lock-iri the cost of longer-term liabilities at low 
market interest rates prior to receipt of the CFBank Order in May 2011. Brokered deposits generally cost more than 
tradhional deposits and can negatively irnpact the overall cost of deposits. The average cost of brokered deposits decreased 
22bpto 1.75%o in 2011, from 1.97%) in 2010, and was higher than the average, cost ofdeposits in both years. Average 
brokered deposit balances decreased $6:4 million, or 9.2%, to $63.2 million in 2011 from $69.6 million in 2010. The 
decrease in average brokered deposit balances was due to maturities after receipt ofthe CFBank Order that were not replaced 
due to the prohibition on acceptance and renewal of brokered deposits. See the section titled '.'Financial Condition -
Deposits" for further information on brokered deposits, and the section titled "Liquidity and Capital Resources" for a 
discussion of regulatory restrictions on CFBank's use,ofbrokei-ed deposits. 

Interest expense on FHLB advances and other borrowings, including subordinated debentures, decreased $167;000, or 19.3%), 
to $698,000 in 2011, compared to $865,000 in 2010. The decrease in interest expense on FHLB advances and other 
borrowings, including subordinated debentures, was primarily due to a decrease in fhe average balance of these borrowings, 
and, to a lesser extent, adecrease inthe average cost of borrowings. The average balance of FHLB advances and other 
borrowings„including subordinated debentures, decreased $5.7 miUion, to $23.6 million in 2011, compared to,$29.3 million 
in 2010. The decrease in average balances-was due to the repayment of FHLB advances with funds from the increase in cash 
and cash equivalents. The average cost of FHLB advances and other borrowings, including subordinated debentures, 
decreased 1 bp,.to 2.95%) in 2011, compared to 2.96%) in 2010. The decrease in average cost was due to maturities of higher 
cost advances, partially offset by higher short-term interest rates that increased the cost associated with the subordinated 
debentures in: 2011. 

Provision for loan losses. The provision for loan losses totaled $3.4 million in 2011, and decreased $5.1 milliori, compared 
to $8.5 million in 2010. The decrease in the provision for loan losses in 2011 was due to a 17.5%) decrease in nonperforming 
loans, a 15.9% decrease in classified and criticized loans, a32.9%o decrease in past due loans and a 21.6%) decrease in overall 
loan portfolio balances compared to 2010. The level of the provision for loan losses during 2011 and 2010 was primarily a 
result of adverse economic conditions in. our market area that continue to negatively impact our borrowers, our loan 
performance and our loan quality. See the section titled "Financial Condition-Allowance for loan losses" for additional 
information: . ; : . . 

Net charge-offs totaled $7.0 million, or.3.97%) of average loans, in 2011, compared to $5.8 mUlion, or 2.63%) of average 
loans, in 2010. The increase in net charge-offs in 2011 was primarily in the multi-family residential real estate loanportfolio, 
partially offset by a decrease in net charge-offs in the commercial, commercial real estate and home equity lines of credit 
portfolios. The increase in net charge-offs resulted from our ongoing loan workout efforts and were primarily related to sales 
ofthe underlying collateral. The increase in net charge-offs did not result in an increase in the provision for loan losses due 
to the decrease in nonperforming loans, classified and criticized loans, past due loans and overall loan portfolio balances. The 
following table presents information regarding net charge-offs for 2011 and 2010. •. 
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(Dollars in thousands) -

Commercial 

Single-family residential real estate 

Multi-family residential real estate 

Commercial real estate 

Home equity lines of credit 

Other consumer loans 

Total , 

..-$̂ ; 

,% 

2011 

1,082 

117 

3,158 

2,450 

- 214 

'• ' 5 • • 

7,026 

- $.. 

. $ 

2010 

, 1,549 

118 

203 

3,046 

820 

74 

5,810. 

Noninterest income. Noniriterest income totaled $1.1 million and decreased $671,000, or 37.4%, in 2011, compared to $ 1.8 
million in 2010. The decrease in noninterest income was primarily due to a $115,000 decrease in net gains on sales of 
securities and a $572,000 decrease in net gains, on sales of loans. 

Net gams on sales of securhies totaled $353,000 and decreased $115,000, or 24.6%), in 2011 cornparedto $468,000 in 2010. 
The decrease in gains on sales of securities was primarily due to a $1.4 million decrease in securities sold. Securities sold 
totaled $12.2 miUion in 2011, conipared to $13.6 in 2010. The gains on sales positively impacted CFBank's core capital ratio 
and total risk-based capital ratio in both years. Securities sold in 2010 were primarily 20%) risk-weighted assets which were 
reinvested in 0%) risk-weighted assets to improve CFBank's total risk-based capital ratio. Reinvestment ofthe security sales 
proceeds had a negative impact on interest income in due to reinvestment at lower market interest rates. 

Net gains on sales ofloans totaled $294,000 and decreased $572,000, or 66.1%, in 201 Icompared to $866,000 in 2010. The 
decrease in net gains on sales ofloans in 2011 was due to lower mortgage loan originations and; consequently, fewer loan 
sales, than in 2010. Originations totaled $3,6.0 million in 2011, and decreased $43.5 million; oV 54.7%), compared to $79.5 
million in 2010. The decrease in originations was partiaUy due to having six fewer mortgage loan originators in the current 
year. The number of originators decreased as a result of attrition and termination of originators with low production. 
Additionally, the First-Time Home Buyer Credh, which was extended for purchases made through April 30, 2010 by The 
Worker, Homeownership and Business Assistance Act of 2009, positively impacted originations in 2010. If market mortgage 
interest rates increase or the housing marke;t deteriorates fiirther, mortgage production and resultant gains on sales of loans 
could decrease. 

Noninterest expense. Noninterest expense increased $919,000, or 10.9%o, and totaled $9.4 miUion in2011, compared to $8.4 
million in 2010. The increase in noninterest expense was primarily due to an increase in foreclosed assets expense, which 
included a $1.1 million charge related to a commercial real estate property held in foreclosed assets, as previously discussed. 
Other expense categories that increased in 2011 included occupancy and equipment expense, director fees, FDIC premiums, 
regulatory assessment and other insurance. Increases in these expenses were partially offset by decreases in other expense 
categories, including salaries and employee benefits, data processing, franchise taxes, professional fees, advertising and 
promotion and depreciation expense. 

Foreclosed assets expense totaled $1:2 milUon in 2011, compared to $4,000 in 2010. The increase was primarily related to 
the $1.1 million charge related to.a commercial real estate property held in foreclosed assets, as previously discussed. In 
addition to this charge, the increase included expenses related to maintenance of foreclosed properties, including real estate 
taxes, utilities and other fees. Management expects that foreclosed assets expense may continue at current levels, net ofthe 
current period charge, or increase as we continue our workout efforts related to current foreclosed assets and nonperforming 
and other loans with credit issues, which may result in additional foreclosed properties. 

Occupancy and equipment expense increased $75,000, or 36.9%o, and totaled $278,000 in 2011, compared to $203,000 in 
2010. The increase was primarily related to property taxes at our Worthington office. 

Director fees increased $44,000, or 32.1%>, and totaled $181,000 in 2011, compared to $137,000 in 2010. Theincrease was 
primarily related to a $50,000 increase in fees paid to the Chairman ofthe Board, who is independent of management, for 
additional duties since his election to chairmanship in June 2010. 

CENTRALFEDERALGORPORATION 2012 ANNUAL REPORT :|,page-23. 



COMPARISON OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR 2011 AND 2010 (Continiied) 
FDIC premiums increased $106,000, or 18.2%), and totaled $687,000 in 2011, compared to $581,000 in 2010. The increase 
wasprimarilyrelated to a higher assessment rate in the current year as a result of CFBank's regulatory issues. ; ;;, 

Regulatory assessment increased $48,000, or 40.0%, and totaled $168;000 in 2011, compared to $120,000 in 2010. The 
higher assessment was primarily related to lower ratings from regulators compared to 2010. 

Other insurance increased $72,000, or 114.3%, and totaled $135,000 in2011, compared to $63,000 in 2010. The increase 
was primarily related to higher premiums resulting from CFBank's financial performance and regulatory issues. 

Salaries and employee benefits decreased $168,000, or 4.0%), and totaled $4.0 million in 2011, compared to $4.2 million in • 
2010. The decrease was primarily related to lower compensation costs due to lower staffing levels in the current year., , 

Dataiprocessing expense decreased $56,000, or 9.0%,.and totaled $5.69,000 in 20ll , compared to,:$625,000 in 2010. The 
decrease was primarily due to lower transaction processing Costs. 

Franchise taxes decreased $85,000; or 25n%), and totaled $253,000, in 2011, compared to $338,000in2010; The decrease -
was due to lower equity at CFBank at December 31,2010, which is the basis for 2011 state franchise taxes:-

Professional fees decreased $51,000, orS.P/o, and totaled $944;000in 2011, compared to $995,000 in 2010. The decrease' 
was primarily related to a decrease in other professional fees partially ioffset by an increase in corporate and regulatory legal 
costs and recraiting expense. Other professional fees decreased $92,000, or 43.0%), and totaled $122,000 in 2011, compared 
to $214,000 in 2010. Thedecrease in other professional fees was primarily related to additionalindependent loan reviews 
included in expense in 2010 and a lower expense related to recurring semi-annual loan reviews in the current period. 
Corporate and regulatory legal fees increased $ 17,000, or 11.4%, and totaled $ 167,000 in 20l 1, compared to $ 149,000 in 
2010. Management expects legal fees related to corporate and regulatory matters to continue at this level or increase as a 
result of the Orders. It is possible that regulatory compliance:expenses related to the Orders could have a material adverse 
impact on us in the^fiiture.' Recraiting expense increased $21,000 and totaled $27,000 in 2011, compared to $6,000 in 2010. 
The increase in recraiting expensewas related to a commercial loan originator hired in 2011.. Loan related legal costs totaled 
$475,000 in 2011 and 2010. Managernent expects loan related legal costs to continue at current levels or increase as we 
continue workout efforts on our problem-loansJ ' ' :}' " 

Advertising and promotion decreased $70";000,-or 65 ;4%), and totaled $37,000 in 2011, compared to $107,000 in 2010. The 
decrease was due to management's decision to reduce expenditures for these itehisin the current year. 

Depreciation expense decreased $124,000, or 24.4%, and totaled $384,000 in 2011, compared to $508,000 in 2010. The 
decrease was due to assets being fully depreciated at December 31, 2010. ;- ,. ; . 

The ratio of noninterest expense to average assets increased to 3.43% in 2011, from 2.96%) in 2010. The ratio ofnbninterest 
expense to average,assets for the year ended December 31; 2011 was significantly impacted by thei$ 1.4 million.charge on * 
foreclosed assets. The efficiency ratio increased.to 117:62%) in 2011, from 85.98%) in 2010 due to a decrease in net interest ^ 
income and noninterest income (excluding gains on sales of securities) in 2011. 

Income taxes. The Company recorded a deferred tax valuation allowance which reduced the deferred tax asset to zero 
beginning in 2009 and continuing through the year ended December 31, 2011. As such, there was no income taxbenefit: • 
recorded for the year ended December 31, 2011. The tax expense of $198,000 recorded for the year ended Deceriiber 31; 
2010 was related to the tax; impact of securities transactions, offset by the valuation allowance on the tax effect associated 
with vesting of stock compensation awards that were granted prior to 2009. ; . : , . , 

Average Balances, Interest Rates and Yieldsi / ; 
The following table presents, for the periods indicated, the total dollar amount of fully taxable equivalent interest income 
from average interest-earning assets and the resultant yields, as well as the interest expense on average interest-bearing 
liabilities, expressed in both dollars and rates. Average balances are computed usirig irionth-end balances. 
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COMPARISON OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR 2011 ANO 2010 (Continued) 

(Dollarsin Thousands) - . . . . For the Years Ended December 31, 

''* Average balance is computed using the carrying value of securities, .• ;•: , -
Average yield is computed using the historical amortized cost average balance for available for sale securities, 

*̂ ' Average yields and interest earned are stated on a fully taxable equivalent basis. 
'" Average balance is computed using the recorded investment in loaris net ofthe ALLL and incliides nonjjerforming 

Interest-earning assets: 
Securities"*'^* 
Loans and loans held for 

sale <'* 
Other eaming assets 
FHLB stock 

Total interest-eaming 
assets 

Noninterest-eaming assets 
Total assets 

Interest-bearing 
liabilities: 

Deposits 
FHLB advances and other 

borrowings 
Total interest-bearing 
liabilities 

Noninterest-bearing 
liabilities 
Total liabilities 

Equity 
Total liabilities and 

, equity 

•Netinterest-eaming assets 
Net interest 

income/interest rate 
spread 

Net interest margin 
Average interest-eaming 

assets 
to average interest-
bearing liabilities 

2012 
Average 

Outstanding 
Balance 

$ 16,632 

134,397 
55,772 

1,942 

208,743 
19,96§ 

$ 228,712 

$ 175,840 

16,714 

192,554 

20,653 
213,207 

15,505 

$ 238,712 

$ 16,189 

108.41% 

Interest 
Earned/ 

Paid 

S 218 

6,795 
169 
86 

7,268 

2,108 

525 

2,633 

$ 4,635 " 

Average 
Yield/ ; 
Rate 

1.28% 

5.06% 
0.30% -
4.43% 

3:48% 

1.20% 

3.14% 

1.37% 

2.11% 
2.22% 

2011 
Average 

" Outstanding 
Balance 

$ 23,886 

169,771 
57,769 

1,942 

253,368 
19,441 

S 272,809 

$ 213,762 

23,639 

237,401 

22,700 
260,101 

12,708 

,,$, 272,809 

,$ ; 15,9:67 ;. 

- 106,73% 

Interest . 
Eamed/ 

Paid 

$ '• 422 

8,999 
152 

" 83' ' 

9,656 

2,780 

698 

3,478 

$ 6,178 

Average 
'• Yield/ 
- R a t e 

1,81% ' 

5,30% 
0,26% 

' • 4,27% " 

3,82% 

1.30% 

2.95% 

- 1,47%" 

2.35% 
2,44% 

2010 
.Average 

' Outstanding 
. Balance 

$ 25,160 

• 214,747 
23,960 

1,942 

. 265,809 
19,039 

$ 284,848 

S 212,952 

': 29,264 

242,216 

23,289 
265,505 

' 19,343 

$ .284,848 

S ..23,593 

• 109.74% ' 

Interest 
Eamed/ 

Paid 

$ 658 

11,813 
61 . 
85 

12,617 

3,318 

865 

4,183 

$ , 8,434 

Average 
Yield/ 
Rate 

2,69% 

5.50% 
;0:25% 

.' 4;38% 

4,76% 

,1,56% 

2,^6% 
• 1 . . 

1,73% 

• - 1 • • -

- , • • 1 ' ' 

3.03% 
3,18% 

loans. 
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COMPARISON O F RESULTS O F OPERATIONS FOR 2011 AND 2010 (Continued) 
Rate/Volume Analysis of Net Interest Income. 
The following table presents the dollar amount of changes in interestincome and interest expense, for niajorconiponents of, 
interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities. It distinguishes between the increase and decrease related to changes in 
balances and/or changes in interest rates. For each category of interest-eariiing assets and interest-bearing UabiUties, 
information is provided on changes attributable to (i) changes in volume (i.e., changes in volume multiplied by the prior rate) 
and (ii) changes in rate (i.e., changes in rate multiplied by prior volume). For purposes ofthis table, changes attributable to 
both rate and volume which cannot be segregated have been allocated proportionately to the change due to volume and the 
change due to rate. 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Interest-earning assets: 
Securities "^ 
Loans and loans held for sale 
Other eaming assets 
FHLB stock 

Total interest-eaming assets 

Interest-bearing liabilities: 
Deposits 
FHLB advances and other 

borrowings 

Total interest-bearing liabilities 

Net change in net interest income 

Yeai Ended 
December?!, 2012 

Conipaivd 111 Year Lmlttl 
December 31.2011 

lncrea-.c (decrea-c) 
due to 

Raie 

S (IOO) 
(400) 

22 
3 

(475) 

(205) 

42 

(163) 

•;. (^12; 

\'olume 

S 104) 
(1.804) 

(51 

(1.91.3) 

(467) 

(215) 

(6X2) 

S (1.231) 

Not 

% (204) 
(2,204) 

17 
3 

(2,3X8) 

(6-'2) 

(173) 

(845) 

S (1.543) 

Year Ended 
December 31, 2011 

Compared to Year Ended 
December 31,2010 

Increase (decrease) 
due to 

Rate 

$ (205) 
. (417) 

2 
• (2 ) 

; ' (622) 

(551) 

(4) 

(555) 

S (67) 

Volume 

$ (31) 
(2,397), 

89 

(2,339) 

13 

(163) 

(150) 

, $ (2,189) 

,-,Net 

$ (236) • 
(2,814) 

91 
(2) 

(2,961) 

f ,(538) 

(167) 

(705), 

. .$ , (2,256)., , 

*'* Securities amounts are presented on a fully taxable equivalent basis. 

.QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES.ABOUT MARKET RISK; 
Market risk is the risk of loss from adverse changes in market prices and interest rates. We have not engaged in and, 
accordingly, have no risk related to trading accounts, commodities or foreign exchange. Our hedging policy allows hedging 
activities, such as interest-rate swaps, up to a notional amount of 10%) of total assets and a value at risk of 10%) of core 
capital. Disclosures about our hedging activities are set forth in Note 20 to our consolidated financial statements, the 
Company's market risk arises primarily from interest rate risk inherent in our lending, investing, deposit gathering and 
borrowing activities. The measurement of market risk associated with financial insfruments is meaningful only when aU 
related and offsetting on- and off-balance-sheet fransactions are aggregated and the resulting net positions are identified. 
Disclosures about fair value are set forth in Note 6 to our consoUdated financial statements. 
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QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK (Continued) • -
Management actively monitors and manages interest rate risk. The primary objective in managing interest rate risk is to j ' ^ 
limit, within estabUshed guidelines, the adverse impact of changes in interest rates on our net interest income arid capital^ We 
measure the effect ofinterest rate changes on CFBank's economic value of equity (EVE), which is the difference betweeh the 
estimated market value of its assets and liabilities under different interest rate scenarios. The change in the EVE ratio is a 
long-term measure of what might happen to the market value of financial assets and UabUhies over time if interest rates -
changed instantaneously and the Company did not change existing strategies. At December 31, 2012, CFBank's EVE ratios,; 
using interest rate shocks ranging from a 400 bp rise in rates to a 200 bp decline in rates are shown in the following tablel Ml 
values are within the acceptable range established by CFBank's Board of Directors. , 

Economic Value of Equity as a Percent of Assets (CFBank c 

Basis Point Change in Rates 

+400 
+300 
+200 
+100 

0 
, -100 

-200 

)nly) 

EVE Ratio 

,14.50% 
14.30% 
14:00% 
13.60% 

' ; : .13.20% 
12.40% 

.11.90% 

In evaluating CFBank's exposure to interest rate risk, certain shortcomings inherent in the method of analysis presented in 
the foregoing table must be considered. For example, the table indicates results based oh changes in the level ofinterest 
rates, but not changes in the shape of the yield curve. CFBank also has exposure to changes in the shape ofthe yield curve. 
Although certain assets and liabilities may have similar maturities or periods to which they reprice, they may react in 
different degrees to changes in market interest rates. The interest rates on certain types ofassets and liabilities may fluctuate 
in advance of changes in iriarket interest rates, while interest rates on other types may lag behirid changes in market rates: In 
the event of a change in interest rates, prepayments and early withdrawal levels would likely deviate significantly from those 
assumed in calculating the table. The ability of many borrowers to service their debt may decrease when interest rates rise. 
As a result, the actual effect of changing interest rates may differ materially from that presented in the foregoing table. 

Changes in levels of market interest rates could malterially and adversely affect our net interest income, loan volume, asset 
quality, value of loans held for sale and cash flows; as well as the market value of our securities portfolio and overall ; 
profitability. , ; , 

We continue to originate most fixed-rate single-family residential real estate loans for sale rather than retain long-term, low 
fixed-rate loans in portfolio. Residential mortgajge loan Origination volumes are affected by market interest rates on loans. 
Rising interest rates generally are associated with a lower volume of loan originations, while faUing interest rates are usually 
associated with higher loan originations. ;Our ability'to generate gains on sales of mortgage loans is significantly dependent 
on the level of originations. Changes in interest rates, prepayment speeds and other factors may also cause the value ofour . 
loans held for sale to change: , •; - • 

We originate commercial, commercial real estate and muhi-family residential real estate mortgage loans for our portfolio, 
which, in many cases, have adjustable interest rates. Many of these loans have interest-rate floors, which protect income to 
CFBank should rates continue to fall. While adjustable-rate loans better offset the adverse effects of an increase in interest 
rates as compared to fixed-rate loans, the increased payments required of adjustable-rate loan borrowersupon an interest rate 
adjustment in a rising interest rate environment could cause an increase in delinquencies and defaults. The marketability of ;; 
the underlying property also may be adversely affected in a rising interest rate environment. 

Cash flows are affected by changes iri market interest rates: Generally, in rising interest rate environments, loan prepayment 
rates are likely to decline, and in falling interest rate environments, loan prepayment rates are likely to increase. 

Due to the current historic low levelof market interest rates in 2010 through 2012, the terms of some liabilities were 
extended to fix their cost at low levels and to protect net interest margin should interest rates rise. See the section titled 
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QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK (Continued) 
"Financial Condition -Deposits" for information regarding the use of brokered deposits to extend liabilities and increase on-" 
balance-sheet liquidity.. .;:y. , . , , „; 

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES r 
In general terms, liquidity is a rneasureirient of an enterprise's abiUty to meet cash needs; The primary objective in liquidity ' 
inanagement is to maintain the ability to meet loari commitments and to repay deposits a:nd other liabilities in accordance 
with their terms without an adverse impact ori current or future eamings. Principal sources df funds are deposits; . - • ~" 
amortization and prepayments of loans;, maturities, sales and! principal receipts of securities available for sale; borrowings; 
and operations. While maturities.and scheduled amortization ofloans are predictable sources of funds, deposit flows and 
loan prepayments are greatly influenced by general interest rates, economic conditions and competition. 

CFBank is required by regulation to maintain sufficient liquidity to ensure its safe and sound operation. Thus, adequate 
liquidity may vary depending on CFBank's overall asset/liability stmcmre, market conditions, the activities of competitors, 
the requirements of our own deposit and loan customers and regulatory considerations. Management belieyes that CFBank's 
liquidity is sufficient. 

Liquidity management is both a daily and long-term responsibility of management. We adjust our investments in liquid 
assets, primarily cash, short-term investments and other assets that are widely traded in the secondary market, based on our 
ongoing assessment of expected loan demand, expected deposit fiows, yields available on interest-eaming deposits and 
securities and the objective of our asset/liability management-program. In addition to-liquid assets, we have other sources of 
liquidity available including, but not limited tO, access to advances from the FHLB and borrowings from the FRB. 

The following table summarizes CFBank's cash":'available froin liquid assets and borrowing capacity at Deceriiber 31, 2012 ; 
a n d 2 0 V l . • •^"'- • ' • ' ^ - ' • ^- - • - - ' ^ • • . - ' - ' -• " \ - - ' • " - ^ 

(Dollars in thousands) /> r 

.: , . : . 

Cash, unpledged securities and deposits in other financial institiitions 

Additional borrowing,capacity at the FHLB;. , : 

Additional borrowing capacity at the FRB 

Unused commercial bank Une of credit 

Total ....:,, . . , 

,.•>•> 2012' 

$ 

32,396 

7,460 

14,859 

1,000 

55,715 

. . / • ' : '20 l l , 

$''" 

, $-

; 63,959 

3,503 

fl4,764 

' 1,000 

., 83,226 : 

As a resuh of the losses in 2009, 2010 and thefirst quarter of 2011, management was concemed that CFBank would be ,. 
restricted from accepting or renewing brokered deposits, in addition to other regulatory restrictions, and nioved aggressively 
prior to receipt ofthe CFBank Order in May 2011 to build Uquidity to deal with the leyeUof nonperforming; assets, potential, 
retail deposit outflow and potential decreased boirowing capacity from the FHLB and the FRB. Cash available from liquid 
assets and borrowing capacity decreased $27.5 mUUon, or 33%, to $55.7 miUion at December 31, 2012 from $83.2 miUion at 
December 31, 2011, impacted by CFBank's $13.7million increase in equity related to the Holding Coiripany's $22.5 million 
stock offerings excluding,expenses. ; , ,- • • , ; ' ' v ' - - • /• 

Cash, unpledged securities and deposits in other fmancial institutions decreased $31.6 million, or 49.3%), duririg 2012. The ; 
decrease was primarily due tO brokered and retail deposits maturities, and the.mortgage purchase prograni. ; 

CFBank's additional borrowing capacity with the FHLB increased to $7.5 million at December 31, 2012 from $3.5 milUon at 
December 31, 2011 primarily due. to repayment of $5.7 milUonin maturing advances^ partially offset by a decrease in the : 
balance of eUgible loans pledged as collateral for advances. In April 2012, CFBank was notified by the FHLB that, due to 
regulatory considerations, CFBank is only eligible for future advances with a maximum maturity of 30 days. 
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES (Continued) 
CFBank's additional borrowing capacity at the FRB increased to $14.9 million at December 31,2012 from $14.8 miUion at 
December 31, 2011. In addition, CFBank is once again eligible for participating in the FRB's primary credh program, 
providing CFBank access:to short-term funds at any time, for any reason, based on the collateral pledged. -, 

CFBank's borrowing capacity with both the FHLB and FRB may be negatively impacted by changes such as, but not limited 
to, fiirther tightening of credh policies by the FHLB or FRB, deterioration in the credit performance of CFBank's loan 
portfolio or CFBank's financial performance, or a decrease in the balance of pledged collateral. 
CFBank had a $ 1.0 million unused line of credit with one commercial bank at December 31, 2012 and 2011. 

Deposits are obtained predominantly from the areas in which CFBank offices are located. We rely primarily on a willingness 
to pay market-competitive interest rates to attract and retain retail deposits. As a result ofthe CFBank Order, we are 
prohibited from offering above-market interest rates and are subject to market rates published by the FDIC when offering' 
deposits to the general public. Accordingly, rates offered by competing financial institufions may affect our ability to atfraict 
and retain deposits. Liquidity could be sigriificantly impacted by the limitations on rates we can offer on deposits to the ; 
general public. ' ' r 

Prior to receipt ofthe CFBank Order in May 2011, we used brokered deposits as an element of a diversified funding sfrategy 
and an altemative to borrowings. As a result ofthe CFBank Order, we are prohibited from accepting or renewing brokered 
deposits without FDIC approval. We have the ability to seek wholesale deposits that are not considered brokered deposits.: 
At December 31, 2012, CFBank had $32.0 million in brokered deposits with maturity dates from January 2013 through j 
August 2016. At December 31,-2012, cash, unpledged securities and deposits in other financial institutions totaled $32.3 j 
million and were sufficient to cover aU brokered deposit maturities. ; ?' , 

The prohibition on brokered deposits limits CFBank's ability to participate in the CDARS program and impacts our liquidity 
management. Although CFBank customers participa:te in the CDARS program, CDARS deposits are considered brokered 
deposits by regulation. We expect brokered deposits, including customer deposits in the CDARS program to continue to ' 
decrease as a result of the prohibhion on brokered deposits contained in the CFBank Order and due to CFBank's focus on 
lower cost retail deposits. '• 

CFBank relies on competitive interest rates, customer service, and relationships with customers to retain deposit's;- To 
promote and stabilize liquidity in the banking and financial services sector, the FDIC, as included in the Dodd-Frank Act as 
previously discussed, permanently increased deposh insurance coverage froin $100,000 to $250,000 per depositor. CFBank 
is a participant in the FDIC's program which provides unlimited deposit insurance coverage, through December 31, 2012, for 
noninterest bearing transaction accounts. Based on our historical experience with deposit retention, current retention 
sfrategies and participation in programs offering addhional FDIC insurance protection, we believe that, although his not 
possible to predict future terms and conditions upon renewal, a significant portion Of existing non-brokered deposits may' 
remain with CFBank. Deposit retention may be negatively impacted by other factors, including, but not limited tO, addhional 
restrictions or penalties imposed by regulators pursuant to the Orders. 

The Holding Company, as a savings and loan holding company, has more limhed sources of liquidity than CFBank. In 
general, in addition to its existing liquid assets, sources of Uquidity include funds raised in the securities markets through "debt 
or equity offerings, dividends received from its subsidiaries or the sale ofassets: Pursuant to the Holding Company Order, the 
Holding Company may not, directly or indirectly, incur, issue, renew, rollover, or pay interest or principal on any debt or 
commit to do so, increase any current lines of credit, or guarantee the debt ofany entity, without prior written riotice to and 
written non-objection from the FED. In addition, the Holding Company may not declare; make, or pay any cash dividends or 
other capital distributions or purchase, repurchase or redeem or commit to purchase, repurchase, or redeem any Holding 
Company equity stock without the prior written non-objection ofthe FED. The Holding Company Order does not restrict the 
Holding Company's ability to raise funds in the securities markets through equity offerings. See the section thled "Financial 
Condition - Stockholders' equity" for a discussion ofthe registered common stock offering announced by the Company.' 

The Holding Company at December 31, 2012, as a result of the Capital Raise^ has adequate ftinds to meet its operating 
expenses for several years. The Holding Company's current cash requirements include operating expenses and exclude 
interest on subordinated debentures, which have been deferred, as discussed below. 

Annual debt service on the subordinated debentures is currently approximately $180,000:' The subordihated debentures have 
a variable rate ofinterest, reset quarterly, equal to the three-month LIBOR plus 2.85%). The total rate in effect was 3.21% at 
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES (Continued) 
December 31,20l2. An increase in the three-month LIBOR would increase the debt service requirement ofthe subordinated 
debentures. Annual dividends on the now retired preferred stock were approximately $361,300;at the current 5% level, , . 
which was scheduled to increase to 9%) after Febmary 14, 2014. The Board ofDirectors elected to defer the quarterly 
dividend payments related to the Preferred Stock beginning with the November 15, 2010, payment, and the quarterly interest 
payments on the subordinated debentures beginning with the December 30,201O payment, in order to preserve cash at the 
Holding Company. As a result ofthe Capital Raise the Company requested the FRB to a:pprove paying the deferred interest 

current, which was approved as a single event, consistent with the Order whereby the Holding Company may not pay interest 
on the subordinated debentures without the prior written notice to and written non-objection from the FED. 

Banking regulations limit the amount of dividends that can be paid to the Holding Company by CFBank without prior 
regulatory approval. Generally, financial institutions may pay dividends without .prior approval as long_as the dividend is not 
more than the total ofthe current calendar year-to-date eamings plus any eamings from the previous two years not already 
paid out in dividends, and as long as the financial institution remains well capitalized after the dividend payment. As of 
December 31, 2012, CFBank may pay no dividends to the Holding Company without receiving the prior written approvaLof 
the OCC. Pursuant to the CFBank Order, CFBank may not declare or pay dividends or make any other capital distributions 
without receiving prior written approval ofthe OCC. Future dividend payments by CFBank to the Holding Company would 
be based on future eamings and regulatory, approval. The payment of dividends from CFBank to the Holding Company is not 
likely to be approved by the OCC while (ZIFBank is suffering losses. 

A portion ofthe proceeds from the completed common stock offering has beenretained by the Holding Company for general 
corporate purposes and is estimated to be sufficient to support the Holding Company's cash requirements for several years. 

IMPACT OF INFLATION 
The fiiiancial statements and related data presented herein have been prepared in accordance with U.S: generally accepted 
accounting principles, which presently require us to measure fmancial position and results of operations primarily in terms of 
historical dollars. Changesintherelative value ofmoney due to inflation are generally not considered. In our opinion, 
changes in interest rates affect our financial condition to a far greater degree than changes in the inflation rate. While interest 
rates are generally influenced by changes in the inflation rate, they do not move concurrently. Rather, interest rate volatility 
is based on changes in the expected rate of inflation, as well as changes in monetary and fiscal policy. A firiancial , 
institution's ability to be relatively unaffected by changes in interest rates is a good indicator of hs ability to perform in a 
volatile economic environment. In an effort to protect performance from the effects ofinterest rate volatility, we review 
interest rate risk frequently and take steps to minimize detrimental effects on profitability. 

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
We follow financial accounting and reporting policies that are in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles and.conform to general practices within the banking industry. These policies are presented in Note 1 to our 
consolidated financial statements. Some of these accounting policies are considered to be critical accounting policies, which . 
are those policies that are both most important to the porttayal ofthe Company's financial condition and resuhs of operations, 
and require management's most difficult, subjective or complex judgments, often as a result ofthe need to make estimates 
about the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain. AppUcation of assumptions different than those used by 
management could result in material changes in our financial condition or results of operations. These policies, current 
assumptions and estimates utilized, and the related disclosure ofthis process, are determined by? management and routinely 
reviewed with the Audit Committee of the Board ofDirectors. We believe that the judgments, estimates and assumptions 
used in the preparation ofthe consolidated financial statements were appropriate given the factual circumstances at the time. 

We have identified accounting policies that are critical accounting policies, and an understariding of these policies is 
necessary to understand our financial statements. The following discussion details the critical accounting policies and the 
nature of the estimates made by management. 

Determination ofthe allowance for loan losses. The ALLL represents management's estimate of probableincurred credit 
losses in the loan portfolio at each balance sheet date. The allovvance consists of general and specific components. The 
general component covers loans not classified as impaired and is based on historical loss experience, adjusted for current 
factors. Current factors considered include, but are not limited to, management's oversight ofthe portfolio, including lending 
policies and procedures; nature, level and trend ofthe portfolio, including past due and nonperforming loans, loan 
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES-(Continued) ^;.,';,:--:; 
concentrations, loan terms and other characteristics; current economic conditions and outlook; collateral values; and other! 
items. The specific component ofthe ALLL relates to loans that are individually classified as impaired. Loans ex,ceeding i; 
policy thresholds are regularly reviewed to identiiy impairment. A loan is impaired when, based on current information and 
events, it is probable-that CFBank will be unable to collect all amounts due according tO the contractual terins of the loan:: 
agreement. Loans for which the terms have been modified resulting in a concession, and for which the borrower is 
experiencing financial difficulties, are considered troubled debt restmcturings and classified as impaired. Determining 
whether a loan is impaired and whether there is an impairment bss requires judgment and estimates, and the eventual,. 

outcomes may differ from estimates made by management. ;The determination of whether a loan is impaired includes: review 
of historical data; judgments regarding the ability ofthe borrower to meet the terms ofthe loan; an evaluation Ofthe collateral 
securing the loan and estimation of its value; net of selling expenseSi if applicable; various collection strategies; and otheril ;. 
factors relevant to the loan or loans. Impairment is measured based on the fairvalue of collateral, less costs to seU, if theloan' 

is collateral dependent, or altematively, the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan's effective rate, 
if the loan is not collateral dependent. When the selected measure is less than the recorded investment in the loan, an ,, ; 1,. ' 

impairment loss is recorded. As a result, determining the appropriate level for the ALLL involves not only eyaluatirig the;; 
current financial situation of individual borrowers or groups of borrowers, but also curtent predictions about future eyents; 
that could change before an actual loss is determined. Based on the variables involved and the fact that management must 
make judgments about outcomes that are inherently'uricertairi, the determination ofthe A L L L is considered to be a critical 
accounting policy. Additional informatiori regarding this policy is included in the previous section titled 'Tinancial I 
Condition - ̂ //owflKceybr/oa«/o55e,s" and in Notes 1,4 and 6 to our consolidated financial statements. 

Valuationof the deferred tax asset. 
In line with the Cease and Desist Order the Company needed to embark on a recapitalization program through the sale of:'; 
$19.5 million in additional common stock in orderto improve capitalization for the Bank and provide working capital in the, 
holding company. In negotiations with the Treasury Department as to the redemption of $7,500 in TARP obligatioris, the 
Company needed to further increase the recapitalization by $3.0 million. The recapitalization was closed at the maximum 
$22:5 milUon level through the issuance of 15.0 miUion shares of common stock. As a result of the change in stock 
ownership associated with the stock offering completed in August 2012,; within the guidelines of Section 382 of the Inteinal 
Revenue Code of 1986, the Company incurred an ownership change. At year-end 2012, the Company had net operating loss 
carryforwards of $25,941, which expire at various dates from 2024 to 2032, and altemative minimum tax credit 
carryforwards of $60, which do not expire. As a resuh, its ability to utilize carryforwards that arose before the stock offeririg 
closed is limited to $ 163 per year. Due to this limitation, management determined it is more likely than not that $20,342 of 
net operating loss carryforwards will expire unutilized and, as required by accounting standards, reduced deferred tax assets 
and the valuation allowance by $6,916 to refiect this lost realizability. 

The Company maintained a valuation allowance against deferred tax assets at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, 
based on its estimate of future reversal and utilization. Wheri determining the amount of deferred tax assets that are more-
likely-than-not to !be realized, and therefore recorded as a benefit, the Company condiicts a regular assessment of all available 
information. This information includes, but is not limited to, taxable income in prior periods, projected future income arid 
projected future reversals of deferred tax items. Based on these criteria, the Company determined that it was necessary to 
estabUshafuU valuation allowance against the entirenet deferred tax asset; ,; 

Federal income tax laws provided addhional deductions;'totaling $2,250, for thrift bad debt reserves established before 1988. 
Accounting standards do,not require a deferred tax liability to be recorded on this amount, which otherwise would fotal,$765 
at year-end 2012. However, if CFBank were vvholly or. partially liquidated or otherwise ceases to be a bank, or if tax laws 
were to change, this amount would have to be recaptured and; a tax liability recorded. Additionally, any disfributioris iri 
excess of CFBank's current or accumulated eamings and profits would reduce amounts allocated to its bad debt reserve and 
create a tax liability for CFBank. The amount of additional taxable income created by such a disfribution is an amount that, 
when reduced by the tax atfributable to.the income, is.;equal to; thC; amount of the distribution. Thus, if CFBank makes a 
distribution that reduces the amount allocated to its bad debt reserve, then approxinaately one and one-half times the amount 
used would be includible in gross income for federal income tax purposes, assuming a 34% corporate income tax rate. 
CFBank does not intend to make distributions that would result in a recapture of any portion of its bad debt reserve. 
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) , .'̂ ,:-.-; :> •'. ' ' • : i 'S- ' - . • 
At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company had no unrecognized tax;benefits recorded: The Company does not expect . 
the amount ofunrecognized tax benefits to significantly change within the next twelve months. ; : • 

At December 31, 2012, the valuation allowance totaled $3.1 milUon, compared to $8.6 miUion at December 31, 2011. 
Additional informatiori is included in Notes I and 14 to our consolidated financial statements. 

Fair value of financial instruments. Another criticalaccounting policy relates to fair value of financial instraments, which 
are estimated using relevant market information and other assumptions. Fair value estimates involve uncertainties aind 
matters of significant judgment regarding interest fates, credit risk, prepayments, and other factors, especially inthe absence 

ofbroad markets for particular items. Changes in assumptions or in market conditions could significantly affect the 
estimates. Additional information is included in Notes 1 and 6 to our consolidated firiancial statements. - • ' "•'• 

MARKET PRICES AND DIVIDENDS DECLARED 
The common stock of Cenfral Federal Corporation trades on the Nasdaq® Capital Market under the syrnbol "CFBK:"- As of 
December 31, 2012, there were 15,824,710 shares of common stock outstanding. 
The following table, shows the quarterly reported high and low sales prices ofthe common stock during 2012 and 2011 (a 
one-for-five stock split occurred effective May 4, 2012). There were no'dividends declared during 2012 or 2011. 

2012 

l-irsl quarter 

Second quarler* 

i hii-d quarter* 

1 ourth quarter 

S 

High 

5.00 

3.49 

3.68 

1.60 

N 

Low 

3.00 

2.40 

1.26 

1.15 

2011 : 

First quarter 

Second quarter 

third quarter 

Fourth quarter 

,;:'. $ 

High 

11.30 

• 7.65 

5.25 • 

5.00 

$. 

Low 

2.55 

2.65 

3.30 

3.05 

*Note: On May 4, 2012 a one-for-five reverse stock split was effective.arid on August 20, 2012 the capital raise was completed, issuing 15.0 million hew 
shares at$1.50 per share . -. ' '•' ' ' ; - . • •; 

On July 13, 2011, the Holding Company received notice from NASDAQ that h did not comply with the minimurii bid price 
requirement for continued listing on the NASDAQ Capital Market because the bid price for hs common stock had fallen; 
below $1.00 per share for the 30 consecutive business days prior to the date of that notice. On January 10, 2012 the f •' 
Company was advised that the NASDAQ Capital Market had determined that we were eligible for an additional 180 day; 
calendar period, until July 9,2012, to regain complianceiwith the minimum closing bid price requirement for continued . 
listing on the NASDAQ Capital Market. To regain compliance, the company executed a one-for-five reverse stock split, as 
previously authorized by the shareholders, effective May 4, 2012. ̂  ,V\v̂  

The Holding Company is now in compliance with the miniinuriibid price requirements for continued listing on the NASDAQ 
Capital Market, the Holding Company's common stock-will continueto frade on NASDAQ under the" symbol "CFBK.:" 

Pursuant to the Holding Company Order, the Holding Conipany may not declare, make, or pay'any cash dividends (including 
dividends on the Preferred Stock, or its common stock) or other capital distributions or purchase, repurchase or redeem or 
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MARKET PRICES AND DIVIDENDS DECLARED (Continued) ; 
commh to purchase, repurchase, or redeem any Company equity stock without the prior writtcri non-objection ofthe FED;. 
The FED did provide a non-objection to redeem TARP in September 2012. Addhional information is contained in the 
section titled 'Tinancial Condition -Stockholders' equity " and in Notes 2 and 17 to our consolidated financial statements. 
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Financial Statements 

MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 

The managemerit of Central Federal Corporation is responsible for establishing arid maintainirig adequate intemal 
control over financial reporting as defmed in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities and Exchange Act 
of 1934, as amended. The Company's intemal confrol over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of fmancial statements for extemal 
purposes in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accouriting principles. 

The Company's intemal confrol over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that: (i) pertain to 
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of 
the assets ofthe Company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures ofthe Company are being made only iri accordance with authorizations of management 
and directors ofthe Company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition ofthe Company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
fmancial statements. 

Because of its inherent limitations, intemal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. 
Also, projections ofany evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate. Based on our assessment and those criteria, management concluded that the Company maintained 
effective intemal confrol over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012. 

Management assessed the effectiveness ofthe Company's intemal control over financial reporting as of December 
31, 2012. In making this assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring 
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (CQSO) in Intemal Control-Integrated Framework. 

This annual report does not contain an audh report ofthe Company's registered public accounting firm regarding 
intemal confrol over financial reporting. Management's report was not subject to audit by the Company's registered 
public accounting firm pursuant to rales ofthe Securities and Exchange Commission that permit the Company to 
provide only management's report in this annual report. 

Timothy T. O'Dell 
Chief Executive Officer 

Thad R. Perry, CPA (Inactive) 
President, Treasurer and Interim Chief Financial Officer 

April 1,2013 
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Financial Statements 

Crowe Itairath,-
Crowe H o r w a t h LLP 

'•• , Independent Member Crowe Horwath International 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

The Board ofDirectors and Stockholders ; 
Central Federal Corporation ' 
Fairlawn, Ohio 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Central Federal Corporation as of December 31, 
2012 and 2011, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive loss, changes in stockholders' 
equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,2012. These financial sta:teiriefits: 
are the responsibility ofthe Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial ; 
statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards ofthe Public Company Accounting Oversight Board 
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the consolidated financial statements are free of rriaterial misstatement. The Company is not required to 
have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its intemal control over financial reporting. Our audits included 
consideration of intemal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion On the effectivenessof the 
Company's intemal conttol over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consohdated finaricial statements. 
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overaU financial statement presentation. We beUeve that our audits provide a reasonable basis 
for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Central Federal Corporation as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 and the re;sults of its operations 
audits cash flows for each ofthe three years in the period ended December 31,2012, in cortformity with U.S. 
generaUy accepted accounting principles. ! 

The Company has experienced recurring iosses in 2012,2011 and 2010 from operations due to elevated levels of 
loan losses and non-performing assets. As a result, the Company and its wholly owned subsidiary (CF Bank) are 
currently operating under Regulatory Orders that require, among other items, higher levels of regulatory capital at 
CFBaink and restrictions on the ability to pay dividends. Failure to comply with these regulatory orders could 
subject the Company to additional enforcement actions. See note 2 for a discussion ofthe Regulatory Orders and 
Management's Plans. '; " 

tjt^fy^*— ^'S%€trmJ0i' •Jp .Mt^ -
Crowe Horwath LLP 

Cleveland, Ohio 
April 1,2012 
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

(Dollars in thousands except per share data) 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Interest-bearing deposits in other financial institiitions' 
Securities available for sale ;. , . ,i-• .; 
Loans lield for sale 
Loans, net of allowance of $5,237.and $6,110 
FHLB stock 
Foreclosed assets, net 
Premises and equipment, net 
Assets held for sale 
Other intangible assets , . 
Bank owned Ufe insurance 
Accraed interest receivable and other assets! , 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS'EQUITY 
Deposits 

Noninterest bearing 
Interest bearing ' • . 

total deposits .. > 
Long-term FHLB advarices 
Advances by borrowers for taxes and insurance „ . ' . „ 
Accraed interest payable and other liabilities 
Subordinated debentures ,, ,, , ,, - , . 

TotaliUabilities; . , -; ...:•":•• ,- ;. .• 

Stockholders' equity 
Preferred stock, Series A, $.01 par value; aggregate 

liquidation value $7,691 in 2011 
1,000,000 shares authorized; 7,225 shares issued in 2011 

Common stock, $.01 par value. 
shares authorized; 50,000,000 in 2012 and 2011 
shares issued; 15,936,417 in 2012 and 937,417 in 2011 

Additional paid-in capital 
Accumulated defich , ; , 
Accumulated othercomprehensive income 
Treasury stock, at cost; 111,707 shares 

Total stockholders'equity ;, 

Dec( 
2012 

S 25.L^2 
2.726 

17.639 
623 

153.043 
1.942 
1.525 
5.317 

167 
49 

4.405 
2.447 

.S 215.035 

$ 18,008 
155.500 
173,508 

10,000 
241 

2,488 
5.155 

191,392 

-

159 
47,919 

(21,297) 
107 

(3,245) 
23,643 

$ 215,035 

:mber31. 
2011 , 

$ 61,436 
1,984 

18,516 
1,210 

151,160 , 
1,942 
2,370;;. 
5,534 ', 

167-
- ;8^V,. 

' "4,273 •"' 
. .^; . . ."••2,239-r 

. •$. ;250;920 . 

$ 18,409 
198,640 

• ' ' " ' ' 217,049'^ 
' 15,742 
. . ,15? 

: . . - , . '• .2,$7l,: 
. - 5,1-55.-

.;• ; 240,976 

• "7,120 

- ' - • : ; . . ' • 

" ; " • " • • ' • " ' • ! 9 

27,837 
(22,163) 

386. 
^ -;;-. (3.245). 

9,944' . 

$ ' 250,920 
(Sec accompanying notes.) 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS' 

(Dollars in thousands except per share data) 
. . . . . . . ; . / , ; ; • 

Interest and dividend incoine 
Loans, including fees 
Securities 
FHLB stock dividends 
Federal fiinds sold and other 

Interest expense 
Deposits 
Long-term FHLB advances and other debt 
Subordinated debentures 

Net interest income 
Provision for loan losses 
Net intierest income after provision for loan losses 
Noninterest income 

Service charges on deposit accounts 
, Net gains on sales of loans 

Net gains on sales of securities 
Eamings on bank owned life insurance , : . . ; 
Other ' 

Noninterest expense 
Salaries and employee benefits 
Occupancy and equipment 
Data processing 
Franchise taxes 
Professional fees 
Director fees 
Postage, printing and supplies 
Advertising and promotion 
Telephone 
Loan expenses 
Foreclosed assets, net 
Depreciation 
FDIC Premiiims 
Amortization of intangibles 
Regulatory assessment 
Other Insurance 
Other 

Loss before income taxes 
Income tax expense 
Net loss 
Preferred stock divideiids and accretion of 

discount on preferred stock 
Discount on redemption of preferred stock 
Earnings (loss) available to common stockholders 
Earnings (loss) per common share: 

Basic 
Diluted 

2012 

$ 6,795 
218 

86 
169 

7,268 

2,108 
.345 
180 

2,633 
4,635 
1,129 
3,506 

245 
404 
143 
132 
81 

1,005 

3,906 
269 
588 
219 
860 
119 
172 
30 
66 

137 
652 
237 
563 
40 

143 
153 
123 

8,277 
(3,766) 

-
(3,766) 

(328) 
4,960 

$ 866 

$ 0.14 
$ 0.14 

December 31, 
2011 

$ 8,999 
422 

83 
• 152 
9;656 

• . 2,780 
. 530 

168 
. .3,478 

6,178 
.. 3,375 

2,803 

271 
; 294 

; 353 
130 
75 

1,123 

4,043 
- 278" 

569 
253 
944 
181 
131 
37 
74 
81 

1,187 
384 
687 
40 

168 
135 
159 

9,351 
(5,425) 

-
(5,425) 

(425) 

-
$ ; (5,850) 

$ (7.09) 
$ . (7.09) 

2010 

$ 11,813 
658' 

. 8 5 
""''";:. '61--

; . 12,617 .; 

' 3,318 
, • .;-.. 698 
, -^ 167 

.. 4,183^ 
. • . , . . ; • , . 8,434f' 

8,468, 

..;.-^ (34) 

294:.-
866 

: ,, 468 
.:, ,: 126: 

40 , 
:.: 1,794 : 

4,211 
. 203' 

625 : 
338 
995 
137, 
151 
107 
106; 

83, 
4* 

508 
581 
40 

. 120 
63 

160, 
8,432 

(6,672) 
198 

(6,870) 

(410) 

-
$ (7,280) 

$ (8.85) 
$ (8.85) 

(See accompanying notes.) 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS 

(Dollars in thousands except per share data) December 31, 

Net loss 
Other comprehensive loss: 

Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising during the 
period related to investment securities available for 
sale: 

Unrealized net gains (losses) 
Related income tax expense , , • 

Net umealized gains (losses) ,' • ' 
Less: reclassification adjustment for net gairis realized 
during the period on investment securities available for 
sale: 

Realized net gains 
Related income taxexpense 

Net realized gains 
Other comprehensive loss 
Comprehensive loss 

2012 

$ (3.766) 

036) 
-

(L36) 

143 
-

143 
(279) 

S (4.045) 

; i, -

.2011 ., . 

$• : (5,425) 

67 
-.. . -- -

67 

• .• , • • ' . ' • - - 3 5 3 

-
353 

(286) 
. $.„ ;.. (5,711) 

2010 

$ (6,870) 
• ' 

436 
; . ; ; . . ' , • . . - -

;;..;•*• .... 4 3 6 

468 

468 
V=: : (32) 

$ :. (6,902) 
(See accompanying notes.) 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

(Dollars in thousands except per share data) 

Preferred 
Stock 

Common 
Stock 

Years Ended December 31, 2012, 2011 arid 2010. 
Accumulated 

Additional Other 
Paid-in Accumulated Comprehensive Treasury 
Capital Deficit Income Stock 

Total! . 
Stockholders' 

Equity 

Balance at J a n u a r y 1,2010 

Net loss 
Other comprehensive loss 
Accretion of discoimt on preferred stock 
Release of 564 stock-based incentive plan 

shares, net of forfeitures 
Tax effect from vesting of stock-based 

incentive plan shares 
Stock option expense, net of forfeitures 
Preferred stock dividends 

S 7,021 

48 

$ 27,772 $ 

19 
1 

(9,034) 

(6,870) 

(48) 

1 

(362) 

7.04 $ (3,245) 

(32) 

23,227 

(6,870) 
(32) 

19 
'• 1 

(362) 
Balance at December 31 ,2010 

Net loss 
Other comprehensive loss 
Accretion of discount on preferred stock 
Release of 2,426 stock-based incentive 

plan shares 
Stock option expense, net of forfeitures 
Preferred stock dividends 

7,069 

51 

27,797 

23 
17 

Balance at December 31 ,2011 

Net loss 
Other comprehensive loss 
Accretion of discoimt on preferred stock 
Release of 1,567 stock-based incentive 

plan shares, net of forfeitures 
Stock option expense, net of forfeitures 
Preferred stock dividends 
Redemption of TARP obligations, 

including $801 of accrued dividends 
Proceeds from issuance o f l 5.0 million 

shares in common stock offering, net of 
$2,279 for offering expenses : 

(16,313) 

(5,425) 

(51) 

(374) 
7.120 

39 

' .^3" 

(7.1.'iy) 

(22.163) 

13. "'6(11 

(.'91 

i 2X9 j 

4.')(i() 

15(1 20.0"'1 

672 

(286) 

(3,245) 

186 

(279) 

(•(.245J 

15,989 

(5,425) 
(286) 

23 
17 

J3741 
9.944 

(3.766) 
(27^) 

4 

l289) 

(2,199) 

20.221 
Balance at December 31,2012 159 47.919 S (21.297) -S iO^ (3.245) S 23.(>43 

(See accompanying notes.) 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

(Dollars in thousands except per share data) • • 

Net loss 
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash from operating activities: 

Provision for loan losses - ' • , 
Provision for losses on foreclosed assets - ' 
Valuation (gain) loss on mortgage servicing rights 
Depreciation . . . 
Amortization, net 
Net realized gains on sales of securities 
Originations of loans held for sale 
Proceeds from sale of loans held for sale 
Net gains on sales ofloans 
Loss on disposal of premises and equipment 
Loss on sale of assets held for sale -
Gain on sale of foreclosed assets ' 
•Earnings on bank owned life insurance 
Stock-based compensation expense 
Change in deferred income taxes (net of change in valuation allowance) 
Net change in: 

Accrued interest receivable and other assets 
Accrued interest payable and other liabilities 

Net cash from (used by) operating activities 
Cash flows from investing activities 

Net increase in interest-bearing deposits in other fmancial institutions 
Available-for-sale securities: -

Sales ; ,' . 
Maturities, prepayments and calls 
Purchases ' . ' ' ' . 

Loan originations and payments, net . 
Proceeds from sale of portfolio loans. . . 
Additions to premises and equipment 

: Proceeds from the sale of assets held for sale 
Proceeds from the sale of foreclosed assets 
Proceeds from mortgage insurance on foreclosed assets 

Net cash from (used by) investing activities. 

Cash flows from finan(;ing activities 
Net change in deposits 
Net change in short-term borrowings from the FHLB and other debt 
Repayments on long-term FHLB advances and other debt 
Net change in advances by borrowers for taxes and insurance 
Cash dividends paid on preferred stock 
Redemption of TARP obligations 
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock 

Net cash from (used by) financing activities 
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 
Beginning cash and cash equivalents 
Ending cash and cash equivalents 

Supplemental cash flow information: 
Interest paid 
Income taxes paid 

Supplemental noncash disclosures: 
Transfers from loans to repossessed assets 
Premises and equipment transferred to assets held for sale 
Loans issued to finance the sale of repossessed assets 
Loans transferred from held for sale to portfolio 

Years Ended December 31, ' . ; . 
2012 

$ '(3,766) 

1,129 
962 

(1) 
237 
673 

(143) 
(30,461) 
31,342 

(404) 
4 

(338) 
(132) 
. 1 1 

-

(215) 
142 

(960) 

(742) 

.2,144\ 
11,497 

(13,447) 
. (4,485) 

(24) 
. ' - - • 

1,720 ; 
73 

(3,264) 

(43,621) ' 
-

(5,742) 
82 

-
(3,000) 
20,221 

(32,060) 
(36,284) 
61,436 

$ 25,152 

$ 2,835 
-

$ 1,754 
-

171 
109 

2011 
$ (5,425) 

.3,375. 
1,139 

(3) 
384 
858 

(353) 
(36,035) 
37,072 

(294) 
- ...; 
2 

(8) 
(130) 

40 

.. . ., 
(95) 

- .(46) .. 
481 

(1,984) 

12,219 •;. 
9,878,. • 

(12,473) . 
,36,247 • 

-
(69) 

- ,533 
- 1,000 .; 

• . . . ; . . , . . - ^ . . 

45,351 -H 

' (10,417) 
-

(8,200) 
(54) 

-
-
-

(18,671) 
27,161 
34,275 

$ 61,436 

$ 3,366 
-

$ 
167 

-
-

2010 
$ (6,870) 

8,468 
, . - . . , . • 

1 
-" •508 

• 509 
(468) 

(79,506) 
80,T92 

(866) 
1 • 

. ' - . - . 
-. .. 

(126) 
7 

198 , " 

-632 
- . 367 

' . 3,047 

-

13,632 
::,7,173 
(28,599) 

.rl8,086 
10,073 

- , : • (56) 
. -

• -

• ' • . . I , 

.7;;- .; 20,309 „ 

16,230 
(2,065) 
(6,000) 

52 
(27,1) 

- • 

-
7,946 

31,302 
2,973 

S 34,275 

$ • . 4,152 
(25) 

• 

$ 4,509 
535 

-
-

(See accompanying notes.) 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Dollars in thousands except per share data) 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY ;OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES . 

Nature of Operations and Prmciples of Consolidation: The consolidated fmancial statemerits include Central Federal 
Corporatiori (the Holding Company), its wholly-owned subsidiaries, CFBank, Ghent Road, Inc., and Smith Ghent LLC, : 
together referred to as "the Company." Ghent Road, Inc. was formed in 2006 and owns the land adjacent to the Company's 
corporate office while Smith Ghent LLC owns the CFBank corporate office building. Intercompany transactions and 
balances are eliminated in consolidation. 

CFBank provides financial services throughhs four full-service banking offices in Fairlawn, Calcutta, Wellsville and 
Worthington, Ohio. Its primary deposit products are checking, savings, money market and term certificate accounts, and its ;; 
primary lending products are comriiercial anid residential mortgages and commercial and installment loans.; There are no 
significant concentrations of loans;to any one industry oncustomer. However, the customers' ability to repay their loans is 
dependent on the real estate and general economic conditions in the customers'geographic areas. 

On August 20, 2012, the Company successfully completed a registered common stock offering. Net proceeds from the 
offering totaled $20,221 after consideration of $2,279 of offering-costs. The capital raise resulted in 15 million additional I 
common shares being issued at the price of $1.50 per share. 

Use of Estimates: To prepare finaricial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles r 
(GAAP), management ihakes estimates and assumptions based on available information. These estimates and assumptions 
affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and the disclosures provided, and actual results could differ: The : 
allowance for loan losses (ALLL), deferred tax assetsand fair values of financial instruments are particularly subject to 
change. '• ' "" • •, '' :''''••• -^••"'i':-- ' • - • ' • '• - -•'-"• 

Cash Flows: Cash and cash equivalents include cash, deposits with other financial institutions with maturities fewer than 90 
days and federal funds sold. Net cash flows are reported for customer loan and deposit transacticins, interest-bearing deposits 
in other financial institutions and borrowings with original maturities under 90 days. 

InterestTBearing Deposits in Other Financial Institutions: Interest-bearing deposits in other financial institutions mature 
at various times through September 2014 and are carried at cost. 

Securities: Debt securities are classified as held to maturity and carried at amortized cost when management has the positive 
intent and ability to hold them to maturity. Debt securities,are classified as available for sale when they might be sold before 
maturity. Equity securities with readily determinable fair yalues are classified as available:for sale. Securities available for 
sale are carried at fairvalue, with urirealized holding gains and losses reporte(i in other comprehensive income, net of tax. 

Interest income includes amortization'of purchase premium or discount: Premiums and discounts on securitieis are amortized 
on the level-yield method without anticipating prepayments, except for mortgage-backed securities and collaferalized 
mortgage obligations where prepayments are anticipated. Gains and losses on sales are recorded on the trade date and 
determined using the specific identification method: ; 

Management evaluates securities for other-fhan-temporaiy irhpairment (OTTl) at least on a quarterly basis, and more 
frequently when economic or market conditioris warrant such an evaluation. For securities in an umealized loss, position, ' 
management considers the extent and duration of the unrealizedloss and the financial condition and near-term prospects of 
the issuer. Management also assesses whether it intends to sell, or will more likely than not be required to sell, a security in 
an unrealized loss positiori before recovery of its amortized cost basis; If either of the criteria regardihg intent or requirement 
to sell is met, the entire difference between amOitized cost and fair value is recognized as impairment through earnings. For' 
debt securities that dO not meet the aforementioned criteria, the amount of impairment is split intb tvvo components as 
follows: 1) OTTl related to credit loss, which must be recognized in the income statement and 2) OTTI related to Other 
factors, which is recognized in other compreherisive income. The credit loss is defined as the difference betWeeri the present 
value ofthe cash flows expected to be collected and the amortized cost basis. For equity securities, the entire amount of • 
impairment is recognized through eamings. 

Loans Held for Sale: Mortgage loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are carried at fair value, as 
determined by outstanding commitments from investors. 

CENTRALFEDERAL;eORPORATION2012ANNUALREPORT I page,41. 



NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Mortgage loans held for sale are generally sold with'servicing rights released. The carrying value oif mortgage loans soldis ' 
reduced by the amount allocated to the servicing right when; mortgage loans held for sale are sold with servicing rights •-
retained. Gairis and losses on sales of mortgage loans are based on the difference between the selling jprice: and the carrying 
value ofthe related loan sold.. • ' • ' ' ' ' v T; • 

Loans: Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or payoff are 
reported at the principal balance outstanding, adjusted for purchase preniiums and discounts;, deferred.loan fees and costs,-: 
accrued interest receivable and an ALLL. Interest income is accrued onthcunpaid principal balance:- Loan origination fees, 
net of certain direct origination costs, are deferred and recognized in interest income using the level-yieldmethod without • 
anticipating prepayments. The recorded investment in loans, includes accrued interest receiyable. 

The accrual ofinterest income on all Classes ofloans, except other consumer loans, is discontinued and the loan is placed on 
nonaccrual status at the tinie the loan is 90 days delinquent unless the loan is well-secured anddn process of coUection. Other 
consumer loans are typically (charged off no later than 90 days past due. PastduCiStatas is;based on the contractual terms of ; 
the loan for all classes of loans. In all cases, loans are placed on no,naccrual or chargedToff at an earlier (date if collection of 
principal or interest is considered doubtfiil Nonaccrual loans and loahspast due 90 days stUl on accrual include both smaller 
balance hdinogeneous loans.that are collectively evaluated for impairmep t̂ and jndividually classified impaired loans. 
Commercial, multi-family residential real estate loans and commercial real estate loans, placed on nonaccrual stahis are . , 
individually classified as impaired loans. ' , ' ,' V, 

All interest accrued but not received for loans placed on nonaccrual is reyersed against interest income. Interest received on 
such loans is accounted for on the cash-basis or cost-recovery method, until qualifying for return to accrual. Loans are . 
retumed to accraal status when all the,principal and interest amounts contractiially due are brought current and future 
payments are reasonably assured. ' ' 

Concentration of Credit Risk: Most ofthe Company's primary business activify is with custoriiersrlocated within the Ohio 
counties of Columbiana, Franklin, Summh and contiguous counties. Therefore, the Company's exposure to credh risk is 
significantly affected by changes in the economies within these countie^: Although these counties are the Comijany's 
primary market area for loans, the Company originates resideritialand commercial real estate loans throughout the United 
States. 

Allowance for Loan Losses: The ALLL is'a valuation allowance for probable incurred credit losses. Loan losses are 
charged against the allowance wheri management believes the uncoUectibility of a loan balance is confirmed. Subsequent 
recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance: Management estimates the allowance balance required using past loan loss 
experience, the nature and volume ofthe portfolio, information about specific borrower situations and estimated collateral 
values, economic conditions, and other factors. Allocations ofthe allowance may be macie for specific loans, but.the entire 
allowance is available for any loan that, in management's judgment, should be charged off. 

The allowance consists of specific and general components. The specific component relates to loans that are individually: , 
classified as impaired. A loan is impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that CFBank wiU be 
unable to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreenient. Loans within any loan class for 
which the terms, have been modified resulting in a concession, and for which the, borrower is experiencing financial 
difflculties, are considered troubled debt restracturings, (TDRs) and classified as impaired. 

Factors.considered-by management in determining impairment for all loan, classes include payment status,, collateral value, 
and the probabilify of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due. Loans that experience insignificant 
payment delays and payment shortfalls generally, are not classified as impaired. .Management determines;the;Sigriificance of 
payment delays and payment short;faUs on acase-by-case basis, taking into consideration; all ofthe circumstances 
surrounding the loan and the borrower,!including the length ofthe delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower's prior. 
payment record and the amount of the shortfaU in relation to.the principal and interest owed. ; 
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NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Loans of all classes within the commercial, multi-family residential and commercial real estate segments, regardless of size, 
and loans of all other classes with balances over $500 are individually evaluated for impairment when they are 90 days past 
due, or earlier than 90 days past due if information regarding the payment capacity ofthe borrower indicates that payment in 
full according to the loan terms is doubtful If a loan is impaired, a portion ofthe allowance is allocated so that theloan is; 
reported, net, at the present value of estimated future cash fiows using the loan's existing rate or at the fair value of collateral 
if repayment is expected solely from the collateral. Large groups of smaller balance loans, such as consumer and single-, ] 
family residential real estate loans are collectively evaluated for impairment, and accordirigly, they are not separately , ; 
identified for impairment disclosures. 

TDRs of all classes ofloans are separately identified for impairment disclosures and are measured at the present value of : 
estimated future cash flows using the loan's effective rate at inception. If a TDR is considered to be a collateral dependent 
loan, the loan is reported, net, at the fair value of the coUateral. For TDRs that subsequently defauh, the amount of reserve is 
determined in accordance with the accounting policy for the ALLL. 

Interest income on all classes of impaired loans that are on nonaccraal status is recognized in accordance with the accounting 
policy on nonaccraal loans. Cash receipts on aU classes of impaired loans that are on nonaccraal status are generally appUed 
to the principal balance outstanding. Interest income on all classes of impaired loans that are not on nonaccraal status is 
recognized on the accrual method. TDRs may be classified as accruing if the borrower has been current for a period of at 
least six months with respect to loan payments and management expects that the borrower, will be able to continue to make 
payments in accordance with the terms of the restractured note. 

The general component covers non-impaired loans of all classes and is based on historical loss experience adjusted for 
current,factors. The historical loss experience is determined by loan class and is based on theactual loss history experienced 
by the Company over the most recent year. This actual loss experience is supplemented.with ofher economic factors based 
on the risks present for each loan class. These economic factors include consideration of the following: levels of and trends 
in delinquencies and impaired loans; levels of and trends in charge-offs and recoveries; trends in volume and terms ofloans; 
effects of a:ny changes in risk selection and underwriting standards; other changes in lending poUcies, procedures, and 
practices; experience, ability, and depth of lending management and other relevant staff; national and local economic trends 
and conditions; industry conditions; and effects of changes in credit concentrations. 

The general component is calculated based on CFBank's loan balances and actual historical payment default rates. For loâ ns 
with no actual payment default history, industry estimates of payment default rates are applied based on loan segment aind the 
state where the collateral is located. Results are then scaled based on CFBank's intemal loan risk ratings, and industiy loss 
rates are applied based on loan segment. Industry information is modified based on management's judgment regarding items 
specific to CFBank, and primarily include.the historical loss experience of each loanclass, the level and trend of past due ancl 
nonaccraal loans in each loan class and the current economic outlook. 

The following portfolio segments have been identified: commercial loans, single-family residential real estate loans; multi- ,. 
family residential real estate loans; conimercial real estate loans; constraction loans; home equity Unes of credit; and other, 
consumer loans. A description of each segment of the loan portfolio, along with the risk characteristics of each segment is 
included below: 

Commercial loans: Commercial loans include loans to businesses generally located within our primary market area. Those 
loans are generaUy secured by business equipment, inventory, accounts receivable and other business assets. In underwriting 
commercialloans, we consider the net operating income ofthe company, the debt service ratio arid the financial strength, : 
expertise and credit history of the busipess owners and/or guarantors. Because payments on commercial loans are dependent 
on successful operation ofthe business enterprise, repayment of such loans may be subject to a greater extent to adverse , 
conditions in the economy. We seek to mitigate these risks through underwriting policies which require such loans to be;, 
qualified at origination on the basis ofthe enterprise's financial performance and the financial strength ofthe business owners 
and/or guarantors. 
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NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Single-family residential real estate loans: Single-family residential real estate loans include permanent conventional 
mortgage loans secured by single-family residences located within and outside of our primary iriarket area; Credit approval 
for single-family residential real estate loans requires demonstration of sufficient income to repay the principal and interest 
and the real estate taxes'and insurance, stability of employment and an established credh record: Our policy is to originate 
single-family residential real estate loans for portfolio in amounts up to 85% ofthe lower ofthe appraised value or the 
purchase price ofthe property securing the loan, without requiring private mortgage insurance. Loans in excess of 85% of 
the lower ofthe appraised value or purchase price ofthe property securing the loan require private mortgage insurance. 
CFBank has not engaged in subprime lending, used option adjustable-rate mortgage products or made loans with initial teaser 
rates. 

Multi-family residential real estate loans: Multi-family residential real estate loans include loans secured by apai1;ment 
buildings, condominiums a:nd multi-family residential houses generally located within our primary market area. 
Underwriting policies provide that muhi-family residential real estate loans may be made in amounts up to 75% ofthe lower 
ofthe appraised value or purchase price ofthe property. In underwriting multi-family residential real estate loans, we 
consider the appraised value and net operating incOme ofthe property, the debt service ratio and the property owner's arid/or 
guarantor's financial strength, expertise and credit history. We offer both fixed and adjustable rate loans. Fixed rates are 
generally Umited to three to five years, at which time they convert to adjustable rate loans. Because payments ori loans 
secured by multi-farriily residential properties are dependent on successful operation or management of the properties, 
repayment of multi-fainily residential real estate loans niay be subject to a greater extent to adverse conditions in the real 
estate market or the economy. Adjustable rate multi-family residential real estate loans generally pose credit risks not 
inherent in fixed-rate loans, primarily because as interest rates rise, the borrowers' payments rise, increasing the potential for 
default. Additionally, adjustable rate multi-family residential real estate loans generally do not contain periodic arid lifetime 
caps on interest rate changes. We seek to minimize the additional risk presented by adjustable rate multi-family resiciential 
real estate loans through underwritirig criteria that require such loans to be quaUfied at origination with sufficient debt 
coverage ratios under increasing iriterest rate sceriarios. • -; 

Commercial real estate loans: Commercial realestate loans include loans secured by owner occupied and non-owner 
occupied properties used for business'purposes, such as manufacturing facilities, office buildings or retail facilities generally 
located within our primary market area. Underwriting policies provide that commercial real estate loaris may be made in 
amounts up to 75% of the lower of the appraised value or purchase price of the property. In underwriting commercial real 
estate loans, we consider the appraised value and net operating income of the property, the debt service ratio and the property 
owner's and/or guarantor's financial strength, expertise and credit history. We offer both fixed and adjustable rate loans. 
Fixed rates are generally limited to three to five years, at which time they Convert to adjustable rate loans. Because payments 
on loans secured by commercial real estate properties are dependent on successful operatiori or management ofthe properties, 
repaymerit of commercial real estate loans may be subject to a greater extent to adverse conditions in the realestate market or 
the economy. Adjustable rate commercial real estate loans generally pose credit risks not inherent in fixed-rate loans, 
primarily because as interest rates rise, the borrowers' payments rise, increasing the potential for default. Additionally, 
adjustable rate commercial real estate loans generally do not contain periodic and lifetime caps on interest rate'changes. We 
seek to minimize the additional risk presented by adjustable rate commercial real estate loans through underwritirig criteria 
that require such loans to be qualified at origination with sufficient debt coverage ratios under increasing interest rate 
scenarios. ' 

Constraction loans: Constraction loans include loans to finance the constraction of residential and commercial properties 
generally located within our primary market area. Constraction loans are fixed or adjuStabie-rate loans which mayrconvert to 
permanent loans with maturities of up to 30 years. Our policies provide that constraction loans may be made iri amourits up 
to 75% ofthe appraised value ofthe property, and an independent appraisal of the property is required. Loan proceeds are 
disbursed in increments as constraction progresses and as irispections warrant, and regular inspections are required to moriitdr 
the progress of constraction. In underwriting constraction loans, we consider the property owner's and/or guarantor's 
financial strength, expertise and credit history. Constraction financing is considered to involve a higher degree of credh risk 
than long-term financing on improved, owner occupied real estate. Risk of loss on a constraction loan is dependerit largely 
upon the accuracy ofthe initial estimate ofthe property's value at completion of constraction or development compared to 
the estimated cost (including interest) Of constraction. If the estimate of value proves to be inaccurate, we may be confronted 
with a project, when completed, having a value which is insufficient to assure full repayment. We attempt to reduce such 
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NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
risks on constraction loans through inspections of construction progress on the property and by requiring personal guarantees 
and reviewing current personal financial staternents and tax retums, as weU as other projects of the developer.; ;.; ,i.:, 

- ' • • , 

Home equity lines of credit: Home equitylines of credit include both loans we originate for portfoho andpurchased loans. 
We originate home equity lines of credit to customers generally within our primary, market area. Home equity lines of credit 
are variable rate loans and the interest rate adjusts monthly at various margins above the prime rate of interest as disclosedin . 
the Wall Street Journal. The margin is based on certain factors including the loan balance, value of coUateral, election of: 
auto-payment, and the borrower's FICO score: The amount ofthe line is based on the borrower's; credit, income andequity: 
in the home. When combined with the balance of the prior mortgage Uens, these lines generally may not exceed 89:9%;of the • 
appraised value ofthe property at the time ofthe loan commitment. The lines are secured by a subordinate lien on the t \ 
underlying real estate and are, therefore, vulnerable to declines in property values in the geographic areas where the ; |: C 
properties are located. Credit approval for home equity lines of credit requires income sufficient to repay principaland I 
interest due, stability of employment,:an established credit record and sufficient collateral. Collectibility of home equity liries 
of credit are dependent on the borrower's continuing financial stability, and thus are more likely to be affected by adverse 
personal circumstances. In 2005 and 2006, we purchased home equity lines of credit coUateraUzed by properties located 
throughout the United States. The purchased home equity lines of credit present higher risk than the home equity lines of 
credit we origipate for our portfolio as they include properties in geographic areas that have experienced significant declines • 
in housing values, such as California, Florida and Virginia. The coUateral values associated, with certain loans inthese states, 
have declined by up to approximately 50%) since these loans were originated in 2005 and 2006, and as a result, some loan 
balances exceed collateral values. We continue to monitor collateral values and borrower FICO . scores on both purchased ; 
and portfolio loans and, when the situation warrants, have frozen the lines of credit. 

Other consumer loans: Other consumer loans include closed-end home equity, home improvement, auto and credit card •,. 
loans to consumers, generally located within our primary market area! Credit approval for other consumer loans requires , 
income sufficient to repay principal and interest due, stability of employment, an established credit record and sufficient 
collateral for, secured loans. Consumer loans typically have shorter terms and.lower balances with higher yields as compared 
to realestate mortgage loans, but generally carry higher risks of default. Consumer loan collections are dependent on the 
borrower's continuing financial stability, and thus are more likely to be affected by adverse personal circumstances. 

CFBank's charge-off policy fbr commercial loans, single-family residential real estate loans, multiTfamily residential real i 
estate loans, commercial real estate loans, constraction loans and home equity lines of credit requires managemerit fo record a 
specific reserve or charge-off as soon as it is apparent that the borrower is troubled and there is, or likely will be a collateral 
shortfall related to the estimated value ofthe collateral securing the loan. Other consumer loans are typically charged off no • 
later than 90 days past due. j 

' . - . '• . . • ' \ ' -

Servicing Rights: When mortgage loans are sold with servicing retained, servicing rights are initiaUy recorded at fair value 
with the income statement effect recorded in gains on sales of loans. Fair value is based on market prices for comparable ̂  
mortgage servicing contracts, when available, or'altematively, is based on a valuation model that calculates the:present value 
of estimated future net servicing income. All classes of servicing assets are subsequently measured using the amortization 
method which requires servicing rights to be amortized into noninterest income in proportion to, and over the period of, the 
estimated future net servicing income of the underlying loans. 

Servicing assets are evaluated for impairment based upon the fair value of the rights as cornpared to carrying amount. 
Impairment is determined by stratifying rights into groupings based on predominant risk characteristics, such as interest rate,, 
loan type and investor type. Impairment is recognized through a valuation allowance for an individual grouping, to the extent 
that fair value is less than the carrying amount. If it is later determined that all or a portion of the impairment no longer exists 
for a particular grouping, a reduction of the allowance may be recorded as an increase to income. Changes in valuation . 
allowances are reported with loan servicing fees, net on the income statement. The fair values of servicing rights a;re subject 
to significant fiuctuatibns as a result of changes in estimated and actual prepayment speeds and default rates and losses. 

Servicing fee income, which is reported on the income statement as loan servicing fees, net is recorded for fees eanied for 
servicing loans. The fees are based on a Contractual percentage ofthe outstanding principal, or a fixed amount per loan; arid 
are recorded as income when eamed. The amortization of mortgage servicing rights is netted against loan servicing fee 
income. Loan servicing fees, net totaled $26, $22 and $21 for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, 
respectively. Late fees and ancillary fees related to loan servicing are not material. i 
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NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Transfers of Financial Assets: Transfers of financial assets are accounted -for as sales when control over the assets has been 
relinquished. Control over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when the assets have been isolated from the 
Company, the transferee obtains the right (free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to pledge or 
exchange the transferred assets^ and the Company does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets through an 
agreement to repurchase them before theirmaturity: ' * 

Foreclosed Assets: Assets acquired throiigh or instead of loan foreclosure are initially recorded at fair value less costs to sell 
when acquired, establishing a; new cost basis. These assets are, subsequently accounted for at lower of cost or fair value less 
estimated costs to sell. If fair value declines subsequent to foreclosure, a>valuation allowance is recorded through expense. 
Operating costs after acquisition are expensed. - :; • 

Premises and Equipnient: Land is carried at cost. Premises and equipment are stated, at cost less accumulated depreciation. 
Buildings and related components are depreciated using the straight-line method with useful lives ranging from 3 to 40 years. 
Fumiture, fixtures and equipment are depreciated using the sfraight-line method with useful lives ranging from 2 to 25 years. ; 

Federal Home Loan Bank'(FHLB) stock: CFBank is a member ofthe FHLB system. Members are required to owri a' 
certairi amount of stock based on the level of borrowings and other factors, and may invest iri additional amounts. FHLB 
stock is carried at cost, classified as a resfricted security, and periodically evaluated for impairment based on ultimate 
recovery of par value. Both cash and stock dividends are reportedas income. . . 

Bank Owned Life Insurance: CFBank purchased life insurance policies on certain directors and employees in 2002. Bank 
owned life insurance is recorded at the amount that can be realized under the insurance contract at the balance sheet date, 
which is the cash surrender value adjusted for other charges or other amounts due that are probable at settlement. 

Other Intangible Assets: Other intangible assets consist of identified intangibles from the purchase.of the remaining two-
thirds interest in Smith Ghent LLC in October 2009. The intangible-asset was initially measured at fair valueand is being 
amortized ori a straight-linerriethod over the estimated life of 4.5 years. ' ' • ' . 

Loan Commitnients and Reliated Finahciallnstruments: Financial instraments include Off-balance-sheet credit 
instraments; such as commitments to make loans and commercial letters of credit, issued to meet custbrrier finaricihg needs: 
The face amount for these items represents the exposure to loss, before considering customer collateral or ability to repay. 
Such financial instraments are recorded when they are funded. 

Derivatives: Derivative financial instraments are recognized as assets or liabilities at fair value. The Company's derivatives 
consist mainly of interest rate swap agreements, which are used as part of its asset liability management program to help 
manage interest rate risk: The Company does not use derivatives for trading purposes. The derivative transactions are 
considered inStriirnents with no hedging designation, otherwise known as stand-alone derivatives. Changes iti the fair value 
ofthe derivatives arereportedcurrently in eamings, as othernoninterest income. .;: ' 

Mortgage Banking Derivatives: Commitments to fund mortgage loans to be sold into the secondary market, otherwise 
known as interest rate locks, are accounted for as free standing derivatives. Fair values of these mortgage derivatives are 
based on anticipated gains on the underlying loans. Changes in the fair values of these derivatives are included in netga:ins 
on sales ofloans. 

Stock-Based Compensation: Compensation cost is recognized for stock options and restricted stock awards issued to 
directors and employees, based ori the fair value of these awards at the date of grant. A Black-Scholes model is utilized to 
estimate the fair value of stock options, while the market price ofthe Company's common stock at the date of grant is used 
for restricted stock awards. Compensation cost is recognized over the required service period, generally defined as the 
vesting period. For awards with graded vesting, compensation cost is recognized on a sfraight-line basis over the required 
service period for each separately vesting portion of the award. 
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NOTE I - SUMMARY O F SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Income Taxes: Income tax expense is the total of the current year income tax due or refundable and the change in deferred 
taxassets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are the expected future tax amounts for the temporary differences 
between carrying amounts and tax bases of assets and UabiUties, computed using enacted tax rates. A full valuation 
allowance was recorded in 2009 to reduce the carryingamountof the Company's net deferred tax asset to zero. See Note 14 
-Income Taxes. 

A tax position is recognized as a benefit only if it is "more likely than not" that the tax position would be sustained in a tax, 
examination, with a tax examination being presumed to occur. The amount recognized is the largest amount of tax benefit; 
that is greater than 50%) likely of being realized on examination. For tax positions not meeting the "more likely than not" 
test, no tax benefit is recorded. ; , 

The Company recognizes interest related to income tax niatters as interest expense and penalties related to income tax matters 
as other noninterest expense. 

Retirement Plans: Pension expense is the amountof annual contributions to the multi-employer contributory trasteed 
pension plan. Employee 401 (k) and profit sharing plan expense is the amount of matching contiibutions. Supplemental 

' retirement plan expense allocates the benefits over years of service. 

Reclassifications and Reverse Stock Split: Some items in the prior period financial statements were reclassified to conform 
to the current presentation. Reclassifications did not impact prior period net loss or total stockholders'equity. On May 4, 
2012, the Company completed a l-for-5 reverse stock split, whereby every 5. shares ofthe Company's common stock were 
reclassified into one share of common stock. All share and per share amounts for all periods presented have been adjusted to 
reflect the reverse split as though it had occurred prior to the earliest period presented. 

Earnings (Loss) Per Common Share: Basic eamings (loss) per common share is net income (loss) available to common 
stockholders divided by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. All outstariding 
unvested share-based payment awards that contain rights to nonforfeitable dividends are considered participating securities 
for this calculation. Diluted eamings per common share includes the dilutive effect of additional potential common shares 
issuable under stock options and the common stock warrant. Eamings and dividends per sha:re are restated fot all reverse 
stock splits through the date of issuance Of the financial statements. 

Comprehensive Income (Loss): Comprehensive income (loss) consists of net income (loss) and other comprehensive 
income (loss). Other comprehensive income (loss) includes unrealized gains and losses on securities available for sale, 
which are also recognized as a separate component of equity. 

Loss Contingencies: Loss contingencies, including claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course ofbusiness, are-
recorded as liabilities when the likelihood of loss is probable and an amount or range of loss can be reasonably estimated. 
Management does not believe there are any such matters that will have a material effect on the fmancial statements. See Note -
25 - Contingent Liabilities. 

Restrictions on Cash: Cash on hand or on deposit with the Federal Reserve Bank (FRB) is required to meet regulatory 
reserve and clearing requirements. Cash on deposh with the FHLB includes $3,300 pledged as collateral for FHLB 
advances. 

Equity: Treasury stock is carried at cost. The carrying value of preferred stock and the commOn stock warrant is based on 
allocation of issuance proceeds, net of issuance costs, in proportion to their relative fair values. Preferred stock is carried net 
of the discount estabUshed through the allocation of proceeds. 
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NOTE I - SUMMARY O E SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) ^ 
Dividend Restriction: Banking regulations require maintaining certain capital levels and may limit the dividends paid by 
CFBank to the Holding Company or.by the Holding Company to stockholders. On December>t5, 2008, the Company issued; 
7,225 shares of Central Federal Corporation Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stocky Series A (Preferred Stock) to; 
the United States Department ofthe Treasury (U.S. Treasury) under the Troubled Asset Relief Program (TARP) Capital; •* -
Purchase Program. This Preferred Stock has; since been retired as a part of fhe agreement with U:S. Treasury to retire all -
portions ofthe TARP obligation in September 2012. As defined in Note 2 - Regulatory Order Considerations and : .r;. -, 
Management's Plans, the Holding Company may not declare, make, or pay any cash dividends or other capital distributions 
or purchase, repurchase or redeem or commit,to purchase, repurchase, or redeem any Holding Company equity stock without 
the prior written non-objection ofthe Board of Govemors ofthe Federal Reserve System (FED). . 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments; Fair values of financial instraments are estimated using relevant market information 
and other assumptioris, as more fully disclosed in Note 6 - Fair Value. Fair value estimates involve uncertainties and matters 
of significant judgment regarding interest rates, credit risk, .prepayments, and other factors, especially in the absence ofbroad 
markets for particular items. Changes in assumptions or in rnarket conditions could significantly affect these estimates. , 

Operating Segments: .While the chief decision-makers,monitor the revenue streams ofthe Company's.various products and: 
services, operations are managed and financial performance is evaluated.on a Company-wide basis: Operating resuhs are not: 
reviewed by senior management to make resource allocation or performance decisions. Accordingly, all of the financial , : 
service operations are considered by management to be aggregated in one reportable operating segment. 

Adoptionof New Accounting Standards: , , . ; 
ASU No..2011-04, Amendments to Achieve Gommon Fair: Value Measurementsand Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP 
and IFRSs arriends FASB ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements, tobring U.S; GAAP^fdrfair value measurements in 
line with Intemational Accounting Standards;) The ASU clarifies ex:isting guidance for items such as: the application of the 
highest and best use concept to non-financial assets and liabilities; the application of fair value measurement to financial 
instruments classifiedin a reporting entity's stockholders' equity; and disclosure requirements regarding quantitative • :( ; ? 
information about unobservable inputs used in the fair value-measurements of level,3 assets. The ASU also creates an 
exception to Topic 820 for entities which carry financial instruments within a portfolio or group, under which the.entity is , 
now permitted to base the price used for fair valuation upon a price that would be received to sell the net asset position or 
transfer anet Uability position,in ̂ an orderly fransaction. The ASU also allows for the application of premiums and discounts 
in a fair value measurement if the fmancial instrument is categorized in level 2 or 3 of the fair value hierarchy. Lastiy, the ,._ 
ASU contains new disclosure requirements regarding fair value amounts categorized as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy 
such as: disclosureof the valuation process used; effects of and relationships between unobservable inputs; usage of 
nonfinancial assets for purposes ofher than their highest.and best use when that is the basis ofthe disclosed fair valtie; and 
categorization by level of items disclosed at fair value, but not measured at fair value forfmancial statement purposes. For , 
public entities, this ASU is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2011. Early adoption was: 
not permitted. The adoption ofthis ASU did not have a significant impact on the Company's consolidated financial <. , 
statements. ., 

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-05, Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Presentation of Comprehensive 
Income. This update provides an entity the option to present the total of comprehensive income, the components of net 
income, and the components of other comprehensive income either in a single continuous statement of comprehensive r 
income or in two separate but consecutive statements, In both choices, an entity is required to, present each component of net 
income along with total net income, each component of other comprehensive income along with a total for other 
comprehensive income, and a total amount for comprehensive income. In a single continuous statement, the entity is 
required to present the components of net income and total net income, the components of other comprehensive income and a 
total for other comprehensive income, along with the total of comprehensive income in that statement. In the two-statement 
approach, an entity is required to present components of net income and total net income in the statement of net income. The 
statement of other comprehensive income should immediately follow the statement of net income and include the 
components of other comprehensive income and a total for other comprehensive income, along with a total for 
comprehensive income. The amendments do not affect how eamings per share is calculated or presented. This update is 
effective for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2011 and is to be applied retrospectively. The 
adoption ofthis ASU did not have a significant impact on the Company's consolidated fmancial statements. The Company 
has presented comprehensive income in a separate Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss for the years ended 
December 31,2012, 2011, and 2010. 
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NOTE ,L-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

In December, 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-12, Deferral of the Effective Date to the Presentation of Reclassifications of 
Items Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income in Accounting Standards Update 2011-05 • In response tO ,. (j 
stakeholder concerns regarding the operational ramifications ofthe presentation of these reclassifications for current and 
previous years, the FASB has deferred the implementation date ofthis provision to aUow time for firrtherconsideration. The 
requirement in ASU 2011-05, Presentation of Comprehensive Income, for the presentation of a combined statement of 
comprehensive income or separate, but consecutive, statements of net income and other comprehensive income is still 
effective for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after December 15,2011 for public companies, and fiscal years 
ending after December 15, 2011 for nonpublic companies. The adoption ofthis ASU did not have a sigriificant inipact on .the 
Company's consolidated financial statements. 

EffectofNewIyissuedButNot Yet Effective Accounting Standards: i . - > = 
In December, 2011, the FASBissued ASU 2011-11, Disclosures about Offsetting Assets arid Liabilities, in an effort to , 
improve comparability between U.S. GAAP and intemational financial reporting standards (''IjF.RS") finaricial statements 
with regard to the presentation of offsetting assets and liabilities on the statementof financial position arisirig frorh financial 
and derivative instraments, and repurchase agreements. The ASU establishes additionaldisclosures presenting the. gross ,: 
amounts of recognized assets and liabilities, offsetting amounts, and the net balance reflected in the statement of financial 
position. Descriptive information regarding the nature and rights ofthe offset must also be disclosed. The new standard is 
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1,2013, and interim periods within those annual periods. 
The Company does not expect this ASU to have a significant impact on its consolidated financial statenients. 

In January;2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-01, Balance Sheet (Topic 210); Clarifying the, Scope oJ Disclosures about 
Offsetting Assets and Liabilities. The main objective ofthis standards update is to address implementation issues about the 
scope, of Accounting Standards Update No. 20X1-11, Balance Sheet (Topic 210): Disclosures'About offsetting Assets and 
Liabilities. The amendments clarify that the scope of Update 2011-11 applies tO; derivatives accounted for in accordance with 
Topic:815, Derivatives and Hedging, including .bifurcated embedded derivatives, repurchase agreements and reverse 
repurchase agreements, and securities borrowing and securities lending fransactions that are either offset in accordance with 
Section 210-20-45 or Section 815-10-45 or subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement. An 
entify is required to apply the amendments for fiscal years beginning on or after January 1,2013, arid interim periods within 
those annual periods. An entify should provide the required disclosures retrospectively for all comparative period presented. 
The Company does not expect this ASU to have a significant impact on its consolidated financial statements. ,. 

In Febraary 2013, the FASB issued ASH No. 2013-02, Comprehensive Income (Topic 220); Reporting of Amounts 
Reclassified Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income. The objective ofthis tjpSate is to improve the reporting of 
reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income. The amendments in this Update require aii; entify to report 
the effect of significant; reclassifications out of Accumulated other comprehensive incorne on the respective line items in net 
income if the amount being reclassified is required under U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) to be 
reclassified in its enfirefy to net income. Vox other amounts that are not required under U.S. GAAP to be reclassified in their 
eritirety to net income in the same reporting period, an entify is required to cross-reference other disclosures required under 
U.S. GAAP that provide additional detaUaboiit those amounts. For public entities, the amendments are effective 
prospectively for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2015. The Company does not expect this ASU to have a 
significant impact on its consolidated financial statements. , 

NOTE 2 - REGULATORY ORDER CONSIDERATIONS AND MANAGEMENT'S PLANS 

Regulatory Order Considerations: 
On May 25, 2011, the Holding Company and CFBank each consented to the issuance of an Order to Cease and Desist (the 
Holding Company Order and the CFBank Order, respectively, and collectively, the Orders) by the Office of Thrift 
Supervision (OTS), the primary regulator ofthe Holding Company and CFBank at the time the Orders were issued. In July 
2011, in accordance with the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the Dodd-Frank Act), the FED 
replaced the OTS as the primary regulator ofthe Holding Company and the Office ofthe Comptroller ofthe Currency (OCC) 
replaced the OTS as the primary regulator of CFBank. 
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NOTE 2 - REGULATORY ORDER CONSIDERATIONS AND MANAGEMENT'S PLANS (Cofitinued) 

The Holding Company Order requires it, among other things, to: (i) submit by every December 31 a capital plan to regulators 
that establishes a minimum tangible capital ratio comniensurate with the Holding Company's consolidated risk profile, 
reduces the risk from current debt leivels and addresses the Holding Company's cash flow needs; (ii) not pay cash dividends, 
redeem stock or make any other capital distributions without prior regulatory approval; (iii) not pay interest or priricipalon • 
any debt or increase any Holding Company debt or guarantee the debt of any entify without prior regulatory approval; (iv) 
obtain prior regulatory approval for changes in directors and senior executive officers; and (v) not enter into any new 
conttactual arrangement related to compensation or benefits with any director or senior executive officer without prior 
notification to regulators. • ,-• • , .-

The CFBank Order requiresit, among other things, to: (i) maintain 8%) core capital and 12% total risk-based capital, after 
establishing an adequate allowance for loan and lease losses; (ii) submit every December 31 a capital and busiriess plan to 
regulators that describes sfrategiestb meet these required capital ratios and contains operating sfrategies to achieve realistic 
core eamirigs; (iii) i-a:ise capital to reich the required levels; (iv) not originate, participate in or acquire any nonresideritial real 
estate loans or corrimercial loaris riot in line with agreed Board approval condhions^ loan poUcies and credit administration 
procedures; (v) adopt a'revised credit administration policy, problem asset reduction plan, management succession plan and 
liquidify management policy; (vi) limh asset growth in line with the Business Plan absent prior regulatory approval for 
additional growth; (vii) riot pay cash dividends or make any other capital distributions without prior regulatory approval; 
(viii) obtain prior regulatoiy approval for changes in'directors and senior executive officers; (ix) not enter into any new 
confractual arrangement related to compensation or benefits with any director or senior executive officer without prior 
notification to regulators; (x) not enter into any significant arrangement or contract with a third party service provider without 
pridr regulatory approval; and'(xi) coinply with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) limits on brokered ' • 
deposits. As a result ofthe CFBank Order, we'are prohibited from offering above-market interest rates arid are subject to 
market rates published by the FDIC when offeririg deposits to the general public: As a result ofthe CFBank Order, CFBank 
is considered "adequately capitaUzed" for regulatory purposes. If CFBank's capital falls below the levels to be considered 
adequately capitalized, it may be subject to substantially greater regulatory scratiny, including the imposition of additional 
restrictions on our operations. 

The Company has beeri unprofitable for the past three years. If we do not generate profits in the future, our capital levels will 
be negatively impacted and the regulators could take additional enforcement action agairist us, including the iniposition of 
further operating restrictions. : 

Because CFBank is under a iegulatpfy order, it is prohibited from accepting or renewing brokered deposits, including 
reciprocal deposits in the Certificate of Deposit Account Registry Service (CDARS) program, vvithout FDIC approval. 
CFBank received Umited waivers from the prohibition on renewal of reciprocal CDARS deposits from the FDIC, each for 90 
da:y periods which expired on September 20,2011, December 19, 2()11, March 18, 2012,JurieT6; 2012^ September 14, 2012, 
December 13,2013, and a current limited waiver which expires on March 13, 2013. the current liriiited waiver allows' 
CFBank to roll over or renew core deposits in the reciprocal CDARS program that have yet to mature Or have matured and 
remained with CFBank between December 14, 2012 and March 13, 2013. Management intends to submit additional requests 
for waivers in the future; however, there can be no assurance that the requests will be granted by the F'DIC or that customers 
will roll over or renew their CDARS deposits even if CFBank is granted additional waivers: On Febraary 28,2013, CFBank 
received a waiver for a 90-day period to allow the bank to renew deposits under the CDARS prograiti. The 90-day waiver / 
period rans from March 14, 2013, through June 12,2013. 
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NOTE 2 - REGULATORY ORDER CONSIDERATIONS AND MANAGEMENT'S PLANS (Continued) 

The prohibition on brokered deposits significantly limits CFBank's abilify to participate in the CDARS program and impacts 
CFBank's hquidify management. As a resultof the lossesin 2009, 2010 and the first quarter of 2011, management had been 
concemed that CFBarik would be resfricted from acceptirig or renewing brokered deposits, in addition to other regulatory 
restrictions, and moved aggressively in 2011, prior to receipt ofthe CFBank Order, to build on-balance-sheef hquidify to deal 
with scheduled brokered deposh maturities and the potential impact of other regulatory resttictions on liquidify. This practice, 
is no longer being followed. At December 31, 2012, CFBank had $32,095 in brokered deposits with matarify dates from 
January 2013 through August 2016. At December 31, 2012, cash, unpledged securities and deposits in other financial 
institutions totaled $32,396, which is sufficient to cover brokered deposit maturities in 2013. Brokered deposit maturities . 
over the next four years are as follows: 

December 31, 2013 

December 31,2014 . : 

December 31, 2015 

December 31, 2016 

S 

S 

16.851 

5.199 

9.422 

623 

32.095 

; The Holding Company is dependent on dividends from CFBank to provide the liquidify necessary to meet hs obligations. As 
of December 31, 2011, pursuant to the CFBank Order, CFBank may not declare or pay dividends or make any other capital 
distributions without receiving the prior written approval ofthe OCC. Future dividend payments by CFBank to the Holding 
Company would be based onfuture eamings and the approval of the OCC. The payment of dividends from CFBank to the 
Holding Company is not likely to be approved by the OCC while CFBank is suffering losses. 

The directives contained in the Orders, including higher capital requirements, requirements to reduce the level of our 
classified and criticized assets and,various operating restrictions may impede our fiiU abilify to operate our business and 
compete effectively in our markets. 

We have taken such actions as we believe are necessary to comply with all requirements ofthe Orders which are currently 
effective and we are continuing to work toward compUance with the provisions ofthe Orders having fiittire compliance dates. 

The following approvals, nOn-objections, notifications and waivers were received or provided with regard to the Orders: 

• approval was received from the Federal Reserve Bank of Cleveland on July 13,2012 and regulatory non-objection 
was received from the OCC on August 23, 2012 for redemption ofthe TARP obligations; 

• approval was received from the FED ori October .29,2012 for payment of interest on the subordihated debentures; 

» regulatory non-objection was received from the OCC on June 14,2012 and from the Federal Reserve Bank of 
Cleveland on June 20, 2012 for the additions of Timothy T. O'Dell, Thad R: Perry, Robert E. Hoeweler, James 
Howard Frauenberg, II and Donal Malenick as directors ofthe Company and CFBank, and Mr. O'Dell, Mr. Perry 
as Chief Executive Officer and President, respectively, of the Company and CFBank; 

• notification of new contractual arrangements related to compensation or benefits for new senior executive officers 
was provided to the FED and OCC on September 24, 2012; 

• the contingency plan requirement was extended by the OCC until the earlier of 15 days after termination of the 
stock offering or January 31, 2012, and further extended by the OCC to 90 days after FED approval ofthe standby 
purchasers'change^in-cOntrolapplicatiori; 

• the requirement for regulatory approval to originate, participate in or acquire any nonresidential real estate loans or 
commercial loans was waived by OCC on November 9, 2011, subject to certain Board approval conditions, loan 
policies and credh administration procedures. 

The requirements ofthe Orders will remain in effect until terminated, modified or suspended by our regulators. 
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NOTE 2 - REGULATORY ORDER CONSIDERATIONS AND MANAGEMENT'S PLANS (Continued) 

CapitalRaise: ^ ' ' 
The Company announced the terms of a registered common stock offering of up to. $30,000 on August9, 2011; The ' 
registered common stock offering consisted of a $24,965 rights offering and a $5,035 offering to a group of standby -
purchasers. Under the terms ofthe rights offering, all record holders ofthe Company's common stock as of Febniafy 8, 2012 
received, at no charge, one subscription right for each share of conimon stock held as of therecord date, which was prior to -
the 1 for 5 reverse stock spUt effective May 4, 2012: Each subscription right entitled the holder of the right to purchase 
6.0474 shares of Company common stock (pre-split) at a subscription price'of$ 1.00 per share (pre-split). - Shares were also 
available to the public at $l;00 per share. I n addition, for,each three shares of common stock purchased, purchasers were to 
receive, at no charge, one warrant to purchase one additional share of common stock at a purchase price of $1.00 jper;share. 
The warrants were to be exercisable for three years: The Company had separately entered into a series of standby purchase 
agreements with a group of investors led by Timothy T. O'Dell, Thad R. Perry and. Robert E. Hoeweler, Under the standby 
purchase agreements, the standby purchasers were to acquire 5.0 million shares of Company common stock at a price of 
$ 1.00 per share and receive warrants with the same terms and conditions as all purchasers in the rights offering. The standby 
purchasers had conditioned their purchase of shares of common stock upon the receipt'by the Company of at least $16,500 in 
net proceeds from the rights offering. The registration statement related to the rights offering was filed with the SEC and 
became effective on Febraary 8, 2012. , 

In April 2012, the Company suspended this offering and retumed all subscriptions received. The Company subsequently 
modified the terms ofthe offering and filed post-effective aineridments to its registration statemerit with the SEC, and the' 
amended regisfration statement was declared effective on June 14,2012; ' 

The restractured registered common stock offering consisted of a rights-offering of up to $18,O0O and a $4,50O offering to a 
group of standby purchasers, as weU as apublic offering ofany urisold shares: Under the terms ofthe rights offering, all 
holders ofthe Company's common stock as ofthe record date, June 14, 2012, received, at no charge, one subscription right 
for each share of common stock held as of the record date, which was after the I for 5 reverse stock split effective May 4; 
2012. Each subscription right entitled the holder of the right to purchase 14.5329 shares of Company common stock (post-
split) at a subscription price of $1.50 per share (post-split). The rights offering period expired on July 16, 2012, and 
unsubscribed shares were made available to the public beginning on July 17, 2012, at $1.50 per share, the public offering of 
unsubscribed shares of common stock ended on August 14,2012. The Company separately entered irito a series of standby ' 
purchase agreements with a group of investors led by Timothy T:'O'Dellj Thad R. Perry'and Robert E : Hoeweler. Under the 
standby purchase agreements, the standby purchasers agreed to purchase 3.0 million shares of Company common stock at a 
price of $ 1.50 per share. The standby purchasers had conditioned their purchase of shares of cbmmon stock upon the receipt 
by the Company of at least $13,500 in net proceeds from the rights offering and public offering. 

On August 20, 2012, the Company annouriced the successful completion of its restractured registered common stock 
offering. The Company sold 15.0 million shares of its common stock (including shares sold to the standby purchasers) at 
$1.50 per share, resulting in gross proceeds of $22,500 before expenses of $2,279. 

A portion ofthe proceeds from the restractured registered common stock offering was retained by the Holding Company for 
general corporate purposes and is estimated to be sufficient to support the Holding Company's cash requirements for the 
foreseeable future based on its current business plan. The Holding Company and its subsidiaries, other than CFBank, had 
available cash of $4,673 at December 31, 2012. Holding Company cash provided from net proceeds ofthe stock offering 
was reduced by $3,000 for redemption ofthe TARP obligations and a $13,500 capital contribution to CFBank to improve hs 
capital ratios and support future growth and expansion, bringing CFBaiik into comjjliance with the capital ratios required by 
the CFBank Order. See Note 17,- Preferred Stock and Note 18 - Common Stock Warrant for additional information on 
redemption ofthe TARP obligations. The Holding Company's current cash requirements include debt service on the 
subordinated debentures and operating expenses. See Note 12 - Subordinated Debentures for additional information on debt 
service requirements ofthe subordinated debentures. Management believes the Holding Company's liquidify is sufficient at 
December 31,2012. " '- • 
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NOTE 3 - SECURITIES 

The following table summarizes the amortized cost and fair value ofthe available-for-sale securities portfolio at Decemberi 
31, 2012 and 2011 and the corresponding amounts of gross unrealized gains and losses recognized in accumulated other 
comprehensive income: 

December 31,2012 
Corporate debt 
State and municipal 
Issued by U.S. govemment-sponsored entities and 

agencies: 
Mortgage-backed securities - residential 
Collateralized residential mortgage obligations 

Total 

December 31,2011 
Issued by U.S. govemment-sponsored entities and 

agencies: 
Mortgage-backed securities - residential 
Collateralized residential mortgage obligations 

Total 

.\ 

S 

S 

$. 

$^ 

monized 
C\>st 

4.429 
2.006 

1.399 
9,698 

17.532 

1,475 
16,655 
18,130 

L 

S 

s 

$ 

$ 

(jross 
nrcali/ed 
Ciuins 

-
-

87 
117 
204 

198 
204 
402 

I. 

s 

.$ 

$ 

$ 

Ciross 
nrealized 
Losses 

64 
20 

-
13 
97 

-
16 
16 

S 

S 

$ 

$ 

Fair 
Value 

4.365 
1.986 

1.486 
9.802 

17.639 

1,673 
16,843 
18,516 

There was no OTTI recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income for securities available for sale at December 31, 
2012 or 2011. 

The proceeds frorri sales of securities and the associated gains in 2012 and 2011 are listed below. " i 

,1 -, , • 

Proceeds 
Gross gains 
Gross losses 

Tax effect - expense 

2012 

$ 

$ 

2.144 
143 

_ 

20 Ll 

$ 

$ • 

12,219 
. 353 

_ 

$ 

^:$ ' -

2010 
13,632 

-468 

' , 159; 

The amortized cost and fair value of debt securities at year-end 2012, by contractual maturity. Expected maturities 
may differ from confractual maturities if borrowers have the rightto call or prepay obligations with or without. 
call or prepayment penalties. Securities not due ata single maturity date are shown separately. . ; 

Due in one year or less ' ' = 
Due after one year through five years 
Mortgage-backed securities 
Collateralized mortgage obligations 

Total 

Amortized Cost 
$ 50 

6385 
1,399 
9,698 

$• 17,532 

FairValue. 
$" • '^''50 
' • ' '6301 

1,486 
9,802 

$ 17,639 
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NOTE 3 - SECURITIES (Continued) 

Fair value of securities pledged was as follows: 

Pledged as coUateral for: • 
FHLB advances 
PubUc deposits 
Customer repurchase agreements 
Interest-rate swaps 

Total 

$ 

$ 

201. 1 

4.707 
2.199 

-
1.511 

8.417 

2011 

$ 

$ 

9336 
2,820 
3,557 
1,464 

17,177 

At year-end 2012 and 2011, there were no holdings of securities ofany one issuer, other than U.S. government^ 
sponsored entities and agencies, in an amount greater than 10% of stockholders' equity. 

The following table summai;izes securities yvith unrealized losses at Deceniber 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 
aggregated by major security type and length of time in a continuous unrealized loss position. 

December 31, 2012 

Descriotion of Securities 

Corporate debt 
State and municipal 
Issued by U.S. government-sponsored 

entities and agencies: , 
Collateralized mortgage 

obligations 
Total temporarily impaired 

December 31,2011 

Description of Securities 
Issued by U.S. govemment-sponsored 

entities and agencies: • 
Collateralized mortgage obligations 

Total temporarily impaired 

l.L'iN than 12 Monllis 

Fail V.iluo I iirc.ili/.ed l.o .̂̂  
S 4.365 i 64 

l.y.»6 20 

1.67.', \% 
S 7.'.)74 S 97 

- Less than 12 Months • 
Unrealized 

FairValue Loss 

$ 2,882 $ 16 
$ 2,882 $ 16 

12 Months or More Total 
Unrealized 

.Fair Value Loss , , - Fair Value Unrealized Loss 

S - $ 

, - $ ' ' • , ' , - • ' • , ; $ • - . • ' . * • . - .. 

12 Months or More 
Unrealized 

Fair Value Loss 

$ - $ 
$ - S 

S 4,365 S 64 
1,936 20 

1,673 13 
$ - , . 7,974 $ 97 

. • Total 
Unrealized 

FairValue Loss 

$ 2,882 $ , , ; 16 
$ 2,882 $ , ,16 

The umealized losses in Corporate debt and State and Municipal Securities in 2012 are related to multiple securities. 
Because the decline in fair value is attributable to changes in market conditions, and not credit qualify, and because the 
Company does not have the intent to sell these securities and it is Ukely that it will not be required to sell these securities 
before their anticipated recovery, the Company does not consider these securities to be other-than-temporarily impaired at 
December 31, 2012. TheunrealizedlossatDecember 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 in Collateralized Mortgage 
Obligations is related to two Ginnie Mae collateralized mortgage obligations. These securities carry the full faith and credit 
guarantee ofthe U.S. government. Because the decline in fair value is attributable to changes in market conditions, and not 
credit qualify, and because the Company does not have the intent to sell these securities and it is likely that it will not be 
required to sell these securities before their anticipated recovery, the Company does not consider these securities to be other-
than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2012. , , 
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NOTE 4 - L O A N S 

Loans at year-end were as follows: 

Commercial 
Realestate: 

Single-family residential 
Multi-family residential 
Commercial 
Constraction 

Consumer 
Home equify lines of credh 
Other 

Subtotal 
Less; ALLL - -

Loans, net 

2012 

$ 25.408 

43.058 
21.576 
54.29! 

14 

12.963 
970 

158.280 
(5.2.37) 

S 153.043 

2011 

$ 25,994 

18,214 
27,163 
69,757 

,,-

14,921 
1,221 

157,270 
(6,110) 

$ 151,160 

Mortgage Purchase Program 
On December 11,2012 the Bank entered into a Mortgage Purchase Program with Northpointe Bank (Northpointe), a 
Michigan banking corporation. At December 31,2012,. CFBank held $25,373 of such loans which have been included in̂  
single family residential loan totals above. Through a participation agreement, CFBank agreed to purchase from Northpointe 
75% interest in fully underwritten and pre-sold mortgage loans originated by various prescreened mortgage brokers located 
throughout the U.S. The participation agreement provides for CFBank to purchase individually (MERS registered) loans 
from Northpointe and hold them until funded by the end investor. The mortgage loan investors include Fannie Mae and 
Freddie Mac, and other major financial institutions such as Wells Fargo Bank. This process on average takes approximately 
14 days. Given the short term nature of each of these individual loans, common credh risks such as past due, impairment and 
TDR, nonperforming, and nonaccraal classification are substantially reduced. The maximum aggregate purchase interest 
shall not exceed $45,000. Northpointe maintains a 25% ownership interest in each loan h participates. The agreement 
further calls for full control to be relinquished by the Broker to Northpointe and hs participants with recourse to the broker 
after 120 days, at the sole discretion of Northpointe. As such, these purchased loaris are classified as portfolio loaris. These ,, 
loans are 100% risk rated for CFBank capital adequacy purposes.- '. 

The ALLL is a valuation aUowance for probable incurred credh losses in the loan portfoUo based on management's 
evaluation of various factors including past loan loss experience, the nature and volume ofthe portfolio, ihforrnation about-
specific borrower situations and estimated coUateral values, economic conditions and other factors. A provision for loap . 
losses is charged to operations based on management's periodic evaluation of these and other pertinent factors described in 
Note 1 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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NOTE 4 - LOANS (Continued) 

The following tables present the activify in the ALLL by portfolio segment for the year ended'December 31,2012 arid 2011: 

December 31.2012 

Beginning balance 
Addition to (reduction 

provision for loan 
losses 

Charge-offs 
Recoveries _ 

in) 

Ending balance 

C ominorcial 

S 2,281 

(1.251) 
(Wt 
3S0 

S 1.311 

Real Esiaie 

Sjiigle-
faniiK 

S 20 ' ' 

ISII 
(64) 

9 

S 332 

Mulii-
(iimilv 

S 1.470 

700 
C % ) 

22 

S \.V)(, 

C iinimercial 

S l.S6'> 

1,412 
(1.46-') 

P̂ X 

S. 1.946 

Construction 

$ ' /v-" 

' 
-

, : • , • 

$-, 

CoiiMiMivir 

Home 
equitv hne*. of 

L-redit 

S 2''2 

-•X 
(126) 

17 

S 241 

s 

s 

Oihei 

17 

10 

(3')) 
23 

II 

$ 

$ 

10[.|1 

K.I 10 

1.12') 
(2. ' ;9i) 

'i^y 

5 . : i " 

Beginning balance 
Addition to (reduction in) 

provision for loaii 
losses 

Charge-offs 

Recoveries 
Reclass of ALLL on loan-

related commitments ' ' ' 

Ending balance 

Commercial 

$ 1,879 

1,481 

(1,296) 

214 

3 

$ 2,281 

December 31,2011 

Real Estate 

Single-
family 

• $ 241 

83 

(124) 

7 

, - -
$ 207 

Multi-
family 

- $ 2,520 •• • 

2,108 

(3,167) , 

, 9 , 

/ • ' , ' ' , ? . r 

$ 1,470' -

' Commercial 

$ 4,719 

. (406) 

(2,652) 

202 

-" 
' ' $ 1 , 8 6 3 

Construction 

$ 

$ 

74 

(74) , 

-
_ 

."'-
-

-
Consumer 

Home 
equity lines of 

credit 

S 303 

183 

(241) 

27 

-
$ • 272' 

Other 

• $ 22 

• • . i ' -

,.- -
. ..(1.8) 

13 

-
$ " 17" 

---.=--

. , ,,̂, ... 
. TotaL,,./ 

• $ 9,758 

3,375 , 

(7,498). 

. : , 472., 

3 

••$ 6,110 

Reclassified from (to) accrued Interest payable and other liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet. 

Actiyifyin the ALLL was as follows: 

Beginning balance 
Provision for loan losses 

Reclassificatiori of ALLL on loan-related commitments *̂ '' 
Loans charged-off 
Recoveries 

Ending balance 

2010 

$ 

$ 

7,090 
8,468 

10 
(6,165) 

355 

9,758 
(1) 

Reclassified from (to) accrued interest payable and other liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet. 
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NOTE 4 - LOANS (Continued) 

The following table presents the balance in the ALLL and the recorded investment in loans by portfolio segment and based 
on impairment method as of December 31, 2012: , 

ALLL: 
Ending allowance 
balance attributable to 
loans: 

Individually 
evaluated for ' 
impairment 

Collectively 
evaluated for 

, impairment 
Total ending 

allowance 
balance 

Loans: 
Individually evaluated 

for impairment 
Collectively evaluated 

for impairment 
Total ending loan 

balance , 

Commercial 

$ 

$' 

$ 

$ 

609 

702 

1,311 

1,091 

24,317 

25,408 

Real l•.̂ l,lle 

Single-family 

$ 

$ 

$ 

S 

71 

26] 

332 

129 

42.929 

43.058 

Muiti-f.!nill\ 

S 

$ 

$ 

$ 

24 

1,372 

1,396 

2,167 

19,409 

21.576 

(, ommercial 

" $ 126 • 

• 1,820 

S IS4€ 

$ 6,467 

47,824 

, S 54,291 

Construction 

$ 

$ 

.$ 

$ 

-

-

14 

14 

( iinxunier 
1 loiiic eqim> 
liiK"; ol iTt-dil 

$ 

241 

$ , 241 

12,963 

$ 12,953 

Other 

1 

s 

$ 

$ 

n 

11 

970 

970 

Total 

$ 

$ 

S 

$ 

830 

4,407 

5,237 

9,854 

148,426 

158,280 

The foUowing table presents the balance in the ALLL and the recorded investrnent in loans by portfolio segment and based 
on impairment method as of December 31, 2011: 

ALLL: 
Ending allowance balance attributable 
. to loans: 

Individually evaluated for 
impairment 

. Collectively evaluated for 
impairment ; 

Total ending allowance balance 

Loans: 

Individually evaluated for impairment 

Collectively evaluated for impairment 

Total ending loan balance 

Commercial 

$ 624 

, 1,657 

$ 2,281 

$ ' 821" • 

25,173 

$ 25,994 ' 

Real Estate 

Single-family 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

207 

207 

18,214 

18,214 

• 

Multi-family 

$ 11 

.. 1,459 

S ' 1,470 

S 5,090 

22,073 

$ 27,163 

Commercial 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

262 

1,601 

1,863 

6,085 ' 

63,672 

69,757 

Consumer 

Home equity 
lines of credit 

$ 

• 272 . 

$ . 272 

$ 135 

14,786 

S 14,921 

Other 

S 

$ • 

$ 

$-

17 

17 

1-221 

1,221 

Total 

S- 897 

. 5,213 

S 6,110 

. S • T2,13l' 

145,139 

$ 157,270 
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NOTE 4 - LOANS (Continued) 

The following table presents loans individually evaluated for irnpairment by class ofloans as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2012. The unpaid principal balance is the contractual principalbalance outstanding. The recorded investment 
is the unpaid principal balance adjusted for partial charge-offs, purchase premiums and discounts, deferred loan fees and 
costs and includes accraed interest . 

With no related allowance recorded: 
Commercial 
Realestate: 

Single-family residential 
Multi-family residential 
Commercial: 
Non-owner occupied 
Owner occupied 
Land 
Constraction 

Consumer: 
Home equify lines of credit: 

Originated for portfolio 
Purchased for portfolio 

Other 
Total with no aUowance recorded 

With an allowance recorded: 
Commercial 
Real estate: 

Single-family residential 
Multi-family residential 
Commercial: 

Non-owner occupied 
Owner occupied 
Land 
Constraction 

Consumer: 
Home equity lines of credit: 

Originated for portfolio 
Purchased for portfolio 

Other 
Total with an allowance recorded 
Total 

Unpaid 
Principal 
Balance 

S I.V) 

-
2,001 

3,000 
2.195 

-
-

-
-
-

7.332 

970 

129 
2X8 

2.23 )̂ 
39fi 

43S 

-
-
-

4.4(>0 
S 11.792 

• Recorded 
, -Investment 

: ; J - ' ' - ^ • • ' 

$ ' •':• 1 2 1 

[ ; - . ' 

1,879.: 

2,195^ 
1,244 

-
-

. - - " : ' ' - , . . • . -

• ' • - " ' ' . ' ; - • , 

. , - , , , ' • 

- • - • ' . - • • 

•5,439 

970 

129 
288 

2,239 
396 
393 

-
-
-

4,415 
$ 9,854 

.ALLL 
^Allocated 

$ • • "'v^- • -
• - ; ^ ' . 

• ; • ' - - - , . - ' 

~ 
' • " ' , 

-
-
-
-

, ,~. , -
-
-
-

609 

71 
24 

105 
7 

14 

-
-
-

830 
$ 830 

,A\cragc 
Recorded 

Invcsimcni 

S 503 

" 
2.223 

1.819 
1.258 

-
-

-
-
-

5.803 

658 

129 
1.975 

2,650 
397 
396 

-
-
-

6.205 
S I2.00S 

Inicresl Income 
Rccogni/cd 

S 

-
-

-
-

-

-
-
-
-

5 

-) 
1 

56 
6 
6 

-
-
-

•76 

,S 76 
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NOTE 4 - LOANS (Continued) : - : 

The foUowing table presents loans individually evaluated for impairment by class of loans as of December 31, 2011: 

With no related allowance recorded: 
Commercial 
Realestate: 

Single-family residential 
Multi-family residential 
Commercial: 

Non-owner occupied 
Owner occupied 
Land 

Consumer: 
Home equify lines of credh: 
Originated for portfolio 

Total with no allowance recorded 

With an allowance recorded: 
Commercial 
Real estate: 

Muhi-family residential 
Commercial: 

Non-owner occupied 
Owner occupied 
Land 

Total with an allowance recorded 
Total . . 

Unpaid 
Principal 
Balance 

$ 573 

-
6,748 

2,171 
876 

-

135 
10,503 

796 

94 

2,823 
411 
766 

.. 4,890: 
$ .15,393 

Recorded 
Investment 

$ 47 

-
4,996 

1,755 
446 

. 

135 
7,379 

774 

94 

2,823 
411 
650 

4,752 . 
$ 12,131 

ALLL 
Allocated 

$ 

-
-

-
-
-

-
-

624 

11 

210 
20 
32 

897. 
:•;$: ...... 897 . 

Average 
Recorded 

Investment 

$ 1,171 

23 
3,396 

1,446 
1,017 

-

136 
7,189 

428 

48 

1,322 
211 
681 

2,690 
:$ 9,879 

Interest 
Income 

Recognized 

$ 

., -
• • • • ; . -

-
-

• • - • • 

. . . • . , . - • • - - • : 

30 

3 - : 

85 
43 
42 

203 
$ 203 

Average of individually impaired loans during the year 
Interest income recognized during impairment 

2010 

11,722 
41 

There was no cash basis interest income recognized during the years ended December 31, 2012,2011 or 2010. 
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NOTE 4 - LOANS (Continued) , i . . U 

The following table presents: the recorded investment in nonaccraal loans by class ofloans as of December 31; 2012 and « 
2011: 

• • ' ' i 

Loans past due over 90 days still on accraal: 
Real estate: 

Commercial: 
Non-owner occupied 

Other consumer loans 
Total over 90 days StiU on accraal loans i 
Nonaccraal loans: '; 

Commercial 
Realestate: 

Single-family residential 
Multi-family residential 

Commercial: ' . ; 

Non-owner occupied 

Owner occupied : ; 

Constraction ,, 

Consumer: ' ; ' 

Home equify lines of credit: 

Originated for portfolio 

Purchased for portfolio 
Other consumer . 

Totalnonaccraalloaris . : : , - , : 

Total nonaccriial and nonperfonning loans .;" 

December 

.$ 

31.2012 

-
-
-
-

714 

113 
2.082 

2.195 

1,243 

-

9 
-

6.356 

S 6,356 

December 31, 2011 

: • ' • ' : ' . ' - ' - • . -

$ 
. : • . ' . 

- . ' • " • ' - • 

.. ---...• 
• ' . ' . " -

;• '47' 

' 7 3 6 ' • 

4 , 9 9 6 ^ 

- ; 1,910 J; 

446 

... ,. 

157 

' ' ' • 9 . : ; , 

-
8,301/ 

' $ 8,301 

Nonaccraal loans include both smaller balance single-family mortgage and consumer loans that are collectively evaluated for 
impairment and individuaUy classified itnpaired loans: 
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NOTE 4 - LOANS (Continued) 
• i . '" 

i 

The following table presents the aging ofthe recorded investment in past due loans by class of loans as of December 31, 
2012: 

Commercial 

Real estate: 

Single-family residential 

Muhi-family residential 

Commercial: 

Non-owner occupied 

Owner occupied 

Land 

Construction 

Consumer: 

Home equity lines of credit: 

Originated for portfolio :, 

Purchased for portfoUo • 

Other 

Total 

30-59 Days 
PastDue 

$ . 

1,105 

-

40 

-
-
. 

20 

-
tg -

$ 1,183 

60-89 Days 
: PastDue 

$ - 65 

. : .122 

-

. -
-
-
- -

-
• 

$ 187 

Greater than 90 
Days Past Due 

$ 121 

. 74. • 

-

1,611 

-
-

- -

9 

• -
$ 1,815 

Total Past Diie 

- $ 

$ 

186 

1,301 

-

1,651 

-
-
--

^ 20 

9 

18 

3,185 

Loatis Not Past Due 

• $ -

$ 

- 25.222 • 

41,75? 

21,576 

28,299 

19,774 

4,568 

14 

10,699 

2,235 -

951 

155,095 

Nonaccrual Loans 
Not > 90 days Past 

Due 

$ 593 

39 

2,082 

583 

1,244 

-

-

•: - • _ . • 
$ 4,541 

The following table presents the aging ofthe recorded investment in past due loans by class ofloans as of December 31, 
2011: 

Commercial , . , 

Real estate: 

Single-family residential 

Muhi-family residential 

Commercial: 

Non-owner occupied 
Owner occupied 

Land 

Consumer: 
Home equity lines of 

credit: 

Originated for portfolio 

Purchased for portfolio 

Other 

Total 

30-59 Days 
PastDue 

$ .103 

714 

• ' -

173 • 

22 

-
-

$ 1,012 

60-89 Days 
PastDue 

$ 

474 

-

275 

-

- • 

-
30 

$ 779 

Greater than 90 
Days Past Due 

$., .. :..^-„. 

491 

. . . 3,065 

68 

, -

135 

• 9 

--

$ 3,768 

Total Past Due 

S 

' 

$ 

103 . 

1,679 

3,065 ' 

' 516 

-

157 

9 

30 

5,559 

Loans Not Past 
Due 

$ . 25,891 

16,535 

. 24,098 

35,899 
27,900 

5,442 

12,126 

2,629 

1,191 

$ 151,711 

Nonaccrual Loans 
Not > 90 days Past 

Due 

' $ 47 . 

245 

. .̂  ;:1:',931 

1,842 
446 

-

22 

-
' • • 

$ 4,533 
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NOTE 4 - LOANS (Continued) : ^ .. ,—̂  -

TDRs , .v . . . . / . • • . : . • ' • '•: : .^ , 

The Company has allocated $830 and $897 of specific reserves to loans whose terms have been modified in TDRs as of 
December 31,2012 and 2011. The Company has not committed to lend additional amouiits as of December 31, 2012 or 2011 
to customers with outstanding loans that are classifiedas TDRs. 

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the terms of certain-loans were modified as TDRs, where concessions had been 
granted to borrowers experiencing financial difficulties. The modification ofthe terms of such loans may have included one 
or a combination ofthe following: a reduction of the stated interest rate of the loan;' an increase in the stated rate of iriterest | 
lower than the current market rate for new debt with similar risk; an extension of the maturify date; or a change in the 
payment terms. 

There were no modifications involving a reduction ofthe stated interest rate. Modifications involving an extension ofthe 
maturify date were for periods ranging from 2 months to 4 years. 

The following table presents loans modified as TDRs by class ofloans during the year erided December 31, 2012: 

Cominercial 

Realestate: ' ' 
Single-family residential 
Multi-family residential 
Commercial: 

Non-owner occupied 
Total A 

Number of Loans 

• . • • : ' ' 2 - ; . , 

1 
• 1 

' , 1 
• 5 -

Prc-Modificalion 
Oiiislanding 

Recorded 
Investment 

$ 319 

132 
2.017 

$ 2.946 

Post-Modillcalion 
Ouistanding 

Recorded 
Unc.'.lmenl 

$ 319 

138 
203 

428 
S 1.088 

The TDRs described above increased the allowance forloan losses by $97 and resulted in charge-offs of $797 during the :year 
ended December 31, 2012. 

The following table presents loans modified as TDRs by class of loans during the year ended December 31,2011: 

Commercial 

Real estate: 

Muhi-family residential 

Commercial: 

Non-owner occupied 

Owner occupied 

Land 

Total 

Number of Loans 

4 

2 

5 

3 

7 . 

21 

Pre-Modification 
Outstariding 

Recorded Investment 

$ 1,127 

2,507 

2,710 

1,355 

655 

$ 8,354 

Post-Modification 
Outstanding 

Recorded Investment 

$ 1,105 

2,051 

: 2,710 

1,355 

655 

$ 7,876 
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NOTE 4 - LOANS (Continued) 

The TDRs described above increased the allowance for loan losses by $897 and resulted in charge­offs of $699 during the 
year ended December 31,2011. ^ • ^ 

During 2012 there were no loans classified as troubled debt restracturings for which there was a payment default within ; 
twelve months following the modification. During the year ending 2011, there was one commercial loan with a total i ; 
recorded investment of $47 at December 31, 2011 which had been modified as a TDR in May 2011 for which therewas a 
payment default within twelve months following the modification. ' : ' 

The terms of certain other .loans were modified during the year ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 that did not meet the J 
definition of a TDR. These loans had a total recorded investinent of $13,298 and $17,498 as of December 31,2012 and i 
2011, respectively. The modification of these loans involved either arnodification ofthe terms of a loan to borrowers who 
were not experiencing financial difficulties, a:delay in a payment that was considered to be insignificant or there were no 
concessions granted. 

In order to determine whether aboirower is experiencing financial difficulfy, an evaluation is performed ofthe probabilify 
that the borrower will be in payment default on any of its debt in the foreseeable future without the modification. This 
evaluation is performed under the Company's intemal underwriting policy. 

Nonaccrual loans include loans that were modified and identified as TDRs and the loans are not performing. At December 
31, 2012 and 2011, nonaccraal troubled debt restracturings were as follows: 

Commercial 
Real estate: 

Single-family residential 
Multi-family residential 
Commercial: 

Non-owner occupied 
Owner occupied 

Total • ̂  

2012 
$ 

,$ 

528 

-
2,082 

388 
288 

3,286 

2011 
' $ 

. .$ 

47 

-
, 2,527 

- i 

446 ' 
3,020 ' 

Nonaccraal loans at December 31, 2012 and 2011 do not include $3,684 and'$4,597, respectively, in troubled debt 
restracturings where customers have established a sustained period of repayment performance, loans are current according to 
their modified terms and repayment ofthe remaining contractual payments is expected. These loans are included in total 
impairedloans. 

Credit Quality Indicators: 
The Company categorizes loans into risk categories based on relevant information about the abilify of borrowers to service 
their debt, such as current financial information, historical payment experience, credit documentation, public information and 
current economic trends, among other factors. Management analyzes loans individually by classifying the loans as to credit 
risk. This analysis includes commercial, commercial real estate and multi-family residential real estate loans. Intemal loan 
reviews for these loan fypes are performed at least annually, and more often for loans with higher credit risk. Adjustments to 
loan risk ratings are based on the reviews and at any time information is received that may affect risk ratings. The foUowing 
definitions are used for risk ratings: 

Special Mention. Loans classified as special mention have a potential weakness that deserves management's close attention. 
If left uncorrected, these potential weaknesses may result in deterioration ofthe repayment prospects for the loan or of 
CFBank's credit position at some future date. 

Substandard. Loans classified as substandard are inadequately protected by the current net worth and paying capacity of the 
obligor or of the collateral pledged, if any. Loans so classified have a well-defined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardize 
the liquidation ofthe debt. They are characterized by the distinct possibilify that there will be some loss if the deficiencies 
are not corrected. 

CENTRAL FEDERAL CORPORATION 2012 ANNUALREPORT | page 63. 



NOTE 4 - LOANS (Continued) 

Doubtful. Loaris Classified as doubtful have all the weaknesses inherent in those classified as substandard, with the added 
characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full, on the basis of currently existing facts, condition and 
values, highly questionable and improbable. 

Loans not meeting the criteria to be classified into one ofthe above categories are considered to be not rated or pass-rated 
loans. Loans listed as not rated are included in groups of homogeneous loans. Past due information is, the primary credit 
indicator for groups of homogenous loans. Loans listed as pass-rated loans are loans that are subject to intemalToan reviews 
and are determined not to meet the criteria required to be classified as speciaj mention, substandard, doubtful or loss. The 
recorded investment in loans by risk category and by class of" loans as of December 31,2012 and based on the most recent 
analysis performed follows. • ;, ., ^. , 

Commercial 

Real estate: 

Single-family residential 

Muhi-family residential 

Comrnercial: 

Non-owner occupied 

Owner occupied 

Land 

Constraction 

Consumer: 

Home equity lines of credit: 

Originated for portfolio 

Purchased for portfolio 

Other 

\ o l Rated 

S 285 

42,945 

-

322 

-

119 

-

10.7)9 

1.800 

970 

$ 57,160 

' - • ' : ' " : 

Pass 

$ 21,013 . 

• ' : • • - ' 

',12,846 

. ,21,147 

16,385 

987 

14 

i--"-' '..' . 
' - , • ' • -

. • 

-
-

$ 72,392 

Special 
.MciUion 

S 2.637 

-

5.790 

2.995 

762 

434 

-

-

435 
-

$ 13,053 

Substandard 

$ 1,473 

113 

2,939 

5,486 

2,627 

3,028 

-

-

9 
-

$ 15,675 

Total 

$ 25,408 

43,058 

21.575 

29,950 

19,774 

4,568 

14 

10,719 

2,244 

970 

S 158,280 
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NOTE 4 - LOANS (Continued) 

The recorded investment in loans by risk category and class ofloans as of December 31, 2011 foUows: 

Commercial 
Real estate: 

Single-family residential 
Multi-family residential 
Commercial: 

Non-owner occupied 
Owner occupied 
Land 

Consumer: 
Home equity Unes of credh: 

Originated for portfolio 
Purchased for portfolio 

Other 
! .. 

Not Rated 

$ 432 

17,478 
.....,,_ ... 

365 
-

954. 

12,126 
2,182 
1,221 

$' 34,758 

Pass 

$ 19,591 

r ' ~ 

15,395 

22,159 
, 22,526... 

1,123 , 

-
-

' -

$ •80,794 

Special 
Mention 

$' 2,062 

...,, 

' 4,539 

„••, 5,717. 
. 3,474. ': 

-

-
447 

-

' $ 16,239 

Substaridard ' 

$ 3,909 

• 736 
,.„ .5^822- -

f 

,8,176 
1,898 
3,365 . , 

157 
9 

$ ' 25;072 

Doubtfiil 

$. , , . . , . -...' 

... . -407-

- . 
. . -

. . . f ; . , • - . . . . 

5 , . . 

-
• • . - . , . 

-

$ '. 4 0 7 -

- -
I 

Total! 

$ : 25,9,94 ., 

18,214 
'27; 163 

, • 
::: 36,417 

27,898 
5,442, 

'. i . 

12,283 
• 2,638 

1,221 

:$, 157,270 

NOTE 5 - FORECLOSED, ASSETS 

Foreclosed assets at year-end were as follows: 

Activify in the valuation allowance was as follows: 

Commercial 
Commercial real estate :»., 
Subtotal 
Valuation allowance 
Total 

2012 

S 
1.525 
1.525 

% 1.525 

2011 

$ ....... -
3,509 
3,509 

.̂  , (1,139) 
$ , 2,370 

Beginning of year 
Additions charged to expense ; • • ,• 
Direct write-downs 
End of year 

2012 

$ 

S 

1,139 
962 

(2,101) 
-

$ 

$ 

'2011 

1,139 

1,139 

$ 

$ 

2010 

-. 

-
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NOTE 5 - FORECLOSED ASSETS (Continued) 

Expenses related to foreclosed assets include: 

Net loss (gain) on sales 
Provision for umealized losses ' ' 
Operating expenses, net of rental income 

2012 

S 

J> 

(.338) 
962 
28 

652 

2011 

$ 

$ 

(7) 
1,139 

55 

1,187 

2010 

$ 

$ 

4 

4 

Foreclosed assets at December 31,2012 related to two loans, while foreclosed assets at December 31,2011 included three 
cominercial real estate properties. During the'year ended December 31, 2011, a $1,139 valuation aUowance was established 
on one ofthe commercial real estate properties, undeveloped commercial real estate located in Columbus, Ohio, due to a 
decline in real estate values. This loan was further written down in September 2012 to approximately $447 and was then sold 
inDecemberat an approximate gain of $288 • • 

NOTE 6 - FAIR VALUE i 

Fair value is the exchange price that would be received for an asset or .paid to transfer a liability in the principal or most 
advantageous market for'the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participarits bn the measurement date. 
There are three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair values: 

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the entity has the ability 
to access as ofthe measurement date. 

Level 2 - Significant other observable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices for similar assets or 
UabiUties, quoted prices in markets that are not active, or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by 
observable market data. 

Level 3 - Significant unobservable inputs that reflect a company's own assumptions about the assumptions that 
market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability. 

The Company used the following methods and_ significant assumptions to estimate the fair value of each type of asset and 
liability: . . ' 

Securities available for sale: The fair value of securities available for sale is determined using pricing models that vary 
based on asset class and include available trade, bid and other market information or matrix pricing, which is a mathematical 
technique widely used in the industry to value debt securities without relying exclusively on quoted prices for the specific 
securities but rather by relying on the securities' relationship to other benchmark quoted securities (Level 2). 

Derivatives: The fair value of derivatives is based on valuation models using observable market data as of the measurement 
date (Level 2). i . , ; 

Impaired loans: The fair value of impaired loans with specific allocations ofthe ALLL isgenerally based on recent real 
estate appraisals. These appraisals may utilize a single valuation approach or a combination of approaches including 
comparable sales and the income approach. Adjustments are routinely made in the appraisal process by the appraisers to 
adjust for differences between the comparable sales and income data avaUable. Such adjustments are usually significant and 
typically result in a Level 3 classification ofthe inputs for determining fair value. 
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NOTE 6 - F A I R VALUE (Continued) .•• ^ 

Appraisals for both coUateral-dependent impaired loans and foreclosed assets are performed by certified general appraisers 
(for commercial properties) or certified residential appraisers (for residential properties) whose qualifications and Ucenses 
have been reviewed and verified by a third-party appraisal management company approved by the Board ofDirectors 
annually. Once received, the loan officer or a member of the credit department reviews the assumptions and approaches ' 
utilized in the appraisal as well as the overall resulting fair value in comparison with independent data sources such as recent 
market data or industry-wide statistics. Appraisals are updated as needed based on facts and circumstances associated with 
the individual properties. Real estate appraisals typically incorporate measures such as recent^sales prices for comparable 
properties. Appraisers may make adjustments to the sales prices ofthe comparable properties as deemed appropriate based 
on the age, condition or general characteristics of fhe subject property. Management applies ah additional discount to real 
estate appraised values, typically to reflect changes in market conditions since the date ofthe appraisal and to cover 
disposition costs (including selling expenses) based on the intended disposition method ofthe property. 

Loan servicing rights: Fair value is based on a valuation model that calculates the present value of estimated future net 
servicing income (Level 2). 

Loans held for sale: Loans held for sale are carried at fair value, as determined by outstanding commitments from third • 
party investors (Level 2). 

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis, including financial assets and liabilities for which the 
Company has elected the fair value option, are summarized below: 

Financial Assets: 
Securities available for sale: 

Corporate debt 

State and municipal 
Issued by U.S. govemment-sponsored entities and agencies: 

Mortgage-backed securities - residential 
Collateralized mortgage obligations 

Total securities available for sale 

Loans held for sale 

Yield maintenance provisions (embedded derivatives) 

Interest rate lock commitments 

Financial Liabilities: . 
Interest-rate swaps 

Fair Value Measurements at December 31,2012 
Using Significant Other Observable Inputs 

(Level 2) 

$ 

$ 

V
i 

$-

$ 

$ 

4,365 

1,986 

1,486 
9,802 

17,639 

623 

990 

45 

990 
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NOTE 6 - FAIR VALUE (Continued) 

Financial Assets: 
Securities avaUable for sale; 

Issued by U.S. govemment-sponsored entities and agencies: 
Mortgagcrbacked securities - residential 

: Collateralized mortgage obligations 
Total securities available for sale 

Loans held for sale 

Yield maintenance provisions (embedded derivatives) 

Interest rate lock commitments 

Financial Liabilities: 
Interest-rate swaps 

Fair Value Measurements a:t December 31, 2011 
Using Significant Other. Obseryable Inputs 

(Level 2) 

$ . '.,. 1,673 
- ... .. .16,843 

$ -.: 18,516 

$ 1,210: 

$ 999 

$ 39 

$ 999 

The Company had no assets or liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis that were measured using Level 1 or 
Level 3 inputs at December 31, 2012 or 20l 1. There were no transfers ofassets or liabilities measured at fair value between 
levels during 201-2 or 2011. 

Assets measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis are summarized below: ' 

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2012 l,sin^ 

Impairedloans: , 
Commercial 
Real Estate: 

Single-family residential 
Multi-family residential 
Commercial: 

Non-owner occupied 
Owner occupied 

Total impaired loans 

Significant Olher 
Obser\ablc Inputs 

(Level 2) 

Significant 
l..nob.servablc Inputs 

(Level 3) 

-S 121 

57 
2.070 

1,806 
1.244 

S 5.298 
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NOTE 6 - FAIRVALUE (Continued) 

' ' , - - " " • • • . . ' • ' - ' . . ( ' ' 

Loan servicing rights 

Impaired loans: 
Commercial 
Real Estate: . : • :: -

Multi-family residential 
Commercial: 

Non-owner occupied 
Owner occupied ' 
Land 

Total impaired loans 

Foreclosed assets 

Land 

FairValue Measurementsat December 31; 2011 Using 
Significant Other ,,.: , 
Observable Inputs. .. 

(Level 2) 

$ 9 

J Significant . ,. 
.Unobservable Inputs 

(Level 3) V 

$ , 108 

3,065 

2,887 
516 
233 

$ 6,809 

$ 1,209 

The Company had no assets or liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis that were measured using Level 1 
inputs at December 31,2012 or 2011. 

The Impaired loan servicing rights,:.which are carried at fair value at December 31,2012, are not material based on the value 
ofthe asset. Impaired loan servicing rights, which are carried at fair value, were carried at $9, which was made up ofthe 
amortized cost of $ 11, net of a valuation allowance of $2 at December 31, 2011. 
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NOTE 6 - FAIR VALUE (Continued) 

Impaired loans that are measured for impairment using the fair value ofthe collateral for coUateral dependent loans, had a 
principal balance of $5,909; with a,valua:tion allowance of $61 l.at December 31, 2012, resulting in an additional provision 
for loan losses of $1,802 for the year ended December 31, 2012.: Impaired loans carried at the fair value of collateral had an 
unpaid principal balance of $l0;069;with no specific valuation aUowance at December 31, 2011. The amount of charge-offs 
on these loans totaled $2,638 in 201L- ; : ; . : , 

Fair Value 
Valuation -

Technique(s) Unobservable Inputs 
Range (Weighted 

Average) : ; 
Impaired loans: , 
Commercial 121 Income approach Adjustment for differences in 

net operating income 
expectations 

-10.0% 

Single-family residential 57 Comparable sales Adjusttnent for differences 
approach between the comparable 

market transactions 

2.3% 

Commercial real estate: 
Multi-family residential 2,070 Comparable sales Adjustment for differences 

approach between the comparable 
market transactions 

-39.0% to-27.1% 
(-32.7%) 

Commercial: 
Non-owner occupied 1,806 Comparable sales Adjustment fordifferences . -12.2%) to 16.7% 

approach between the comparable (-7.3%) 
market transactions ,! „ 

Owner occupied 1,244 Comparable sales Adjustment for differences -6.3%oto0.5% 
approach between the comparable (-0.8%)) 

market tiansactions 

Financial Instruments Recorded Using Fair Value Option 
The Company has elected the fair value option for loans held for sale. These loans are intended for sale and the Company 
believes that the fair value is the best indicator ofthe resolution of these loans. Interest income is recorded based on the 
contractual terms ofthe loan and in accordance with the Company's policy on loans held for investment. None of these loans 
were 90 days or more past due or on nonaccraal as of December 31, 2012 or December 31, 2011. 

As of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the aggregate fair value, contractual balance (including accraed interest) 
and gain or loss was as foUows: 

Aggregate fair value 
Contiactual balance 
Gain 

December 31.2012 

S 623 

595 
28 

December 31, 2011 

$ 1,210 
1,196 

14 
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NOTE 6 - FAIR VALUE (Continued) 

The total amount of gains and losses from changes in fair value included in eamings for the year ended December 31,2012, 
2011 and 2010 for loans held for sale were: 

2012 2011 2010 

Interest income 

Interest expense 

Change in fair value 

46 

14 

40 

151 

40 

19^ 

Total change in fair value 60 35 

Carrying amount and estimated fair values of financial instraments at year-end were as follows: 

59̂  

Financial assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Interest-bearing deposits in other financial 

institutions 

Securities available for sale 

Loans held for sale 

Loans, net 

FHLB stock 

Accraed interest receivable 
Yield maintenance provisions (embedded 

derivatives) 
Interest rate lock commitments 

Financial liabilities 
Deposits 

FHLB advances 

Subordinated debentures 

Accrued interest payable 

Interest-rate swaps 

I'uir Value Vlciisiirfinciits at Deceniber 

( i i r r y Illll 

Vaiin; 

S 25.152 

:.7:( 
r,6.)9 

623 

153.04.̂  

1,942 

105 

990 

45 

(17.?..M)S) 

(10.000) 

(.'5.1.55) 

(yS) 

(WO) 

Level 1 

S 25,152 

2,726 

-

-

10 

-
-

(75..340) 

-
-

-

-

Level 2 

$ 

17,639 

623 
-

-

95 

990 

45 

(99,946) 

(10,338) 

(2,999) 

(98) 

(990) 

-

.^1.2()12L'.simi; 

l . C N d . ^ 

-

-
-

-

156.256 
-

-
-

-

-
-

-

_ 

Total 

S 25.152 

2.726 

I7,6.̂ y 

62.1 

156.256 

IVil 

105 

990 
45 

(17.5.2S6) 

(10.338) 

(2,9')9) 
(9S) 

(990) 
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NOTE 6 - FAIR VALUE (Continued) - ; , : . ; ^ 

The carrying amounts and estimated fair values Of financial instraments at December 31,2011 were as follows: • -. 

: I • . „ 

Financial assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Interest-bearing deposits in other financial institutions . 

Securities available for sale 

Loans held for "sale 

Loans, net . . • • . . • • . , • • 

FHLB stock 

Accraed interest receivable . . . . . . . . 

Yield maintenance provisions (embedded derivatives) 

Interest rate lock commitments 

Financialliabilities 

Deposits ' •,-;, 

FHLB advances • , . 

Subordinated debentures 

Accriied interest payable 

Interest-rate swaps , 

•December 31, 2011 

Carrying 

Amount 

. $ - ' 61,436 

1,984 

18,516 ; 

1,210 

151,160 

L942 

92 

999 

. : 39 

(217,049) 

(15;742)-

(5,155) 

(300) 

(999) 

Fair 

Value 

$ 61,436, 

-1,984 r 

... , 18,5.16. 

" 1,210 ' 

155,159 

ii/a 

92 

999 

39 

.. ^ (219,235) 

(16,327)-

(2,810) ' 

(300): 

• (999): 

The methods and assumptions used to estimate fair value are described as foUows. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
The carrying amounts of cash and short-term iristraments approximate fair values and are classified as Level 1, 

Interest-Bearing Deposits in Other Financial Institutions 
The carrying anioiints of interest bearing deposits in ottier financial institutions approximate fair values and are classified: as 
Level 1. 

FHLBStocJi 
It is not practical to determine the fair value of FHLB stock due to resfrictions placed on its transferability. 

Loans 
Fair values of loans, excluding loans held for sale, are estimated as foUows: For variable rate loans that reprice frequently 
and with no significant change in credit risk, fair values are based on carrying values resulting in a Level 3 classification. 
Fair valuesfor other loans are estimated using discounted cash flow analyses, using interest rates currently being offered for 
loans with similar terms to borrowers of similar credit quality resuhing in a Level 3 classification. Impaired loans are valued 
at the lower of cost or fair value as described previously. The methods utilized to estimate the fair value of loans do not 
necessarily represent an exit price. 

Deposits 
The fair values disclosed for demand deposits (e.g., interest and noninterest bearing checking, passbook savings, and money 
market accounts) are, by definition, equal to the amount payable on demand at the reporting date (i.e., their canying amount) 
resulting in a Level 1 classification. Fair values for fixed rate certificates of deposit are estimated using a discounted cash 
flows calculation that applies interest rates currently being offered on certificates to a schedule of aggregated expected 
monthly maturities on time deposits resulting in a Level 2 classification. 
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NOTE 6 - FAIR VALUE (Continued) 

Other Borrowings 
The fair values of the Conipany's long-term FHLB advances are estimated using discounted cash flow anafyses based on the 
current borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing arrangements resulting in a Level 2 Classification. 

The fair values of the Company's subordinated debentures are estimated using discounted cash flow analyses based on the 
current borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing arrangements resulting in a Level 2 classification. 

Accrued Interest Receivable/Payable 
The carrying amounts of accraed interest approximate fair value resulting in a Level 1 or 2 classification, consistent with the 
asset or Uability with which they are associated. • : : 

Off-Balance-Sheet Instruiiients " 
The fair value of off-balance-sheet items is not considered material. 

NOTE 7 - L O A N ; S E R V I C I N G 

Mortgage loans seiriced for others are not reported as assets. The principal balances of these loans at year-eiid 
were as follows: •': 

. : . . - . . . . . . . . • 

Mortgage loans serviced for Freddie Mac 

2012 

$ 10,433 

2011,: 

$ 13,086 

Custodial escrow balances maintained in connection with serviced loans were $199 arid $219 at year-end 2012 and 2011. 

Activity for mortgage servicing rights and the related valuation aUowance foUows: 

Servicing rights, net of valuation allowance: 
Beginning of year 
Additions 
Amortized to expense 
Change in valuation allowance 

Endofyear 

Valuation allowance: 
Beginning of year 
Additions expensed 
Reductions credited to operations 

End of year 

; 2012 

$ 

$ 

$ 

37 

(9) 
1 

29 

2--

(1) 
$ 1 

'$ 

$ 

$ 

2011 

57 

(23),. 
3 , 

37 

:r..-:::.:Av--(3)..--, 

2 

• $ 

$ 

$ -

$ 

2010 

88 ,: .-
l ' 

. (31) 
(1) ' 
Sirs 

. 4 
; - ' - : • ' • - ' : ' : l • " 

. . 5. 

The weighted average amortization period is 3.0 years. 
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NOTE 8 - PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT 

Year-end premises and equipment were as foUows: 

Land and land improvements 
Buildings 
Fumiture, fixtures and equipment 

Less: accumulated depreciation 

2012 

S 1.679 
5.792 
2,858 

10.329 
(5.012) 

S 5,317 

2011 

- 5, 

$ • 

1,679 
5,776 
2,867 

10,322 
., (4,788) 

5,534 

Land improvements for the year ended December 31, 2011 were reduced by $167, fransferred to assets held for sale, related 
to a parcel of land adjacent to the Company's Fairlawn office that remains offered for sale. 

. The Holding Company was a one-third owner of Smith Ghent LLC, an Ohiolimited liabiUty company that owns and 
manages the office building at 2923 Smith Road, Fairiawn, Ohio 44333, where the Holding Company's and CFBank's 
headquarters are located. In October 2009, the HoldingCompanypurchased the remaining two-thirds interest, making Smith 
Ghent LLC a wholly owned subsidiary of the Holding Company. CFBank entered into a 10 year operating lease with Smifh 
Ghent LLC in March 2004 that provided for monthly payments of $11, increasing 2%) annually for the life ofthe lease 
through March 2014. During 2008, the lease was amended for additional office space and provided for additional monthly 
payments of $3 through June 30, 2009; at which time the monthly payment continued on a month-to-month basis. Since the ; 
purchase ofthe remaining two-thirds interest in Smith Ghent LLC, both rent expense paid by CFBank and rental income to 
Smith Ghent LLC are eliminated in consolidation. 

NOTE 9 - DEPOSITS 

Time deposits of $100 or more were $68,719 and $98,934 at year-end 2012 and 2011. 

Scheduled maturities of time deposits for the next five years were as follows: 

2013 
2014 
2015 . i 
2016 
2017, 
Thereafter 

Total 

S 

$ 

46,715 
28.461 
20.989 

1,724 
279 

-

98,168 

Time deposits included $32,095 and $53,925 in brokered deposits at year-end 2012 and 2011. See l̂ fote 2 for 
description of regulatory: restrictions on accepting and renewing brokered deposits. 
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NOTE 10 - FEDERAL H O M E LOAN BANK ADVANCES 

At year end,.long-term advances from the FHLB were as follows: 

Maturing: 
April 2012 
June 2012 
January 2014 
May 2014 

Total 

Rate 

, .:2.30%, , 
.2.05% :-
3.12% ^ ^ 

, 3.06% 

December 31,2012 

S 

5.000 
5.000 

$ 10.000 

December 31, 2011 

$ 5,000l 
: 742 

' / 5^000 
5,000' 

S • 15,742 

Each advance is payable at its maturity date, with a prepayment perialty for fixed-rate advances. 

The advances were collateralized as follows: 

Single-family mortgage loans 
Multi-family mortgage loans 
Commercial real estate loans 
Securities 
Cash 

Total 

Dcccn 

S 

s 

bci 31.2012 

9.917 
4,968 
1.185 
4.707 
3.300 

24.077 

December 31,2011 

^ $ 

$ 

11,141 
4,222 ' 

.: 3,384 
9,336 

. 800 

28,883 

Based ori the coUateral pledged to FHLB and CFBank's holdings of FHLB stock, CFBank was eligible to borrow up to a total 
of $17,460 from the FHLB atyear-end2012. The decrease iri commercial real estate loans pledged to FHLB was due to the 
credh quality of certain loans previously pledged, as weU as principal repayriients and payoffs. In April 201-2; CFBank was 
notified by the FHLB that, due tO regulatory considerations, CFBank is only eligible for future advarices vvith a maximum 
maturity of 30 days. • . . ? ; . : ' ; 

AU payments over the next five years are due in 2014. • 

NOTE 1 1 - O T H E R BORROWINGS 

At year-end 2012 and 2011, there were no outstanding borrowings with the FRB. Assets pledged as collateral with the FRB 
were as follows: 

Commercialloans 
Commercial real estate loans 

• • • : ' . ' . . . • , ; : . . . • " : • • , . , . ' . -

December 31. 2012 

S 9.352 
16.700 

S 26.052 

December 31, 2011 

$ : ; 6,559 
21,007 

$ ' >27,566, 

Based on this collateral, CFBank was eligible to borrow up to $17,750 from the FRB at year-end 2012. 
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NOTE 11 - OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued) 

CFBank had a $1.0 milUon line of credit with one commercial bank at December 31,2012. There was no outstanding balarice 
on this Une of credit. Interest on this line accraes daily and is variable based on the commercial bank's cost of̂  funds and 
current market returns • ' -. ..' i 

V : , • ' • . . ' " • ' . - , , 

Commercial bank lines of credit 
Average daily balance during the year 
Average interest rate during, the year 
Maximum month-end balance duririg the year 
Weighted average interest rate at year-end 

• , 2012' 

$ . . 

'S' 

-
0.38%, 

-
0.38'Ji 

2011 

$ 

• $ 

. -
1.44% 

: •' ,,0.38% 

2010 

$ • : 

• " $ 

.".' 

' : - • 

,3.25% 
-

..:.>- ,. .3.25% 

NOTE 12 - SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES 

In December 2003, Central Federal Capital Trast 1, a trast formed by the Holding Company, closed a pooleii private offering 
of 5,000 trast preferred securities with a hquidation amount of $1 per security. The Holding Company issued $5,155 of :, ;: 
subordinated debentures to the trust in exchange for ownership of all of the common stock ofthe trast and the proceeds of the 
preferred securhies sold by the trast. The Holding Company is not considered the primary beneficiary ofthis trast (variable 
interest entity); therefore, the trast is not corisolidated in the Company's financial statements, but'rather the'siibdrdinated-
debentures are shown as a liability.- The Holding Company's investment in the common stock ofthe trast was $155 and is 
included in other assets. , V:: '.: : . . . ' - :. 

The Holding Cdrripany may redeem trie subordinated debentures, iri whole or iri part, in a principal amount with integral 
multiples of $1, on or after December 30,-2008, at 100%) of the principal amount, plus accraed and,unpaid interest. The 
subordinated debentures mature on December,30, 2033. The subordinated debentures are also redeernable in whole or in part 
from time to tirne; upon the occurrence pf specific events defmed within the trast indenture. There are no required principal, 
payments on the subordinated debentures oyer .the next five years. The Holding Company has the option to defer interest: 
paymients on the subordinated debentures for a period not to exceed five consecutive years. ? . ; , : : 

Cumulative deferred interest payments through September 30, 2012 totalling $348 were paid current in December 2012 with 
the approval ofthe FED. Cumulative deferred payments subsequent to September 30, 2012 have been accraed and totaled 
$42 as of December 31, 2012. Cumulative deferred interest payments were $210 at December 31, 2011. Pursuant to the 
Holding Company Order, the Holding Company may not, directly or indirectly, incur, issue, renew, rollover, or pay interest 
or principal on any debt (including the subordinated debentures) or commit to do so, increase any current lines of credit, or 
guarantee the debt of any entity, without prior written notice to and written non-objection from the FED. 

The subordinated debentures have a variable rate ofinterest, reset quarterly, equal to the three-month London Interbank 
Offered Rate plus 2.85%), which was 3.21% at year-end 2012 and 3.43% at-year-end 2011. 

NOTE 13 - BENEFIT PLANS 

Multi-employer pension plan:; CFBank participates in a multi-employer contributory trasteed pension plan. The retirement 
benefits to be provided by the plan were frozen as: of Jiirie 30, 2003 and future employee participation in the plan was 
stopped. The plan was maintained for all eligible employees and the benefits were funded as accraed. The cost of funding 
was charged directly to operations. 
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NOTE 1 3 - B E N E F I T PLANS (Continued) , . ' ! . , . 

The unfimded Uability at June 30, 2012 totaled $38 and at June 30, 2011 was $277. CFBank's contributions for the plan years 
ending June 30, 2013, June 30, 2012 and June 30, 2011, totaled $49, $91 and $60. Confributions to the plan may vary from 
period to period due to the change in the plan's uiiftihded liability: The unfunded liability is primarily related to the change iri 
plan assets and the change in plan liability from one year to the next. The change in plan assets is based on confributions! 
deposited, benefits paid and the actual rate of retum eamed on those assets. The change in plan liability is based on : ' 
demographic changes and changes in the interest rates used to determine plan liability. In the event the actual rate of retum 
eamed on plan assets decline, the value of the plan assets wiU decline. In the event the interest rates used to determine plan 
liability decrease, plan liability will increase. The combined effect of each change determinesthe change in-the unfunded -: 
liability and the change in the employer contributions. '.M 

CFBank participates iri the Pentegra Defined Beriefit Plan for Financial Institutioris (the Pentegra DB Plan), a tax-quaUfied 
defined-benefit pension plan. The Pentegra DB Plan's Employer Identification Number is 13-5645888 and the PlariNurfiber 
is 333. The Pentegra DB Plan operates as a multi-employer plan for accounting purposes and as a multiple-employer plan 
under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 and the Intemal Revenue Code. There are no collective ': 
bargaining agreements in place that require conttibutions to the Pentegra DB Plan. • H 

The Pentegra DB Plan is a single plan under Intemal Revenue Code Section 413(c) and, as a result, all ofthe assets stand -: 
behind all ofthe liabilities. Accordingly, under the Pentegra DB Plan confributions made by a participating employer may be 
used to provide benefits to participants of other participating employers. 1 

Funded status (market value ofplan assets divided by funding target) based on valuation reports as of July 1, 2012 and 201,1 
was 96.83% and 80.00%), respectively. : ' , 

Total contributions made to the Pentegra DB Plan, as reported on Form;5500, totaled $299,729 and $203,582 for the plan j 
years ended June 30, 2011 and June 30, 2010, respectively. CFBank's contributions to the Pentegra DB Plan.were nof niore 
than 5% of the total confributions to the Pentegra DB Plan. 

401(k) Plan: A401(k) plan allows employee contributions up to the maximum amount allowable under federal tax 
regulations, which are currently matched in an amount equal to 25%) ofthe first 8%) ofthe compensation conttibuted. 
Expense for 2012, 2011 and 2010 was $33, $20 and $39, respectively. 

Salary Continuation Agreement: In 2004, CFBank initiated a nonqualified salary continuation agreement for the former 
Chairman Emeritus. Benefits provided under the plan are unfunded, and payments are made by CFBank. Uridef the plan,, 
CFBank pays him, or his beneficiary, a benefit of $25 annuaUy for 20 years, beginning 6 months after his retirement date, 
which was Febraary 28, 2008. The expense related to this plan totaled$47, $16 and $17 in 2012, 2011 and 2010, 
respectively. The accraal is included in accraed interest payable and other liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets and ; 
totaled $273 at year-end 2012 and $251 at year-end 2011. ' ': 

Life Insurance Benefits: CFBankentered into agreements with certain employees, former employees and directors to ,,, 
provide life insurance benefits which are funded through Ufe insurance poUcies purchased and owned by CFBank. The 
expense related to these benefits totaled $16, $10 and $7 in 2012; 2011 and 2010, respectively: The accrual for CFBarik's ' 
obligation under these agreements is included in accraed interest payable and other liabilities in the consoUdated balance • 
sheets and totaled $205 at year-end 2012 and $189 atyear-end*201L ••: '' ' 

NOTE 14 - INCOME TAXES 

Income tax expense was as follows: 

Current federal 
Deferred federal 
Total 

2012 

$ 

$ 

2011 

$ 

.$ 

2010 

$ 198 

$ 198 
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NOTE 14 - INCOME TAXES (Continued) 

Effective tax rates differ from the federal statutory rate of 34% applied to loss before income taxes due to the following: 

Federal statutory rate times financial statement income 
Effect oft 
Bank owned life insurance income 
Increase in deferred tax valuation allowance 
Other 

loss 

Effective tax rate 

S 

S 

2"«i: 

1I.2.V)) 

( 4 M 

1.311 
14 

-

(nr ' . 

2011 

$ -

$ 

(1,845) 
• . , 

(44) 
1,876 • 

13 

-

0.0% 

.$-

$ 

2010 

(2,269) 

(43) 
2,276 

234 , 

198 

-3.0% 

Year-end deferted tax assets and liabilities were due to the following: 

Deferred tax assets: 
Allowance for loan losses 
Deferred loan fees 
Post-retirement death benefits 
Deferred compensation 
Nonaccmal interest 
Depreciation 
Other real estate owned loss reserves 
Tax mark-to-market adjustments on securities available for sale 
Accmed stock awards 
Net operating loss carryforward i • 
Unrealized loss on securities available for sale 
Other 

Deferred tax liabilities: 
FHLB stock dividend 
Mortgage servicing rights 
Prepaid expenses 
Unrealized gain on securities available for sale 
Other 

Net deferred tax asset before valuation allowance 
Deferred tax valuation allowance 

Net deferred tax asset . 

2012 

S 1,2'>8 

70 
93 
83 
71 

36 

1.904 

72 

3.62"' 

366 
9 

94 
36 

505 
.̂ .122 

(3.122) 

s 

2011 

$ 1,775. 
10 
64 
85 
80 
41 

394 
131 

6,628 

120 

•9,2871 

366 
12 
46 

131 
103 

658 
8,629 

(8,629) 

$ 

Federal income tax laws provided additional deductions, totaling $2,250, for thrift bad debt reserves established before, 1988. 
Accounting standards do not require a deferred tax liability to be recorded on this amount, which otherwise would total $765 
at year-end 2012. However, if CFBank were wholly or partially Uquidated or otherwise ceases to be a-bank, or if tax laws 
were to change, this amount would have to be recaptured and a tax liability recorded. Additionally, any distributions in 
excess of CFBank's current or accumulated eamings and profits would reduce amounts allocated to its bad debt reserve and 
create a tax liability for CFBank. The amount of additional taxable income created by such a distribution is an amount that, 
when reduced by the tax attributable to the income, is equal to the amount ofthe disfribution. Thus, if CFBank makes a 
distribution that reduces the amount allocated to its bad debt reserve, then approximately one and one-half times the amount 
used would be includible in gross income for federal incometax purposes, assuming a 34% corporate income tax rate. 
CFBank does not intend to make distributions that would result in a recapture of any portion of its bad debt reserve. 
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NOTE 14 - INCOME TAXES (Continued) 

As a resuh ofthe change in stock ownership associated with the stock offering completed in August 2012, within the: | 
guidelines of Section 382 ofthe Intemal Revenue Code of 1986, the Company incurred an ownership change: At year-end 
2012, the Company had net operating loss carryforwards of $25,941, which expire at various dates from 2024 to 2032, arid: 
altemative minimum tax credit carryforwards of $60, which do not expire. As a result, its ability to utilize carryforwards! that 
arose before the stock offering closed is limited to $163 per year. Due to this limitation, management determined it is more 
likely than not that $20,342 of net operating loss carryforwards will expire unutilized and, as required by accounting 
standards, reduced deferred tax assets and the valuation allowance by $6,91610 reflect this lost realizability. 

The Company maintained a valuation allowance against deferred tax assets at December.31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, 
based on its estimate of future reversal and utilization. When determining the amount of deferred tax assets that are more^ 
likely-than-not to be realized, and therefore recorded as a benefit, the Company conducts a regular assessment of all available 
information. This information includes, but is not limited to, taxable income in prior periods, projected future income and 
projected future reversals of deferred tax items. Based on these crheria, the Company determined that it was necessary to: 
estabUsh a full valuation allowance against the entire net deferred tax asset. 

At December 31,2012 and 2011, the Company had no unrecognized tax benefits recorded. The Company does not expect 
the amount of umecognized tax benefits to significantly change within the next twelve months. 

The Company is subject to U.S. federal income tax and is no longer subject to federal examination for years prior to 2009. 

NOTE 15 - RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Loans to principal officers, directors and their affiliates during 2012 were as follows: 

Beginning balance 

New loans 

Effect of changes in composition of related parties 

Repayments 

Ending balance 

• • $ • 

$ 

1,154 

357 

(1,463) 

4 

52 

Deposits from principal officers, directors, and their affiliates at year-end 2012 and 2011 were $91 and $1,105. 

NOTE 1 6 - S T O C K - B A S E D COMPENSATION 

The Company has three stock-based compensation plans (the Plans) as described below. Total compensation cost that has 
been charged against income for the Plans was $11, $40, and $6 for 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The total income tax 
benefit was $1, $8, and $2, respectively. 

The Original Plans, which are stockholder-approved, provide for stock option grants and restricted stock awards to directors, 
officers and employees. The 1999 Stock-Based Incentive Plan, which expired July 13, 2009, provided 38,778 shares for stock 
option grants and 15,511 shares for resfricted stock awards. The 2003 Equity Compensation Plan (2003 Plan) as amended 
and restated, provided an aggregate of 100-000 shares for stock option grants and restricted stock awards, ofwhich up to 
30,000 shares could be awarded in the form of restricted stock awards. The 2009 Equity Compensation Plan, which was 
approved by stockholders on May 21, 2009, replaced the 2003 Plan and provides 200,000 shares, plus any remaining shares 
available to grant or that are later forfeited or expire under the 2003 Plan, that may be issued as stock option grants, stock 
appreciation rights or restricted stock awards. 
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NOTE 16 - STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION (Continued) 

Stock Options /. 
The Plans permit the grant of stock options to directors, officers and employees for up to 338,777 shares of common stock. 
Option awards are-granted with an exercise price equal to the market price ofthe Company's commori stock on the date of 
grant, generally have vesting periods ranging from one to three years; and are exercisable for ten years from the date of grant. 
Unvested stock options immediately vest upon a change of confrol 

The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using a closed form option; valuation (Black-Scholes) 
model that uses the assumptions noted in the table below. Expected volatilities are based on historical volatilities ofthe 
Company's common stock. The Company uses historical data to estimate option exercise and post-vesting termination 
behavior. Employee and management options are tracked separately. The expected term of options granted is baseid on 
historical data and represents the period of time that options granted are expected to be outstanding, which takes into account 
that the options are not transferable. The risk-free interest rate for the expected term of the option is based on the U.S. 
Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of the grant. • ; ; . 

The fair value of options granted was determined using the following weighted-average assumptions as of grant date. 

Risk-free interest rate 
Expected term (years) 
Expected stock price volatility 
Dividend yield 

2012 

1.23'̂ . 
7 

78" i 
0';;. 

2011 

2.98% 
7 

46% 
1.41% 

2010 

, ' 2.62% 
' ' 1 

., . 46% 
• - • ' • ' - : 3 . 7 7 % 

A summary of stock option activity in the Plans for 2012 follows: 

Outstanding at beginning of year 
Granted 
Exercised 
Expired 
Cancelled or Forfeited 

Outstanding af end of year 

Expected to vest 

Exercisable at end of period 

Shares 

43,298 
205,000 

(13,602) 

234,696 

209,080 

25,616 

_ 

Weighted Average 
Exercise Price 

$ 24.87 
1.28 

24.48 

$ 4.29 

$ 1.35 

$ 28.27 

Weighted Average 
Remaining 

Contractual Term 
(Years) 

9.3 

9.9 

4.9 

Inttinsic Value 

$ 

$ - , 

$ 

During the year ended December 31, 2012, there were 13,602 stock options canceled or forfeited. Expense associated with 
unvested forfeited shares is reversed. ' .• 
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NOTE 16 - STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION (Continued),. ^ ^ 

Information related to the stock option Plans during each year follows. There were no options exercised in 2012 or 2011. 

Intrinsic value of options exercised 
Cash received from option exercises 
Ta:x benefit realized from option exercises 
Weighted average fair value of options granted 

2012 

$ 

$ 0.91 

2011 

$ 

$ 0.75, 

•' 2010. ! 

• $ _, ; , r ; - . . . 

'•"$,.̂ .̂.':V ;:''..'..•-'0.31',' 

As of December 31, 2012, there was $149 of total umecognized compensation cost related to nonvested stock options grarited 
under the Plans. The cost is expected to be recognized oyer a weighted-average period of 1.9 years. Substantially all ofthe 
209,080 nonvested stock options at December 31, 2012 are expected to vest. 

Restricted Stock Awards 
The Plans permit the grant of restricted stock awards to directors, officers and employees. Compensation is recognized oyer 
the vesting period of the awards based on the fair value of the stock at grant date. The fair value of the stock was ̂ determined : 
using the closing share price on the date of grant and shares generaUyjUaye vesting periods of one to three years.: There were 
39,342 shares available to be issued under the Plans at December 31,'2012. There were no shares issued in 2012 and no , 
shares issued 2011. . : 

A summary of changes in the Company's nonvested restricted shares for the year foUows: 

Nonvested Shares • 

Nonvested at January 1, 2012 
Granted. • , , ,. ,̂.,,. :;:••.!:: 
vested :, '• 
Forfeited 

Nonvested at December 31, 2012 

Shares 

4,800 

(2,400) 
(1,000) 

1,400 

Weighted Average 
Grant-Date Fair Value 

$ 6.88 

6.88 
7.25 

$ 6.61 

As of December 31, 2012, there was $2 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested shares granted under 
the Plans. The cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 0.57 years. The total fair value of shares 
vested during the years ended December 31,2012, 2011 and 2010 was $4, $14 arid $24, respectively. 

NOTE 1 7 - P R E F E R R E D STOCK 

On December 5, 2008, in connection with the Troubled Asset Relief Program (TARP) Ca:pital Purchase Program, the 
Company issued to Treasury 7,225 shares of Cenfral Federal Corporation Fixed Rate Cumulative-Perpetual Preferred Stock, 
Series A (Preferred Stock) for $7,225. The Preferred Stock initially paid quarterly dividends at a five percent annual rate, 
which rate was scheduled to increase to nine perceritafter Febraary 14, 2014, on a liquidation preference of $1 per share. 
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NOTE 1 7 - P R E F E R R E D STOCK (Continued). > . - : , - • ' : . • : Cv ^:. : ; v 

The Company's Board ofDirectors elected to defer dividend paymentson the Preferred Stock beginning with the dividend 
payable on November 15, 2010 in order to preserve cash at the Holding Company. At December 31,2011, five quarteirly ' 
dividend payments had been deferred. Cumulative deferred dividend payments totaled $466 at December 31, 20l 1, and $90/ 
at December 31, 2010. Although deferred, the dividends were accraed with an offsetting charge to accumulated deficit. 

Pursuant to the Holding Company Order, as described in Note 2, the Holding Company may not declare, make, or pay any 
cash dividends (including dividends on the Preferred Stock, or the Holding Company's conmion stock) or other ca:pital : 
distributions or purchase, repurchase or redeem or commit to purchase, repurchase, or redeern ariy Holdirig Company equity 
stock without the prior written non-objection ofthe FED.' On July 13, 2012, the" Company received approval frohi the i?RB 
of Cleveland of an agreement with U.S. Treasury to redeem the Preferted Stock, including all accraed but unpaid dividends 
and the common stock warrant issued in connection with the TARP Caphal Purchase Program (together, the "TARP ' 
obUgations") using proceeds ofthe Holding Company's common stock offering. On August 23* 2012, the Holding; ' 
Company received regulatory non-objection for redemption ofthe TARP obligations from the OCC for redemption of thê  
TARP obligations. 

On September 26, 2012, pursuant to the agreement with U.S. Treasury, the Holding Company utilized $3,000 of the proceeds 
from its stock offering to redeem the TARP obligations including deferred dividends totaUng $801. The redemption included' 
satisfactiori'of common stock warrants associated with the*preferred stock. The redemption was completed at a discourit and 
resulted iu an increase in common stockholders'equityJof $4,960. ; ' • 

NO J E 1 8 - C O M M O N STOCK WARRANT 

In connection with the issuance of the Preferred Stock, the Company also issued to U.S. Treasury a warrant to purchase 
67,314 shares ofthe Company's common stock at an exercise price of $ 16.10 per share, which represented an aggregate 
investment, if exercised fbr caish, of approximately $1,100 in Company common stock. The exercise price could haye: been 
paid either by withholding a number of shares of conimon stock issuable upon exercise ofthe wart'ant equal to the value of 
the aggregate exercise price ofthe warrant, determined by reference to the market price ofthe Company's coiriirion stock on 
the trading day on which the warrant isexercised, or, if agreed to by the (Company and the warrant holder, by the payrrierit of 
cash equal to the aggregate exercise price. The warrant was exercisable any time beforeODecember 5, 2018. •'-.: 

The common stock warrant was redeemed on September 26,2012 as part ofthe transaction with U.S. Treasuryfor : , , 
redemptidri: ofthe TARP'obligations. See Note 17 for a discussion ofthe agreement with U.S. Treasury for redemptiori :of the 
TARP obligations, including redemption ofthe common stock warrant. 

N O T E 1 9 - R E G U L A T O R Y CAPITAL MATTERS 

CFBank is subjectto regulatory caphal requirements administered by federal banking agencies. Prompt corrective action 
regulations, involve quantitative measures ofassets, liabilities, and certain off-balancer-sbeet items calculated-undef 
regulatory accounting practices. Capital amounts and classifications are also subject to qualitative judgments by regulators. 
Failure to meet caphal requirements can initiate regulatory, action.,, ' , 

Prompt corrective action regulations .provide five classifications: ,well capitalized, adequately capitalized, undercapitalized, 
significantiy undercapitalized, and critically, undercapitalized, although these itermsarenot used to represent overaU financial 
condition. If adequately capitalized, regulatory:approval is required to accept brokered deposits. If undercapiitaUzed, capital 
distributions are limited, as is asset growth arid expansion, and capital restoration plans aire required. 
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NOTE 19 - REGULATORY CAPITAL MATTERS 

Actual and required capital amounts and ratios are presented below at year end. 

2012 

Total Capital to risk 

weighted assets 

Tier 1 (Core) Capital to risk 

weighted assets, 

Tier 1 (Core) Capital to 

adjusted total assets 

Tangible Capital to 

adjusted total assets, - ; 

Actual 

Amount 

$ 25,002 

22,950 

22,950 

" 

22,950 

Ratio 

15.53% 

14.26% 

10.97% 

10.97% 

For Capital 

Adequacy Purposes 

Amount 

$ 12,878 

6,439 

8,372 

3,139 

Ratio 

8.00% 

4.m% 

4.00% 

1.50% 

To Be WeU 

Capitalized Under 

Promjrt Corrective 

Action Regulations 

Amount 

$ 16,098 

9,659 

10,465 

N/A 

Ratio 

10.00% 

6.00% 

5.00%) 

N/A 

Required 

By Terms Of 

CFBank Order 

Amount 

$ 19,317 

N/A 

16,744 

N/A 

Ratio 

12.00% 

N/A 

8.00% 

N/A 

2011 

Total Capitalto risk 

weightedassets 

Tier 1 (Core) Capital to risk 
weighted assets 

Tier 1 (Core) Capital to 

adjusted total assets 

Tangible Capital to 

adjusted total assets 

Actual 

Amount 

S 15,351 

13,436 

13,436 

13,436 

Ratio 

10.30%' 

9.02%' 

. 5.39% 

, '5.39% 

For Capital 

Adequacy Purposes, 

Amount 

S 11,918 

,: 5,959 

9,968 

3,738 

Ratio : 

8.00% 

4.00% 

4.00% 

1.50% 

To Be WeU , 

Capitalized Under 

Prompt Corrective 

Action Regulations 

Amount 

$• 14,897 

, • 8,938,.̂ , 

12,460 

•' N/A '-. 

, Ratio 

10:00% 

6:00% 

. 5:00% • 

'•• - " ' W A ' 

Required. 

By Terms Of 

CFBank Order :. 

Amount 

$17,876 : 

• - : N / A ' 

. .19;937 

N/A-

Ratio 

• 12:00% 

N/A 

; .8.00%: 

N / A : 

The CFBank Order required CFBank to have by September 30, 2011, and maintain thereafter, 8%o tier 1 ((Dore) Capital to 
adjusted total assets and 12%) Total Capital to risk weighted assets; which it did riot meet at September 30,2011 or Deceriiber 
31, 2011. CFBank met the capital requirement at September 30, 2012 and Deceniber 31, 2012 as a resuh of a $13,500 capital 
contribution from the Holding Company resulting from the net proceeds ofthe stock offering. However, CFBank will not be 
considered "well-capitalized" under applicable regulatory capital standards as long as it is subject to individual minimum 
capital requirements under the CFBank Order. 
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NOTE 19 - REGULATORY CAPITAL MATTERS (Continued) 

The Qualified Thrift Lender test requires at least 65%) ofassets be maintained in housing-related finance and other specified 
areas. If this test is not met, limits are placed on growth, branching, new investments, FFILB advances and dividends, or 
CFBank must convert to a commercial bank charter. Management believes, that this test is met at December 31, 2012. 

CFBank converted from a mutualtoa stock institution in 1998, and a "hquidation accounf was established with an initial 
balance of $14,300,, which was'the net worth reported in the conversion prospectus. The hquidation account represents a 
calculated amount for the purposes described below, and it does hot represent actual funds included in the consolidated 

^financial statements ofthe Company: Eligible depositors who have maintained their accounts, less annual reductions to the 
extent they-;haye reduced their deposits, would be entitled to a priority distribution from this account if CFBank Uquidated 
and its assets exceeded its UabUities. 'Dividends rhay not reduce CFBank's stockholder's equity below the required 
hquidation account balance. • . 

Dividend Restrictions: The Holding Company's principaljsource of funds for dividend payments is dividends received from 
CFBank. Banking regulations limit the amourit'of dividends that may be paid without prior approval of regulatory agencies. 
Under these regulations, the amount of dividends that may be paid in any calendar year is limited to the current year's net 
profits, combined with the retained.net profits ofthe preceding two years, subject to the caphal requirements described above. 
CFBank must receive regulatory approval prior to any dividend payments. 

NOTE 2 0 - D E R I V A T I V E INSTRUMENTS 

Interest-rate swaps 
CFBank utilizes iriterest7rate;swaps, as part of its asset liabiUty riianagement sfrategy to help mariage: its interest rate risk 
position,,and does not use derivatives for trading purposes. The notional amount Of the interest-rate swaps does not represent 
amounts exchariged by the parties, t h e amount exchanged is determined by reference to the notional amount and the other 
terms ofthe individual interest-rate swap agreements. CFBank was party to interest-rate swaps with a combined notional 
amount of $7,750 at December31,2012,and $7,949 at December 31, 2011. 

The objective of the interest-rate'swaps is to protect the related fixed rate commercial real estate; loans from changes in fair 
value due to changes in interest-rates. CFBank has a program whereby it lends to hs bonowers at a fixed rate with theioan 
agreement containing a two-way yield maintenance provision, which will be invoked in the event of prepayment of the loan, 
and is expected to exactly offset the fair value of unwinding the swap. The yield maintenance provision represents an 
embedded derivative which is bifurcated from the host loan confract and, as such, the swaps and embedded derivatives are r 
not designated as hedges. Accordingly, both instraments are carried at fair value and changes in fair value are reported in 
current period eamings: CFBank currently does not have any derivatives designated as hedges. 

Contingent Features; The counterparty to CFBank's interest-rate swaps is exposed to credh risk whenever thie interest-rate 
swaps are in a liability poshion. At year-end 2012, CFBank had $1,511 in securities pledged as collateral for these 
derivatives. Should the liability increaise, CFBank will be required to pledge additional collateral. 

Addhionally, CFBank's iriterest-rate swap instraments contain provisions that require CFBank to remain well capitalized 
under regulatory capital standards. The interest-rate swaps could be called by the counterparty as a resuh of CFBank's 
failure to maintain well-caphalized status due to the CFBank Order. Should market interest rates decrease from December 31, 
2012 levels, the payment may increase in the event the swaps are called. In the event the interest-rate swaps are called and 
CFBank is unable to replace them, CFBarik will be exposed to the market risk of the valuation ofthe yield mairitenance 
provisions and, absent thc: borrowers' prepaying the loans, as of December 31, 2012 would incur a net $990 expense, subject 
to valuation fluctuations, over the remairiing lives of the related loans. 

page 84. | CENTRAL FEDERALCORPORATION 2012 ANNUAL REPORT 

http://retained.net


NOTE 20 - DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS (Continued). : 

Summary information about the derivative instraments is as follows: 

Notional amount 
Weighted average pay rate on interest-rate swaps 
Weighted average receive rate on interest-rate swaps 
Weighted average maturity (years) 
Fair value of interest-rate swaps 
Fair value of yield maintenance provisions 

$ 

$ 
$ 

2012 

7,750 
3.86% 
0.24% 

4.6 
(990) 
990 

2011 

$ 

$ 
$ 

, 7,949 
3.86% 
0.35% 

5.6 
(999) 
999 

The fair value ofthe yield maintenance provisions and interest-rate swaps is recorded in other assets and other liabilities, 
respectively, in the consolidated balance sheet. Changes in the fair value ofthe yield maintenance provisions and interest-
rate swaps are reported currently in eamings, as other noninterest income in the consolidated statements of operations. There 
were no net gains or losses recognized in eamings related to yield maintenance provisions and interest-rate swaps in 2012, 
2011 or 2010. 

Mortgage banking derivatives 
Commitments to fund certain mortgage loans (interest rate locks) to be sold into the secondary market are considered 
derivatives. These mortgage banking derivatives are not designated in hedge relationships. The Company had approximately 
$2,079 and $3,930 ofinterest rate lock commitments related to residential mortgage loans at December 31, 2012 and 2011, 
respectively. The fair value of these mortgage banking derivatives was reflected by aderivative asset of $45 and $39 at: ;, 
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, which was included in other assets in the consolidated balance sheet. Fair values 
were estimated based on anticipated gains on the sale of the underlying loans. Changes in the fair values of these mortgage 
banking derivatives are included in net gains on sales of loans. Net gains (losses) recognized in eamings related to these 
mortgage banking derivatives totaled $6, ($2) and $41 in 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively. 

NOTE 21 - LOAN COMMITMENTS AND O T H E R RELATED ACTIVITIES 

Some financial instraments, such as loan commitments, credit lines, letters of credit and overdraft protection, are issued to 
meet customer financing needs. These are agreements to provide credit or to support the credit of others, as long as 
conditions established in the contract are met, add usually have expiration dates. Commitments may expire without being 
used. Off-balance-sheet risk to credit loss exists up to the face amount of these instraments, although material losses are not = 
anticipated. The same credh policies are used to make such commitments as are used for loans, including obtaining cdllateral 
at exercise of the commitment. !: 

The contractual amounts of financial instraments with off-balance-sheet risk at year end were as foUows. 

Commitments to make loans 
Unused lines of credit 
Standby letters of credit 

2012 
Fixed 
Rate 

$ 4,307: 
. 47 

Variable 
Rate 

$ 309 
18,142 

522 

2011 
Fixed 
Rate 

$ 943 
62 

Variable 
Rate 

$ -741 
19,952 

526 

Commitments to make loans are generally made for periods of 60 days or less, except for constraction loan commitments, 
which are typically for a period of one year, and loans under a specific drawdown schedule, which are based on the individual 
contracts. The fixed rate loan commitments had interest rates ranging from 2.99%) to 5.0%) and maturities ranging from 16 
months to 30 years at December 31, 2012. The fixed rate loan commitments had interest rates ranging from 3.25%) to 5.25%) 
and maturities ranging from 15 years to 30 years at December 31,2011. 
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NOTE 22 - PARENT COMPANY ONLY CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

Condensed financial information of Cenfral Federal Corporation follows: 

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS 
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER. SHARE DATA) 

Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Investment in banking subsidiary , 

Investment in and advances to other,subsidiaries 

Other assets 

Total assets . • ' . . ' ' . 

Liabilities and Equity 

Subordinated debentures - •• 

Accraed expenses and other UabiUties 

Stockholders' equity 

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity 

;-v-:-''"-'2oi2 

$ 4,673 

23,060 

-",,;-:-"-,, ,• .1,226 

•$ 28,959 

:' $:'-> 5,155 

161 

23,643 

$ 28,959 

2011 

$ 560 

. , 13,827 

1,212 

264 

• , $ • ' . '15,863 

' $ ' 5,155 

764 

9,944 

$. : 15,863 

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS 
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA) 

Interestincome 

Interest expense 

Other expense 

Loss before income tax and undistributed subsidiaries' 
operations 

Effect of subsidiaries'operations 

Net loss 

Comprehensive loss 

.:-,,•••-,•-•.-.2012 , 

' 1^0 

400 

(577) 

(3,189) 

$ (3,766) 

$ (4,045) 

2011 

$ - ' -
168 
663 

(831) 

(4,594) 

$ (5,425) ., 

$ (5,711) 

2010 

$ 
. 167 

567 -

(734) 

(6,136) 

$ (6,870) 

$ (6,902) 
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NOTE 22 - PARENT COMPANY ONLY CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Continued) 

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA) YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Net loss 
Adjustments: 

Effect of subsidiaries' operations 
Stock-based compensation expense 
Change in other assets and other liabilities 

Net cash from operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Investments in banking subsidiary 
Investments in other subsidiaries 

Net cash from investing activities 

Cash flows from flnancing activities 
Dividends paid 
Redemption of TARP obligation 
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock 

Net cash from financing activities 

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 

Beginning cash and cash equivalents 

Ending cash and cash equivalents 

2012 

S (3.766) 

3.189 

173 
(404j 

(13.500) 
(3) 

(13.503) 

(3,000) 
21.020 
18,020 

4,113 

560 

S 4,673 

2011 

$ - (5,425) 

4,594 

11 
(820) 

635 
635 

-

_ 

(185) 

745 

$ 560 

2010 

$ (6,870) 

6,136 
2 

(51) 
(783) 

(8) 
(8) . 

(271) 

(271) 

(1,062) 

1,807 

$ , 745 
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NOTE 23 - EARNINGS (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE 

The two-class method is used in the calculation of basic and diluted eamings per share. Under the two-class method, 
eamings available to common stockholders for the period are allocated between common stockholders and unvested share-
based payment awards according to dividends declared (or accumulated) and participation rights in undisfributed eamings. 
The factors used in the eamings per share computation follow: 

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA) 

Basic 

Net loss 

Less: Preferred dividends and accretion of discount on 
preferred stock 

Less: Net loss allocated to unvested share-based payment -
awards 

Net eamings (loss) allocated to common stockholders 

Weighted average common shares outstanding including 
unvested share-based payment awards 

Less: Unvested share-based payment awards 
Average shares 

Basic eamings (loss) per common share 

Diluted 
Net eamings (loss) allocated to common stockholders 

Weighted average corrimon shares outstanding for basic 
eamings (loss) per common share 

Add: Dilutive effects of assumed exercises of stock options 
Add: Dilutive effects of assumed exercises of stock warrant 
Average shares and dilutive potential common shares 

Diluted eamings (loss) per common share 

2012 

S (3.766) 

4.632 

$ 866 

6.317.032 
(2..V3I) 

6.314.701 

S 0.14 

S 866 

6.314.701 
948 

6.3 15.399 

S 0.14 

2011 

$ - ; ..(5,425) 

• "(425) 

• 34 

$ ' (5,816) 

825,376.. 
(4,801) 

820,575 .. 

$ , (7.09) 

$ (5,816) 

820,575. ; . 

820,575 

$ (7.09) 

, 2010 

$ (6,870) 

(410) 

29 

$ • (7,251) 

822,262,.,,, . 
(3,304) 

818,958 

•$ -.(8.85) 

$ (7,251) 

818,958 , 1 

818,958 

$ (8.85) 

The foUowing potential average common shares were anti-dilutive and not considered in computing diluted eamings (loss) 
per common share because the Company had a loss from continuing operations. 
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NOTE 2 4 - C O N T I N G E N T LIABILITIES : ^ : ' • 

CFBank participates iti a multi-employer conttibutory trasteed pension plan. On August 17, 2012, CFBank was notified by 
the trastees ofthe plan that, due to CFBank's finaricial performance and the CFBank Order, it was required make a 
contribution or provide a letter of credit in the amount of the funding shortfall plus estimated cost of annuitization of benefits 
in the plan, which was determined to be $908. CFBank obtained a letter of credit from the FHLB for this amount. The cost 
of obtaining the letter of credit was $9. CFBank may be required to make additional confributions or provide additional > 
amounts via an expanded letter of credit if the funding shortfall increases in the future. If CFBank's financial condition \ 
should worsen in the future, the trastee may execute the letter of credit, resulting in a charge to CFBank. 
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Central Federal Corporation 
and CFBank 
Board of Directors 

Robert E. Hoeweler 
Chief Executive Officer, 
Hoeweler Holdings •'•'' 
Chairman Central Federal Corporation 
and CFBank • ^ • i' . :: 

Thomas P. Ash 
Director of Governmental Relations 
Buckeye Association of School 
Administrators 

Edward W. Cochran 
Attorney 

James H. Frauenberg II 
Principal Owner, 
Addison Holdings LLC. 

Donal H. Malenick 
Chief Executive Officer, 
Columbus Steel Castings 

Central Federal Corporation 
Officers' 

Robert E; Hoeweler 
• Chairman of the Board, 
Central Federal Corp. 

Timothy T. O'Dell 
Chief Executive Officer, 
Central Federal Corp. 

Thad R. Perry 
President, 
Central Federal Corp. 

John W. Helmsdoerfer, CPA 
Executive Vice President & 
Chief Financial Officer 

CFBank v : . = 
Executive Officers 

Timothy T. O'Dell 
ChiefExecutiveOfficer 

Thad R. Perry 
President 

John W. Helmsdoerfer, CPA 
Executive Vice President & 
Chief Financial Officer 

John S. Lawell 
Senior Vice President, Operations 

Timothy T. O'Dell 
Chief Executive Officer, 
CFBank 

Thad R. Perry 
President, 
CFBank 

CFBank 
Office Locations 

Calcutta, Ohio 
49028 Foulks Drive 
Calcutta, Ohio 43920 
330-385-4323 

Fairlawn, Ohio 
2923 Smith Road 
Faidawn, Ohio 44333 
330-666-7979 

Wellsville, Ohio 
601 Main Street 
Wellsville, Ohio 43968 
330-532-1517 

Worthington, Ohio 
7000 North High Street 
Worthington, Ohio 43085 
614-334-7979 
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CORPORATE DATA 

Annual Report 

A copy ofthe Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission will be 
available April 2, 2013 without charge upon written request to: 

John W. Helmsdoerfer, CPA 
Executive Vice President & 
Chief Financial Officer 
Central Federal Corporation 
2923 Smith Road 
Fairlawn, Ohio 44333 
Phone: 330-576-1209 
Fax:330-576-1339 
Email: JohnHelmsdoerfer@cfbankmail.cbm 

Annual Meeting 

The Annual Meeting of Shareholders of Central Federal Corporation will be held at 10 a.m. on Thursday, 
May 16, 2013 at the Fairlawn Country Club, 200 North Wheaton Road, Fairlawn, Ohio. 

Stockholder Services 

Registrar and Transfer Company serves as transfer agent for Central Federal Corporation shares. 
Communications regarding change of address, transfer of shares or lost certificates should be sent to: 

Registrar & Transfer Company 
10 Commerce Drive 
Cranford, New Jersey 07016 
Phone: 800-368-5948 
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